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Message
from the
Chairman

Resilient and Resolute

The year 2016 was a period of unexpected turns

and extreme volatility. From the seemingly free-fall
experienced by the Chinese market, to the United
Kingdom's surprise decision to exit the European
Union, to Donald Trump's unanticipated victory in
the US Presidential elections, occurrences that made
their mark on the year serve as reminders that very
few things can be predicted with certainty and that
life is full of surprises.

On the local front, positive outcomes prevailed.
The Philippine economy grew by 6.8%, outpacing
the growths experienced by neighbors China

and Vietnam. This is attributed to a number of
factors, including continued public investment in
infrastructure, an increase in private consumption
brought about by a rise in consumer confidence,
and improvements in labor market conditions. The
country also currently enjoys moderate inflation,
a robust tourism industry, retail trade expansion,
continued growth in remittances, as well as
promising horizons for both the construction and
IT-BPO industries.

Similarly, the local banking industry prevailed
despite the volatile global backdrop. The
Philippine banking industry bested its
counterparts in the Asia Pacific, as Fitch Ratings
gave it the only positive outlook in the region.
Moody's also recognized the Philippine banking
industry as the only one in ASEAN to have a
stable outlook on all rating factors.

Sterling Bank of Asia, as an active player in the
thrift banking sector, has kept pace with the
growth of the industry given its commitment to
deliver banking services that exceed customer
expectations. In 2016, the bank embarked on
major system upgrades, mindful that in today’s
banking world, a robust IT infrastructure is
essential to support business growth. The
bank acquired CCK Financial Solution’s Guava
Treasury Management System and likewise
upgraded its core banking system. These

will allow the bank to further improve fund
management and customer servicing.

Sterling Bank of Asia promotes financial literacy
through its various advocacy programs. The
bank has been part of the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas’ initiative to promote the value of
saving money and spending wisely among
school children. The bank’s Neo Savings product
was specifically designed to allow children to
maintain their own savings account and develop
good money habits. Another area of focus in
terms of advocacy is the Overseas Filipino

Workers (OFWSs) who are significant contributors
to the country's economy. The bank supports
OFWs via the financial literacy seminars
conducted by the bank prior to their departure
and deployment. The bank's Bayani OFW
Savings account promotes saving so that part of
the OFWs hard-earned income can be allocated
to secure a stable financial future for them

and their families. Meanwhile, in partnership
with iRemit, the bank caters also to the OFW's
remittance requirements.

As the Philippines moves into 2017, plans

for even greater progress are underway. The
government intends to usher in a “golden era of
infrastructure” which will raise the GDP growth
target range from 7% to 8% between 2017 to
2022. This, in turn, shall present Sterling Bank
of Asia with avenues for more focused and
responsible lending, higher demand for loans
and financing requirements, more significant
transactions, and more substantial contributions
to the local banking industry and to the nation
as a whole.

Sterling Bank of Asia is prepared to respond

to the opportunities for the year ahead, while
also rising to the challenges that the external
environment may bring. Whether in times of
stability or volatility, we, at Sterling Bank of
Asia, remain steadfast and firmly committed to
delivering the best banking experience to our
customers, stakeholders and employees.

Chairman of the Board

S———
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Sterling Bank of Asia

Report to
Stockholders
& Stakeholders

2016 proved to be a rewarding year for Sterling Bank
of Asia. Anchored on sustained growth and more
prudent balance sheet management, we are happy
to present to you a stronger, more solid bank that
you can be proud of. As we look back on this year
of growth and progress for the bank, we extend

our heartfelt gratitude to you — our stockholders,
clients, business partners, providers and
employees — for your unwavering support and
trust. It is your steadfast confidence in the bank
that fuels and propels Sterling Bank of Asia
through both triumphs and difficulties.

We are pleased to announce that Sterling Bank

of Asia posted a net income of PhP88.23 million
in 2016, up by 183% from PhP31.13 million in

the previous year. This is principally attributed to
higher interest income on loans receivables as the
bank built up its asset base by pursuing industries
and areas where growth opportunities are strong.
A good example is the success of our thrust to
drive Consumer Loans, particularly Auto Loans.
Sterling Bank of Asia strengthened its relationship
with partner car dealers as the automotive
industry consistently posted a double digit growth
brought about by a steadily improving economy
as well as the introduction of newer and more
affordable models, especially compact cars.

The Consumer Lending Group accomplished

a 300% net income versus prior year and
expanded coverage in key provincial cities to take
advantage of the substantial growth of consumer
loans in the Philippines.

In keeping with the bank'’s initiative to fully
comply with BSP Circular 855, which requires
banks to make use of credit scoring in its
consumer lending activities, the Consumer
Lending Group also signed a service contract
agreement with CRIF Corporation for the
development of application scorecards for
Sterling Bank of Asia’s Consumer Lending
activities. With this, we expect to streamline our
credit procedures and further improve the quality
of our loan portfolio.

The year also brought prestigious honor to
Sterling Bank of Asia as the bank once again
received the Award for Outstanding Philippine
Payments and Settlements System (PhilPaSs)

.'_t-"_l!

Participant Servicing Customer ePayments — Thrift
Bank Category. This is the fourth year in a row that
the bank has been recognized by Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas for its remarkable performance in
contributing to the total value of remittances and
customer electronic payment transactions sent

to Philippine Payments and Settlements System
(PhilPaSSs) for processing and settlement.

While we experienced challenges brought on by

a tightening competitive landscape and a shift in
banking behavior and customer demands, the bank's
various units, nevertheless, posted growths that
contributed to the bank’s overall success in 2016. The
Retail Banking Group saw a double-digit growth in
low-cost funds while intensifying its efforts to offer
other bank products.

Deposit liabilities grew from PhP26.89 billion in 2015
to PhP29.48 billion in 2016 as the bank focused

on low-cost deposit growth in order to effectively
manage its weighted cost of funds.

Under the Commercial Lending Group, relationships
with existing clients were strengthened by offering
more competitive pricing while vigorously maintaining
a high caliber of service. The goal is to provide our
clients with financial flexibility and a range of product
offerings that will help them compete and succeed

in their business endeavors. The group has gained
inroads in the acquisition of new clients as well.
These strategies enabled the group’s loan portfolio to
reach PhP11.56 billion in 2016.

The Treasury Group, on the other hand, posted a
PhP224 million increase in interest and realized trading
income. The group also acquired CCK Financial Solution’s
Guava Treasury Management System, which covers the
front office, middle office and back office of the bank's
treasury operations. This new system improves treasury
dealing, risk management and control, as well as the
management of treasury processes. This acquisition
placed Sterling Bank of Asia in a more competitive
advantage with other banking institutions, particularly
commercial banks in achieving better profitability and
improved service delivery to clients.

And finally, the Trust Group increased its portfolio
achieving a 29% growth as a result of the group’s
strategic partnership with their investment
counterparts and utilization of distribution channels to
reach high net worth clients and corporate accounts.

Chairman of the Board

In 2017, Sterling Bank of Asia is set to mark a major
milestone in the bank’s history — its 10th year of
operations. The bank will continue its aggressive
expansion strategy to further improve delivery channels
of financial products and services. Branches in Puerto
Princesa, Palawan and Naga, Camarines Sur are
scheduled to open in February, while a branch in Legazpi,
Albay will begin operations in March. Boracay, Aklan and
Caloocan branches are also set to open in April.

Apart from physical branches, Sterling Bank of Asia
will continue to cement its position as an innovative
bank by implementing new systems as well as
upgrading various system applications aimed at
improving customer experience and enhancing our
capabilities to adapt and compete with our peers.

2017 is also expected to be a challenging year for
fixed income instruments as the market anticipates
further US rate hikes and inflations. In response

to this, Treasury Group will concentrate on trading
more liquid bonds, while also capitalizing on the
swings in the market to book trading income. The
increase in corporate bond issuances will also

give more alternatives for Treasury's investing
clients, while the BSP’s move to further liberalize
the foreign exchange rules will give the bank
opportunities to capture client demands previously
serviced by the non-bank sector.

This year, our Trust Group will focus on achieving
PhP8 billion in Asset Under Management (AUM),
while Commercial Lending Group will concentrate

on generating new accounts and strengthening its
relationship with existing clients through high quality
service and competitive pricing. Our Consumer
Lending Group will continue to capitalize on the
robust economy and finance qualified borrowers in
need of housing, car, salary or personal loans. We are
bullish about the auto industry which is projected to
post double-digit growths beyond 2020 and, likewise,
with the real estate property sector.

As one year closes and another begins, we at Sterling
Bank of Asia wish to acknowledge the regulators,
clients, stockholders, board of directors, management
and staff, who have all shared our vision of excellence
and integrity in banking. You have played an
essential role in the progress we have made thus
far. And as we move into our 10th year of banking
excellence, we look forward to facing the future,
still hand in hand with all of you.

A o

President & CEO
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Financial
Highlights

2016 vs. 2015

Financial Position

Sterling Bank of Asia closed the year 2016 with
total resources of PhP33.904 billion, up by
PhP3.003 billion from PhP30.901 billion as of
December 31, 2015. This was driven primarily by
the growth in the bank’s core lending activities
with a notable 22.06% or PhP4.111 billion
increase in total loans and receivables from
PhP18.635 billion in 2015 to PhP22.746 billion by
end of 2016. Leading the loan asset expansion is
the Consumer Lending Group with auto and home
financing as its flagship products. Interbank Loans
Receivable likewise increased by PhP1.208 billion
or 105.24%.

Sterling Bank of Asia

Total liabilities went up by PhP2.787 billion or 9.82%
from PhP28.392 billion in 2015 to PhP31.179 billion
in 2016, of which, 93% is attributed to the growth

in the deposit base in support of asset expansion.
Deposit liabilities comprised of time deposit
placements, demand and savings deposits grew from
PhP26.889 billion to PhP29.483 billion in 2016. Given
the significant jump in the bank’s bottom line, income
tax payable consequently increased from PhP2.9
million in 2015 to PhP26.2 million in 2016.

Stockholders' equity increased by PhP216.226 million
or 8.62% to PhP2.725 billion due to the PhP88.230
million net income in 2016 and PhP122.844 million

favorable market value of Available for Sale Securities.

The return on average equity went up from 1.24% in
2015 to 3.27% in 2016. The bank’s Basel 1 Capital
Adequacy Ratio stood at 12.37% in 2016.

Results of Operations

The bank posted a net income of PhP88.230 million
in 2016, an increase of 183% or PhP57.102 million
compared to the PhP31.128 million in 2015. Net
revenue from funds increased from PhP1.194 billion
to PhP1.313 billion, basically due to higher interest
income on loans and receivables by PhP198.757
million or 14.24% as a result of portfolio growth.

Meanwhile, fee based income of PhP186.240 million
was higher by PhP55 million or 42.28% from

PhP131 million in 2015 due to trading gains on
securities, service fees on branch transactions and
loan-related fees.

Interest expense on Deposit Liabilities decreased by
PhP87 million or 16.63% due to lower interest rates.

As the bank has endeavored to beef up capacity and
strengthen its operations for the delivery of financial
services to its clients, total operating expenses
increased by 8.58% or PhP100 million from PhP1.163
billion in 2015 to PhP1.263 billion in 2016.
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Operational
Highlights

Consistent exemplary performance determines the success of the bank. While the
different groups diligently display competence in their respective fields, the pressure
of materializing their emerging goals per year also rises amidst inevitable internal and
external circumstances. It is good to note, however, that these groups draw strength
from each other, and together, they stand unwaveringly.

Retail Banking

In 2016, the Retail Banking Group grew its low-cost
funds by 14%. Optima Business Banking Solutions,
the bank’s unique account that comes with cash
management facilities to support Sterling Bank of
Asia’s business clients, continued to be the group's
flagship offering, reaching over 300 SME's and large
corporations by the end of the year.

In keeping with the financial sector’s mission to
promote financial literacy, the Retail Banking Group
launched the “Saving For Your Future” campaign

in collaboration with schools and learning centers

in key cities. The campaign’s aim is to educate children
on the value of money and the benefits of saving.

This initiative promoted the Neo Savings Account and
provided nearly 2,000 schoolchildren with their very
first bank accounts.

The Retail Banking Group aims to expand the bank's
branch network in 2017. In the first half of the year, four
branches are scheduled to open in the Southern Luzon
and Visayas areas, and another one is set to operate in
Metro Manila.

Sterling Bank of Asia

Commercial Lending

2016 was another good year for Commercial Lending
Group as evidenced by loan portfolio reaching
PhP11.560 billion level. The portfolio was achieved
through active solicitation of new accounts and
continuous growth from its existing client base. And
to strengthen operations and support the expansion
of the bank, the group created another department,
Commercial Lending 3.

The group provides both working capital and expansion
financing requirements for clients which are mostly
SME's. These credit facilities are from short term to
long term loans. Aside from these, trade financing
facilities are also available, such as import and domestic
letters of credit, trust receipts, trade check discounting,
receivable purchase, among others.

The group will continue to focus on new accounts
generation in 2017 and, more importantly, to maintain
and deliver high quality service standard. Lastly, the
group will further develop its strong relationship with
existing clients.

2016 Annual Report
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Consumer Lending

2016 proved to be a banner year for the Consumer Lending
Group. The group’s bottom line breached the PhP100 million
mark, ending with a net income three times that of 2015.

The growth was spurred primarily by Auto Loans, as it
doubled its portfolio performance. Real Estate Loans,
likewise, experienced growth in portfolio as it grew its
developer accounts. Personal and Salary Loans, on the
other hand, continued to post modest gains.

The Consumer Lending Group further expanded its
coverage areas to include San Pablo, Laguna and Batangas
in Southern Luzon, Bulacan, Dagupan and La Union in
Northern Luzon, and Bacolod and General Santos in the
Vismin region.

Furthermore, the group introduced new consumer
loan products, namely the Truck Loan and High End
Motorcycle Financing.

With the continued growth in the domestic economy
resulting in increased consumer spending, the group is
positioned to meet the demands for retail financing in 2017
with its various product offerings.

Treasury

2016 was the year of the unpredictable. From the
Philippine elections to Brexit to the US election results,
anti-establishment sentiments prevailed, which went
against market expectations. Rising US interest rates and
the bottoming out of inflation in the Philippines led to higher
bond yields. The Treasury Group lightened up on its bond
holdings in response to the unfavorable conditions. While
awaiting opportunities to reposition in the bond market, the
group focused on funding core banking products by tapping
its institutional clients, resulting in PhP1.205 billion in
deposits. Despite the odds, the group still managed to post
PhP224 million in both interest and realized trading income.

The introduction of the Interest Rate Corridor by the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas in mid-2016 allowed the Treasury
Group to manage its liquidity position more efficiently, thus
improving its net interest income by 105.66%. To further the
bank’s growth, the group continued to provide competitive
prices and excellent service in the money, bond and foreign
exchange markets. The group also purchased CCK Financial
Solution’s Guava system to further improve deal capture
and position analysis.

2017 will continue to be a challenging year for bonds, as

the market anticipates further US rate hikes and higher
inflation. Treasury Group will concentrate on trading

liquid bonds and take advantage of swings in the market

to book trading income. The increase in corporate bond
issuances will also give more alternatives for the group's
investing clients. BSP’s move to further liberalize the foreign
exchange rules will give the bank the opportunity to service
client demand previously serviced by the non-bank sector.

| Sterling Bank of Asia 2016 Annual Report | 11




Trust

2016 proved to be a fruitful year for the Trust Group.

By focusing on strengthening strategic alliances with
investment counterparts and distribution channels as a
means to effectively service clients’ needs, the Trust Group
was able to increase its Assets Under Management (AUM)
by PhP1.4 billion. With a total of PhP6.1 billion in AUM at
year-end, the group achieved a 29% year-on-year growth
compared to 2015.

Aside from the continued growth of the trust portfolio, the
Trust Group also posted an increase of 450% in Net Income.

These accomplishments enabled the Trust Group to
contribute to the bank’s overall profitability, as the year-end
revenue not only posted a 48% growth compared to the
previous year, but also exceeded forecast by 20%.

Despite major challenges brought about by high volatility
in the market, the Trust Group was able to manage
clients' exposure to risk and loss by maintaining diverse
investments. The group also ensured flexibility by keeping
investments in short term funds and liquid assets.

The Trust Group looks forward to using this positive
momentum to propel Sterling Bank of Asia even further in
2017, with a projection of reaching PhP8 billion in AUM or a
33% growth in the coming year.

Human Resources

2016 proved to be an interesting and challenging year for
the Human Resources Group.

In its commitment to build a strong and formidable
workforce, the Human Resources Group (HRG) implemented
various programs designed to support the growth and
development of its employees, mindful that the people who
run the bank contribute most to its success.

HRG's Center for Learning (CFL) continued to be a strategic

partner across all units, providing relevant and cost-effective
development and training programs aligned with the bank’s
succession plan, talent management and retention program.

The bank’s Training Programs focus on four (4) areas, namely
Banking Know-How, Technical Know-How, Leadership,

and Service Excellence. These programs are reviewed on

a regular basis to ensure that they are responsive to the
changing banking landscape. New regulatory requirements
and industry best practices are integrated into all customer
service, sales and technical training programs.

In 2016, the bank successfully unveiled its Management
Training Program and New Leadership Program. The former
was designed to address the bank’s need to recruit, develop
and retain high-potential individuals who will occupy mid-
management posts while the latter was launched to hone the

Sterling Bank of Asia

various aspects of supervisory competencies of employees
with the aim of developing the bank’s future leaders.

Specific development programs for sales officers, service
heads, branch heads, marketing associates and credit
personnel were also provided to continually enhance
employees’ technical proficiency. Aside from these, sales
competence of employees is reinforced through the annual
Sales Rally where sales strategies for different products vis-a-
vis market segments are presented.

The bank conducts its annual Sales Rally, which is a gathering
of Sterling Bankers nationwide to support the bank’s initiatives
and emphasize the importance of each employee’s role in the
achievement of the bank’s goals. Renowned speakers and
acknowledged marketing and leadership experts are invited
to provide inspirational and motivational talks on how to
encourage growth in the organization.

Human Resources Group continues to take the lead in
promoting employee well-being thru various initiatives
in the areas of compensation and benefits, physical
and mental health, and various employee engagement
activities, mindful that people are the bank’s biggest
resource and that a healthy and engaged workforce
translates to better productivity. The employee

welfare program includes annual bloodletting activity,
immunization program, various sports fests and weekly
wellness activities year round.

The bank’s vision is to be the industry leader in the area

of service efficiency. HRG ensures that all employees are
properly trained, not only in customer service skills, but also
in technical competencies. This is propelled by the employee
engagement culture we have built and inculcated among
Sterling Bankers over the past 10 years.

Information Technology

The Information Technology Group is committed to provide
excellent technological products and services in the most
cost-effective and timely manner, deliver value to the
business and optimize IT resources to support evolving
customer needs and dynamic market trends.

After detailed preparation and discussions with the
various stakeholders, the Information Technology Group
successfully upgraded Sterling Bank of Asia’s core banking
system in late 2016, bringing about increased operational
efficiency and productivity. The bank invested heavily on this
upgrade in view of the business growth and requirements.
In conjunction with the upgrade, new systems will be
implemented, while existing systems are scheduled for
upgrade or replacement. These include the AMLA System,
Retail Internet Banking, Corporate Internet Banking,

Retail Mobile Banking, Corporate Mobile Banking, Loans
Origination, Debt Collection, Litigation, Business Analysis
and Agency Portal.

The Check Image Clearing System (CICS) facility

is ready for implementation, awaiting the go-live
date in 2017 set by the Philippine Clearing House
Corporation (PCHC), placing Sterling Bank of Asia
among the first banks ready to comply with PCHC's
requirement.

IT security continues to be a top priority. Increased
efforts to fully implement Europay Mastercard
Visa (EMV) technology and to obtain the Payment
Card Industry-Data Security Standards (PCl-

DSS) certification for the bank are on track. In the
first half of 2016, the compliance of the bank's
network security with global security standards
was validated when it passed the vulnerability scan
and penetration test conducted by a PCI-Approved
Scanning Vendor (PCI-ASV).

Plans for 2017 include the implementation of the
new Treasury System, Mail System and Human
Resource Information System (HRIS).

True to its commitment, the Information Technology
Group will continue to be an enabler and a significant
partner of business units in gaining competitive
advantage for the bank.

Business Support Services

In 2016, the Business Support and Services
Group continued to reinforce process and system
enhancements initiated in the previous year.
Integrating various departments and aligning
bank-wide processes enabled the group to boost
efficiency and productivity, thus ably supporting
the frontline units’ increased production.

A number of initiatives, including employee
training programs administered in coordination
with the bank’s Center For Learning, equipped
the Business Support Services Group with the
technical skills and leadership capabilities.

These are needed to provide quality customer
service, address various risk and internal control
objectives, and achieve cost-efficient operations.

As a testament to the group’s drive for excellence,
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) presented
Sterling Bank of Asia with the Outstanding
PhilPaSs Participant Servicing Customer
ePayments-Thrift Bank Category Award for the
fourth consecutive year. This is in recognition of the
bank’s performance in terms of volume, frequency
and value of transactions sent to PhilPaSs for
processing and settlement.

2016 Annual Report



Award & Recognition
Sterling Bank of Asia gets
BSP-PhilPaSS Award anew

NOT TWICE, not thrice, but four times
inarow.

Last July 13, 2016, the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) awarded
the Outstanding PhilPaSS Participant
Servicing Customer ePayments-Thrift
Bank Category Award to perennial
winner Sterling Bank of Asia at

the annual Awards Ceremony and

Appreciation Lunch for BSP Stakeholders

at the BSP Complex in Manila.

For four straight years since 2013,
Sterling Bank of Asia is a consistent
recipient of this prestigious PhilPaSS
Award.

The event, which carried the theme
“Sustained Partnership, Sustained
Economic Growth,"” also celebrated

BSP's thirteen years of honoring banking

and financial institutions for their
exemplary products and services.

Cecilio D. San Pedro (3rd from left), President
and CEO of Sterling Bank of Asia, and Luisito
S. Mayor (2nd from left), First Vice-President
and Head of Business Support Services Group
of Sterling Bank of Asia, are joined by BSP
Governor Amando M. Tetangco, Jr. (rightmost)
and Valentin A. Araneta (leftmost), Monetary
Board member and Chairman of the Board of
Judges, during the awarding ceremonies.

Sterling Bank of Asia

“I am overwhelmed because Sterling
Bank of Asia is on aroll,” the bank’s
President and CEO Cecilio D. San Pedro
said after personally accepting the
award from BSP Governor Amando
Tetangco, Jr., members of the Monetary
Board, and other BSP key officials.

“We are truly grateful for this
recognition. It is another honor | share
with the rest of the Sterling Bank of Asia
family as our bank continues to perform

excellently through the years,” he added.

The award recognizes the bank’s
remarkable performance in terms

of volume, frequency and value of
remittances and customer electronic
payment transactions sent to PhilPaSS
for processing and settlement.

PhilPaSS is the real time gross
settlement system implemented on
December 12, 2002 and is operated by
the state-run BSP with the overall aim
of improving financial market efficiency.

The process involves the real-time
transfer and handling of high-value
payments among banks through their
BSP accounts. In the first quarter of
2015 alone, PhilPaSS had more than
340,000 transactions totaling over
PhP70 trillion.

“As always, Sterling Bank of Asia
assures our customers of products

and services they can rely on, as well
as the best security measures for all
transactions,” San Pedro added. “We're
grateful that these assurances have
been validated (through this award).”

Mr. San Pedro also vowed to
continuously update the bank's
technology and to put a premium on
excellent customer experience.

Sterling Bank of Asia has been the consistent recipient of the prestigious
Philippine Payments and Settlements System (PhilPaSS) Award - Thrift Bank Category since 2013.
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CSR and Events
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San Juan City Mayor Guia Gomez and Sterling Bank of Asia President & CEO Cecilio D. San Pedro during the turnover ceremony
at St. Martin de Porres Charity Hospital

Sterling Bank of Asia

A Kind Heart That Gives

Sterling Bank of Asia donates again
to St. Martin de Porres Charity Hospital

Last December 2, 2016, Sterling Bank of Asia once
more donated much needed medical tools and
equipment to St. Martin de Porres Charity Hospital
(SMPCH). The donation is a continuation of the bank’s
Kind Heart Gives advocacy, which aims to give back to
the community.

“We profoundly thank everyone at St. Martin de Porres
Charity Hospital for giving us the opportunity to be of
service to the community,” said Cecilio D. San Pedro,
President and CEO of Sterling Bank of Asia. “When

we came up with our CSR project, we wanted it to be
within the community. Why look outside when we can
help a lot of people within our area?”

“When you give, you give with your heart,” added San
Pedro. "Sterling Bank of Asia is the ‘Bank with a Heart'.
We exemplify this through our advocacy, which is now
on its second year.”

The ceremony, which included a mass and a shared
meal, was graced by San Juan City Mayor Guia Gomez,
who welcomed the bank's officers and staff.

“On behalf of the people of San Juan, | would like to
thank Sterling Bank of Asia for their generosity and
kindness to SMPCH," said Mayor Gomez.

SMPCH is a charity hospital, which started as a one-

room clinic at the old convent of Sanctuario Del Santo
Cristo Church. Since then, the clinic has grown into a

“When you give, you give
with your heart,” added
San Pedro. “Sterling Bank
of Asia is the ‘Bank with a
Heart'. We exemplify this
through our advocacy,

which is now on its
second year.”

121-bed, full-fledged tertiary hospital accredited by
the Department of Health.

The hospital caters to about 2,500 patients each
month, most of whom are charity cases. Only 3 out

of 10 patients in SMPCH are paying patients. It is
operated by volunteers comprised of over 100 doctors
and 200 medical staff.

The hospital attends to an average of four surgeries a
day, excluding obstetrics-related procedures. Hence,
most of the instruments donated by Sterling Bank of
Asia are those often used for these services, including
surgical tools, suction machines, stethoscopes,
sphygmomanometer, laryngoscopes, otoscopes,
oximeters and hysterometers.

“We are very happy because they gave all the things
we had on our wishlist,” said Dra. Mercedita J.
Macabulos, Medical Director of St. Martin de Porres
Charity Hospital.

“This is the second year they have donated to our
hospital, and | know they will continue to help because
charity is borderless. It will be a very good Christmas
for us indeed,” she added.

Referring to the donation the bank made in 2015,

Dra. Macabulos adds, “We were able to attend to more
patients after that. Their donation went a long way in
helping a lot of people in need.”

i
e
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L-R: Clayton T. Lee (EVP and Treasurer — Sterling Bank of Asia), Helen Glastras (Chief Operating Officer — CCK Financial Solutions Pty Ltd),
Cecilio D. San Pedro (President and CEO - Sterling Bank of Asia), William L. Chua (Director - Sterling Bank of Asia)

Sterling Bank of Asia adopts innovative
Guava Treasury Management System

“This significant
partnership

(with CCK Financial
Solutions) further
bolsters our pledge
of quality and
efficiency to our
valued clients”

| Sterling Bank of Asia

Sterling Bank of Asia adopted the
renowned Guava Treasury Management
System of CCK Financial Solutions (CCK)
to further improve the bank’s funds
management and customer servicing,.

CCK, an Australian-based company,

inked a contract with Sterling Bank

of Asia for the use of Guava, a third-
generation system designed to handle
the challenges facing financial institutions
in Asia.

Cecilio D. San Pedro, President and CEO
of Sterling Bank of Asia, said that the
Guava Treasury Management System
is an addition to Sterling Bank of Asia’s
innovative business solutions.

“(Guava) is a complete technology that
complies with the requirements set by
the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas with
regard to utilizing up-to-date systems
and software to meet the changing
needs of the banking and finance
industry,” San Pedro explained.

“This significant partnership (with CCK)
further bolsters our pledge of quality
and efficiency to our valued clients,” San
Pedro said, adding that this award-

winning treasury solution will cover all
of Sterling Bank of Asia’s requirements
in this age of modern treasury.

Guava is a system which handles

the full life cycle of treasury, from

deal capture (whether directly or
through third party dealing systems),
risk management and monitoring,
settlements, accounting, all the way to
internal and regulatory reporting.

Moreover, it covers the different
classes of financial instruments traded
in modern treasury, including money
market, fixed income and foreign
exchange. The new system is also
capable of providing solutions related
to other products such as equities,
derivatives and structured instruments.

CCK has over 35 years of
specialization in treasury and capital
markets, with extensive expertise

in treasury system design. It is
comprised of highly skilled financial
and software professionals with
in-depth and diverse knowledge of
the global financial markets, covering
dealing, risk management, operations,
accounting and data technology.

Product Feature
Optima Business Banking Solutions

Optima Business Banking Solutions is a unique business account that comes with cash management facilities to help you
minimize overhead expenses, streamline operations, and most importantly, improve the bottom line.

With Optima, you can optimize the management of cash and liquid funds. One single account can now take care of the
disbursements, collections and investments of your company’s financial resources. Its key facilities are as follows:

Financial System

Optima delivers a stand-alone financial system that
provides you easier and more convenient processing and
monitoring of sales and purchases, inventory, and other
financial reports (including government reports).

Aside from the creation, modification, viewing and printing
of financial statements, you can also perform reconciliation
on your bank account/s and receive timely updates
regarding your account transactions.

Payroll System

Optima offers Human Resource Information System (HRIS)
that allows you to manage personnel records, payroll
computation and standard payroll report generation
including government reports (SSS, Philhealth, HDMF, BIR).

Payroll Crediting

Securely credit salaries to your employees’ ATM payroll
accounts with Optima. Moreover, with this facility, your
employees are able to access their funds using various
electronic channels with their ShopNPay Visa Cards without
the need to maintain an Average Daily Balance (ADB).

Check Writer System

Optima offers a system that provides you with a

flexible and secure way to easily prepare your check
disbursements, as well as encode, upload and generate
reports with GL entries, all while having the basic printing
function of a check writing system. In addition, printing of
BIR form 2307 is made available.

Optima Online

This is an internet-based banking facility intended to help
you enhance business operational efficiency through
borderless and on-demand access to your Sterling Bank of
Asia accounts.

On-demand access are the following:
= Balance inquiry

» Transaction history

= Bills payment

= Intrabank fund transfer

Check Warehousing

Free yourself from the tedious task of safekeeping and
managing your post-dated checks (PDCs) by letting the
bank do it for you. You are assured of automated PDC
deposit, on-time crediting and check monitoring. Review the
outstanding balance of your accounts through generation of
detailed reports available on a regular basis.
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Corporate Governance

Sterling Bank of Asia believes in upholding corporate
governance as a key in creating a strong and sound
corporate culture that continually pursue transparency,
integrity, fairness, excellence and accountability with the
primary objective of safeguarding stakeholders’ interest on
a sustainable basis.

The corporate governance structure is designed to provide
direction, control mechanism and evaluation system on

board and management's performance. The board ensures

the successful continuation of business by providing

strategic direction to the management and monitoring the
implementation of strategic objectives. The management team
promotes the good governance practices within the bank and
ensures that activities and operations are consistent with the
bank's strategic objectives, risk strategy, corporate values and
policies as approved by the board of directors.

Independent check and balance or control mechanisms are
embedded in the bank’s structure and processes to mitigate
conflicts of interest and facilitate the achievement of bank’s
strategic goals. The bank endeavors to strike a balance
between economic and social goals with commitment

to achieve optimal use of resources while conducting its
business in accordance with law and delivering professional
banking services to customers.

The responsibility for corporate governance lies primarily
with the board of directors by setting the “tone at the top”
and providing oversight to ensure that risks taken by the
bank are within acceptable levels. In addition, the board
approves corporate values to guide the board itself, senior
management and employees in making decisions and
carrying out their activities.

The board of directors exercises the corporate power of the
bank, conducts its business and controls its property. The
powers of the board of directors as conferred by law are
original and cannot be revoked by the stockholders. Given
such powers, the directors are cognizant of their duty to
exercise sound and objective judgment for the best interest
of the bank.

The board of directors assumes certain responsibilities
to different constituencies or stakeholders, i. e.,

the bank itself, its stockholders, its depositors and
other creditors, its management and employees, the
regulators, deposit insurer and the public at large.
These constituencies or stakeholders have the right

to expect that the institution is being run in a prudent
and sound manner. The board is primarily responsible
for approving and overseeing the implementation of

Sterling Bank of Asia

the bank's strategic objectives, risk strategy, corporate
governance and corporate values. Further, the board

is also responsible for monitoring and overseeing

the performance of senior management as the latter
manages the day-to-day affairs of the institution.

Composition of the Board of Directors

The board is composed of thirteen (13) members. The
directors, who were elected during the annual stockholders
meeting, are qualified business professionals with integrity,
competence, relevant education, diligence and experience in
directing the bank’s activities and policy directions. Three (3)
of the thirteen (13) members of the board are independent
directors who are capable of taking an individual stand to
protect the interest of shareholders and all stakeholders

of the bank. The directors are nominated and voted by the
bank’s stockholders annually, and each serves a one-year
term until the election/re-election of a new set of directors.
The chairman of the board is elected by the directors
themselves.

Board Committees

The board of directors created the Corporate Governance,
Audit and Risk Management Committees to facilitate
efficiency and allow deeper focus in specific/specialized
areas. These committees have their respective board-
approved charters that describe their specific mandates
and the duties and responsibilities of members. These
committees are composed of members of the board of
directors, each with at least two (2) independent directors.

= Corporate Governance Committee

The committee assists the board in fulfilling its
corporate governance responsibilities and ensures the
board's effectiveness and due observance of corporate
governance principles and guidelines. It is composed

of five (5) members of the board of directors, three

(3) of whom are independent directors, including the
chairperson. The members have sufficient experience in
corporate governance, business management, personnel
management and organizational behavior.

= Audit Committee

The committee provides oversight over the institution’s
financial reporting policies, practices and control, and
internal and external audit functions. It is composed

of three (3) members of the board of directors, two

(2) of whom are independent directors, including the
chairperson. The members have sufficient understanding
of the financial reporting process, operational structures
and internal control system.

» Risk Management Committee

The committee is responsible for the development and
oversight of the risk management program of the bank.
It is composed of seven (7) members of the board of
directors, three (3) of whom are independent directors,
including the chairperson. The members possess a range

of expertise, as well as adequate knowledge of the
institution’s risk exposures, and can develop appropriate
strategies for preventing losses and minimizing their
impact when they occur.

The above committees serve as oversight on management
and on the bank’s overall operations with direct reporting
line to the board of directors. Other committees created by
the board of directors are as follows:

» Executive Committee

= Trust Committee

» Related Party Transactions Committee

» Loan Committee

» Information Technology Committee

» Bids and Awards Committee

» Compensation Committee

Committee memberships are assigned based on expertise
and in compliance with the requirements stipulated

by each committee. Directors are required to attend
regular committee meetings. Prior to board meetings, all
directors are provided with documents on bank activities,
developments, financial performance, and other relevant
information requiring their feedback and approval. The
board ensures that returns to the shareholders on their
investments are maximized without making compromises
on the provisions of law and the rightful interests of all the
stakeholders.

Board of directors has conferred senior management

with executive powers and responsibility in managing the
day-to-day affairs of the bank. Senior management is
composed of seasoned professional bankers, whose core
competencies in banking operations were gained mostly
from universal and commercial banks. Leading the bank’s
senior management is President and Chief Executive Officer
Cecilio D. San Pedro, who has been key in the sustainable
growth and development of the bank. Assisting him in
creating value in the organization are the group heads,
namely Clayton T. Lee, Executive Vice President & Treasurer;
Ralph B. Cadiz, Executive Vice President & Retail Banking
Head; Benson J. Hari-Ong, Executive Vice President &
Commercial Lending Head; Dalisay N. Rubio, Senior Vice
President & Controllership Group Head; Alex Luis M.
Pesigan, Senior Vice President & Operations Group Head;
and, Isabel Y. San Pablo, Senior Vice President & Consumer
Lending Group Head.

Upholding the bank's ethical standards is driven by the
Senior Management Committee. Each and every employee
of the bank is expected to adhere to the bank’s code of
conduct administered by the Human Resources Group and
the Discipline, Ethics and Values Committee (DEVCOM)
providing the necessary oversight in its implementation.

Sterling Bank of Asia views remuneration as part of
good corporate governance. In keeping this principle, the
bank adopts remuneration policies which promote good

performance, convey acceptable risk-taking behaviour,
reinforce the bank’s operating and risk culture and
encourage employees to act in the interest of the bank.

The Compensation Committee, a board committee tasked
to uphold the bank’s objective of utilizing its remuneration
resources wisely and effectively, regularly reviews the
remuneration policies, processes and outcomes to
continuously attract, retain and motivate employees. All
employees are measured and assessed based on their Key
Result Areas and overall contribution to the achievement of
the bank’s performance targets.

In addition, the bank aims to engage its employees with
long-term opportunities and train them to deliver service
excellence. The bank has an institutionalized annual
Employee Engagement Survey and Leadership Survey that
serve as feedback mechanism for the entire organization.
Results of the Leadership Survey are incorporated in

the employees’ performance ratings while results of the
Employee Engagement Survey provide input to the bank’s
strategic planning process in as far as organizational goals
are concerned.

In line with the bank’s thrust to promote fairness and
transparency, all related party transactions (RPT) are
conducted on an arm'’s length basis in accordance with
banking laws and regulations. These transactions are
reviewed and vetted by the RPT Committee and further
elevated to the board for independent review and final
approval. To avoid conflict of interest, involved parties do
not participate in deliberations.

Note: Refer to 2016 Audited Financial Statements for Related
Party Transaction details.

Sterling Bank of Asia recognizes the importance of
consumer protection and is committed to protect
customers' rights as consumer of financial products and
services. As such, the bank’s policies and procedures are
designed to ensure fair banking practices by providing
proper disclosure on the features, benefits and risks of

the bank’s products and services to enable clients to make
informed decisions in availing financial services. The bank is
likewise committed to deliver secure banking platform and
activities to prevent fraud, protect customer information
and promote legal enforceability of bank’s agreements. The
bank’s Customer Service Management unit provides for

a mechanism to handle client inquiries and concerns and
ensures that these are properly addressed.

External Auditors

The bank, as an institution with fiduciary responsibility,

is subject to external audits that provide independent
assurance on financial and non-financial information to
meet regulatory and other stakeholder requirements. The
bank is audited annually by its external auditor, Reyes
Tacandong & Co. (RT&Co.).
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Organizational Structure Risk Management

‘ Board of Directors

‘ Chairman of the Board

In 2016, the risk landscape highlights the speed of
technological change with cyber risk concerns in focus
and geo-political risks as a result of United Kingdom's
decision to exit the European Union, as well as the
turnout of the Philippine and US presidential elections.
This is amplified by environmental risks due to disruptive
weather events globally.

[ Corporate Secretary ]

N I

[ Executive Committee Bids and Awards Committee ]

J \ Evidently, the financial sector is not immune to these

risks. Risk events have shown the financial sector being
the target of various cyber-attacks. Shocks to the global

Compensation Committee ] financial markets were seen because of social and political

incidents. In addition, weather-related events disrupt
normal banking operations, especially in the case of the
[ Risk Management Audit C it ) ( _ Ph}hpplnes — being susceptible to climate change and
udit Committee Corporate Governance Committee being in the pathway of storms and typhoons.
. Recognizing that this is the environment where the
Audit bank operates, Sterling Bank of Asia has committedly

endeavored to subject its risk management system to
[ Loan Committee Information Technology Committee ] arigorous process of review and improvement in order ‘

~

[ Risk Management Committee

J

to meet the demands of a constantly evolving risk and
regulatory landscape.

\ e

[ Related Party Transactions Committee Trust Committee ] Risk Management is a critical component of the business

of banking as it guides all risk-taking activities in attaining
strategic objectives within the board-set risk appetite and
i tolerance levels. At Sterling Bank of Asia, it is integrated
[ President and CEO ] in all five business segments, namely Retail Banking,
Commercial Lending, Consumer Lending, Treasury and

Trust Operations. Business units ensure that underlying
risks are identified, mitigated and managed through

[ Asset and Liability ] [ Discipline, Ethics ] control mechanisms embedded in their respective

J \

Committee and Values Committee business processes, following the bank's Enterprise Risk

Management Framework.

Senior Management
Committee

] [ Credit Committee ]

Over the past few years, the bank has focused on growing
its core lending business, particularly on the side of

the consumer lending segment given its growth and
Marketing Security profit potentials. The focus on lending is supported by
a two-pronged strategy, namely strengthening credit

Retail i Consumer i
Treasury Commercial Operations Information

. Legal Human
Banki Controllersh
anking Lending Lending ontrollership

Technology Services Resources

underwriting and intensifying collection efforts. This is
to ensure that with loan portfolio growth, asset quality
is preserved. With this two-pronged strategy, the bank
has managed to grow its portfolio by 22% in 2016 hitting
Business Collections | |Management B PhP22 billion in total loan portfolio and at the same time
Support and Support Banking achieving lower non-performing loans with NPL ratios
Services Insurance Services Sz consistently better than peers.

Expanding the Consumer Lending business will continue
to be the driving force for Sterling Bank of Asia in the
coming years, coupled with expected modest growth in
other business lines. Given these, Sterling Bank of Asia

Quality has intensified management of its credit risk exposures
Area Assurance Business and in 2016, has successfully rolled out new consumer

. hannel .
Sales & Branch Solutions EElIEsS loan risk scorecards.
Operations
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Board-Level Committees

RlSk Management Framework R|5k Ol‘ganization and Governance The Executive Committee  Chairman: The Risk Management Chairman:

. - . . I . assists the board in the Gregorio T. Yu Committee is responsible for Nilo L. Pacheco, Jr.
Sterhng Bank of Asia’s Rlsk Management Framework In Sterling Bank qf A;la, the FESPOHSIbIht\/ fo.r risk spans general supervision, Members: developing and overseeing the ~ Members:
is supported by 4 key pillars, namely Strategy, across the organization. Following the four lines of defense administration, and Ruben C. Tiu Risk Management Program William L. Chua
Organization and Governance, Models and Measures, structure which segregate duties between front, middle and management of the Bansan C. Choa of the bank as well as the Juliet C. Go

and Infrastructure.

Strategy

Sterling Bank of Asia’s philosophy places strategic
value in integrating risk assessment in setting
corporate objectives. Risk analysis covering a

back office functions, accountability for risk management is
shared by all.

1. Front office units which enter into business
transactions and thus take on risk exposures for
the bank, identify specific risks inherent in their
respective products and services. They ensure that
risk-taking activities are well managed and within

Executive Committee

bank’s affairs, and is
thus actively engaged
in overseeing the
development and
execution of the bank’s
business strategies.

Cecilio D. San Pedro
John Y. Tiu, Jr.

Ignatius F. Yenko

Atty. Lamberto R. Villena

Alternate Member:
Harris Edsel D. Jacildo
Atty. A. Bayani K. Tan
Bernadette Cindy C. Tiu
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Committee (RMC)

Trust Unit. The Committee

approves risk strategy and the
supporting risk management

policies and procedures,

ensuring the soundness of risk
management practices, while
fully considering the bank’s

risk exposures.

Harris Edsel D. Jacildo
Atty. A. Bayani K. Tan
Atty. Lamberto R. Villena
Cecilio D. San Pedro

Alternate Member:
Gregorio T. Yu

spectrum of economic, political, social, technological, acceptable tolerance levels, The Audit Committee Chairman: The IT Committee oversees Chairman:

legal and environmental aspec’ts complemented 2. Back office units meanwhile implement transactions is responsible for William L. Chua the deve!opment of the bank's William L. Chua

by an assessment of the bank’s strengths and core ensuring risk controls are in place overseeing and reviewing ~ Members: Information Technology Members:
competencies, as well as the threats and vulnerabilities 3 The middle office function. meanwhile is performed the effectiveness of the Bansan C. Choa Systems and Infrastructure. Bernadette Cindy C. Tiu
facing the institution, provide for a strong foundation ' ' bank’s system of controls, Juliet C. Go It ensures that systems are Harris Edsel D. Jacildo

in building key assumptions for strategic planning. A
good understanding of the risk landscape, including

the uncertainties and complexities of the business

of banking, allows Sterling Bank of Asia to develop
adaptive business plans and strategies to better
manage the pace of growth. The bank likewise ensures
that activities in pursuit of these business objectives are
within acceptable risk boundaries.

mainly by Risk Management Group, a unit
independent of the business line, that establishes
the system of controls and the framework for risk
management.

4. The fourth line of defense is the Internal Audit and
Compliance functions that provide the assurance and
validation mechanisms to assess the effectiveness of
instituted risk management systems.

Audit Committee

including financial and
operational controls, as
well as compliance and
risk management.

Alternate members:
Bernadette Cindy C. Tiu
Ignatius F. Yenko
Gregorio T. Yu

Atty. Lamberto R. Villena

IT Committee

embedded with multi-layered

controls in order to protect

bank information and technical

infrastructure.

Nilo L. Pacheco, Jr.
Cecilio D. San Pedro

The Corporate Governance Chairman: The Loan Committee manages  Chairman:

3 Committee assists the Nilo L. Pacheco, Jr. credit risk within the lending Bansan C. Choa
5 board in fulfilling its Members: ] portfolio and monitors lending ~ Members:
1st Line of Defense 2nd Line of Defense 3rd Line of Defense 4th Line of Defense '=BPT)l Ccorporate governance Bansan C. Choa g P units' activities to ensure that  John Y. Tiu, Jr.
g ol responsibilities and William L. Chua E I=)l they are carried outin a manner Gregorio T. Yu
. . - . (<@ oversees periodic Juliet C. Go £ Sfl  consistent with board-approved Cecilio D. San Pedro
Business Line Back Office Risk oINSl assessment of board Ruben C. Tiu S -f strategic plans and objectives.  Ignatius F. Yenko
Management Controls Management Q E performance, as well o S The committee reviews Atty. Lamberto R. Villena
e 8 as the various Board % (= the effectiveness of credit
g_ Committees and Executive 3 management systems, policies, Alternate Member:
S Management. and processes for measuring, Bernadette Cindy C. Tiu
Any risk management system needs strong leadership to be able to achieve goals both under normal circumstances and o monitoring, and controlling risk
challenging situations. Thus, the bank’s board of directors sets the tone as it provides the bank's strategic directions. It has exposures.
overall responsibility for risk as it approves and reviews the bank’s business plans and strategies, ensuring that activities The Bids and Awards Chairman: The Compensation Chairman:
are within acceptable risk boundaries. It oversees the implementation of the bank’s Enterprise Risk Management System Committee oversees John Y. Tiy, Jr. Committee is responsible Ruben C. Tiu
that provides for a comprehensive framework for the identification, measurement, monitoring and control of bank risk the bank’s procurement Members: for reviewing, screening, Members:
exposures. The board is supported by various board and management level committees in its risk oversight functions. processes and the Bansan C. Choa and approving management Bansan C. Choa
implementation of Cecilio D. San Pedro recommendations on John'Y. Tiu, Jr.

These various committees are responsible for developing, managing and monitoring specific risks at various levels in the

organization, as well as recognizing early warning signals and devising appropriate risk responses to mitigate risks. Nilo L. Pacheco, Ir.

Atty. Lamberto R. Villena

compensation and other
Human Resource-related
matters.

Ignatius F. Yenko
Dulce Yenko-Edillor

procurement contracts

as part of the bank's
operational risk
management, while also
ensuring transparency and
good governance in the

Bids and Awards
Committee (BAC)
Compensation
Committee

Board of Directors

process.
The Trust Committee is Chairman: The Related Party Chairman:
responsible for overseeing  Nilo L. Pacheco, Jr. Transactions Committee is Juliet C. Go
the investment activities ~ Members: responsible for screening Members:
of the bank’s Trust unit. Ruben C. Tiu related party accounts for William L. Chua

Cecilio D. San Pedro

Harris Edsel D. Jacildo

board approval.

Corporate
Governance
Committee

Risk
Management
Committee

Harris Edsel D. Jacildo
Hazel M. Navarro

Loan
Committee

Audit
Committee

IT
Committee

Trust
Committee

Executive
Committee

Bids & Awards
Committee

Related Party
Committee

Compensation
Committee

Sterling Bank of Asia
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President and CEO

Discipline, Ethics and
Values Committee
(DEVCom)

ensures that the bank
standards and code of
conduct are adhered to and
exercises disciplinary powers
on infringement of the rules
governing banking activities.
As part of the bank’s
operational and reputational
risk management, the bank
espouses all its personnel
to adhere to the code of
conduct and perform their
fiduciary responsibility
consistent with the bank's
vision and core values.

Sterling Bank of Asia

ST

Senior Management
Committee (SMC)
exercises general
supervision, administration,
and management of the
bank’s operations, and

as such, oversees the
operational and strategic
risk management.

Credit Committee
(CreCom)

evaluates and screens all
credit proposals requiring the
approval of the president,
LoanCom or board, and
likewise monitors credit
underwriting activities done
at the management level;
ensures that credit risk is
within the board-set risk
tolerance levels and that
proposals comply with the
credit underwriting standards
as set in the bank’s policies
and procedures.

Asset-Liability
Committee (ALCo)

is responsible for ensuring
that the bank and all its
legal vehicles maintain
adequate liquidity, sufficient
capital, and the appropriate
funding to meet all
business requirements and
comply with all regulatory
requirements; responsible
for building a stable funding
structure by managing the
long-term profiles of the
bank’s asset and liability
maturities; manages the
statement of financial
position and ensures that
strategies are in accordance
with adequate liquidity,
capital and diversified
funding, and establishes
asset-liability pricing
policies consistent with the
bank's strategies.

Assisting the Sterling Bank of Asia’s Board and Senior Management in its risk oversight function is the Risk Management
Group, headed by the bank’s Chief Risk Officer. The group is composed of four departments, namely the Operational Risk
Department, Credit Risk and Control Department, Market and Liquidity Risk Department and the Information Security and
IT Risk Department, which provide the support structure to develop frameworks and the system of risk controls to manage

the bank’s significant risk exposures.

 Operational loss data tracking and reporting

« Operational risk identification, quantification and
assessment

» Methodologies in the conduct of risk and control self-
assessment (RCSA) across the institution

¢ Comprehensive Business Continuity Program

« Analysis of operational risk management processes
within the bank

« Monitoring of Risk Treatment Action Plans (RTAP)

« Credit portfolio risk management and analytics
¢ Bank’s Internal Credit Risk Rating System
« Credit risk identification, quantification and assessment

« Detection of credit concentrations and problem
accounts

« Establishment of credit limits and credit underwriting
standards

« Credit policy development

« Analytics on the bank’s market, liquidity and interest
rate risk

« Risk identification and assessment affecting the
bank’s trust, treasury operations, and financial market
activities

» Market risk quantification and assessment

 Contingency measures to address the impact of
market shocks and liquidity stress scenarios

 Technology risk management
« Information security program management

« [T and IS risk identification, quantification and
assessment

* Access control reviews

¢ IS incident management

2016 Annual Report
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Risk Models And Measurements
Risk measurements and monitoring activities provide for the necessary information on the bank’s risk exposures. The

bank makes use of a combination of industry-accepted quantitative and qualitative techniques, including Value at Risk and
Earnings at Risk measures, gap analysis, loan loss estimation methodologies using probabilities of defaults and loss rates
for credit risk, the use of internal credit rating systems and credit scorecards, and various key risk indicators and metrics
within an established risk dashboard. These risk models are subjected to periodic back-testing, review and validation in
order to determine its effectiveness in measuring levels of risk and to factor in the changing regulatory and risk environment
that may challenge key assumptions from which models were built. Results of risk monitoring is reported on a periodic basis
to the bank's Senior Management and the Risk Management Committee (RMC).

OPERATIONAL a. Four lines of defense a. Regular Risk Control and a. Incident Reports
b. Operational Loss Self-Assessment b.  Corrective Action Tracking
Database maintenance b. Loss Event Reporting c. Operational Risk
c. Operational Risk and c.  Risk Mapping Management (ORM)
Control Self-Assessment  d.  Business Continuity reports to the RMC
d. Product risk assessments Planning d. Close Coordination with
e. Business Continuity e. Key Risk Indicator (KRI) Internal Audit and IT
Management Monitoring
COMPLIANCE a. Compliance Program a. Compliance testing a. Regular reporting and
b. Review of bank contracts ~ b. Information updating of regulatory
and transactions dissemination (e.g. BSP concerns to SMC, Board/
c. Know Your Customer circulars, manual of ExCom and the Corporate
(KYC) regulations for banks, BIR Governance Committee
d. Know Your Employees and AMLC regulations) to (CorGov)
(KYE) concerned units
c. Training and seminars
d. Regular assessment of
Compliance Program
e. Monitoring of fines and
penalties (actual and
probable)
STRATEGIC a. Internal and external a. Impactassessmentbased a. Regularreporting and
environment scanning on internal and external updating of performance
b. Strategic and Capital environmental scanning vs. objectives to SMC and
Planning b. Performance Board/ExCom
c. Performance Management
Management System — Business
d. Commitment to good Segment Management
corporate governance Performance Review
as an integral part of
strategic thrusts
REPUTATIONAL a. Code of Conduct a. Media scanning a. SLA Reporting
b.  Know Your Customer b.  Proactive solicitation of b. Management Reporting
(KYC) Program customer feedback of significant issues
c. Media relations c. Customer service c. Internal and external
d. Customer feedback and management for communication
complaints management complaints and client
e. Strengthened operational concerns
controls d. Service Level Agreements
f.  Financial Consumer (SLA)
Protection Program e. Client Survey Forms

CREDIT a. 10-tiered Credit Risk a. Central Liability System a. Annual updates on
Rating System b. Limits: account risk rating
b. Classification of Credits » Single Borrowers' Limit ~ b.  Monthly credit risk
c. Concentration by industry = Group Exposures profiling / management
with risk classification, » Industry Exposures reporting to the RMC
large exposures, » Counterparty Limits c. PD&ITL status reporting
loan tenor, collateral = Country Limits
cover and investment c. Loan Provisioning
counterparty exposures d. Herfindahl Hirschman
d. Impairment Loss Index (HHI)
Estimation e. PD&ITLimpacton CAR
e. Stress Testing
MARKET AND a. Concentration by type of a. Limits: a. Automated daily risk
INTEREST RATE investment, tenor and » Position Limit management, reporting
currency denomination = Value at Risk (VaR) of limits, and P&L to
b. Stress Testing Limit the President and other
c.  Sensitivity Analysis » Alertlevels (1 & 2) concerned parties
d. Gap Analysis » Stop Loss Limit b. Monthly Market Risk
e. Review of new and » Traders Limit management reporting
existing investments and » Earning at Risk (EaR) to risk-taking units, the
products Limit president, ALCo and RMC
b. Value at Risk (VaR)
estimates
c. Marked to market
valuations
d. Interest rate gap
e. Exposure/position limits
and duration limits
on investment types/
products, countries, and
issuer
f.  Monitoring of Off-Market
transactions
g. Back testing to manage
model risk
LIQUIDITY a. Concentration by type of a.  Maximum Cumulative a. Weekly reporting of
investment, tenor and Outflow (MCO) balance sheet profile to
currency denomination b. Determining funding ALCo
b. Stress Testing requirements b. Monthly Liquidity Risk
c.  Sensitivity Analysis c.  Monitoring of financial management reporting
d. Gap Analysis liquidity ratios to RMC
e. Contingency Funding
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Plan

Stress testing and scenario analyses are likewise performed in order to complement risk metrics that generally capture risk

exposures under normal banking conditions. These stress tests are applied on material risk exposures both at the portfolio and
sub-portfolio levels, measure the impact of varying degrees of shocks on the bank’s income, cost and capital structure, using a
combination of regulatory-driven and internally-developed scenarios. With these stress tests, the bank is able to gain strategic

insights to better manage uncertainties and determine when contingency plans and exit strategies become necessary.
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Infrastructure

People, processes, structures and technological capabilities
comprise the pillars of Sterling Bank of Asia’s risk infrastructure
and serve as the backbone of the bank’s Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) System. ERM provides for an integrated
framework, driven by strategy, designed to add value,
considering a multiple stakeholder perspective. It promotes

a holistic outlook to managing risks, as opposed to the silo
paradigm, as it establishes the critical linkages between the
various business activities across the enterprise and their
associated risks. With the integrated view provided by ERM
framework, identification of critical risks amidst a changing
landscape as well as the interdependencies of risks are achieved.
This allows people from multiple disciplines to focus on risk
concerns and the bank’s senior management and the board to
drive a consistent treatment of risk across the organization.

In any organization, the people factor is an integral component of
its risk management system because of their role in handling risk
and being a source of risk themselves. In Sterling Bank of Asia,
accountability for risk is shared by all across the enterprise, with
each employee made to understand their participation in the risk
management process as they carry out their respective tasks.
The bank's onboarding process puts emphasis on the role of

the employees in addressing specific risks within their particular
organizational area, given the mindset that identification,
assessment and mitigation of risk should be part of the scope

of work of all bank employees and not only of those in the risk
management middle office function.

Various training programs spearheaded by the bank’s Center
for Learning (CFL) provide the support structure to promote
the culture of risk awareness bank-wide. These include the
institutionalized New Hires Orientation (NHO) Program, where
employees are introduced to the bank’'s ERM framework, and
supplemented by role-based risk management education that
provide learning and development programs designed to meet
specific risk management training needs of people outside the
formal risk management function.

Know Your Employees principle is practiced in the bank as
part of human resource management given that the banking
sector operates on trust and confidence. Pre-employment
checks are performed as part of the vetting process coupled
with performance and routine checks during the period of
employment as part of internal controls.

Business processes in the bank are established via a multiple
stakeholder approach aimed at improving efficiencies,
eliminating redundancies and providing for a shared
understanding of risk and controls across the process

value chain. These are supported by the bank’s policies

and procedures that define the governing standards to
manage the key risks inherent in banking operations, namely
credit, market, interest rate, liquidity, operational, strategic,
compliance and reputational risks. Policies that define

risks, risk tolerances, corporate governance and oversight,
responsibilities, and accountabilities provide business units
with guidance on their various risk-taking activities to ensure
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alignment with board-set expectations. And to ensure that
these policies remain relevant and responsive to changing
risk and business environment, these are subjected to
periodic review and updating.

The strength of any risk management system lies in its
ability to capture and analyze data. This is where the
value of information technology comes into play as it
provides the infrastructure to capture, maintain and
access data necessary for the organization to make
risk-informed decisions. The bank’s IT Group handles the
data management facility to enable risk reporting and
Management Information System (MIS) for performance

monitoring and decision-making. The IT Group, together
with its key business partners comprised of a network of
vendors and technology providers, likewise provides the
necessary infrastructure to automate critical business
activities with embedded control structures to support a
common risk architecture across the organization.

In 2016, as part of strengthening IT infrastructure, the bank
has embarked on major technological enhancements with the
upgrade of the bank's core banking system and the acquisition
of a new treasury system. These system upgrades covering
both software and hardware components provide for a more
robust support structure to manage risk across the bank.

Types of Risks

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the bank

if a borrower or counterparty is unable to meet its
contractual obligations such as required payments.
Credit risk is present in majority of the bank’s
business activities such as lending, trade finance and
investment activities.

Credit risk is the bank's largest risk exposure
contributing 90.57% of the bank’s risk weighted
assets for 2016. The bank uses the standardized
approach to determine capital for credit risk.

Lending activities from the Commercial and Consumer
Lending Groups comprise the majority of the bank’s
credit risk exposures. The combined loan portfolio of
the two groups stood at PhP22 billion, exhibiting a
23.14% year-on-year growth. The auto loan segment
has been the primary driver of growth for the lending
units as demand for new car units and automative
financing have been on the rise. The consumer
lending segment has outpaced the growth in the
commercial lending portfolio. This is supportive of the
bank's strategy of gradually shifting portfolio mix in
favor of consumer lending. For 2016, Consumer and
Commercial Loans mix registered at 48% and 52%,
respectively, from 41% and 59% a year ago.

IN BILLIONS ( PhP) 2016 2015
COMMERCIAL LOANS 11.56 10.81
CONSUMER LOANS 10.85 7.39
TOTAL 22.41 18.20

Combined Commerical
and Consumer Lending Portfolio

Il Commercial Loans

Consumer Loans

PhP 10.85B

2016

52%

PhP 11.56 B

PhP 7.39B

2015

PhP 10.81 B

59%
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CREDIT RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS

2016 2015
(in Million PhP) (in Million PhP)
Net Carrying Risk Weighted Net Carrying  Risk Weighted
Amount Amount Amount Amount
0% Risk Weight

Cash On Hand 625 689
Due From BSP 3,143 3,108
Available For Sale Financial Assets 673 1,291
Unquoted Debt Securities 614 714
Loans Arising From Repurchase Agreements 1,085

Loans To The Extent Covered By Hold-Out 236 234
Loans To The Extent Covered By Marginal Deposits 4 2
Loans To The Extent Guaranteed By HGC 1,408 1,535

Total Subject To 0% Risk Weight 7788 - 7573 -]

20% Risk Weight
Claims Guaranteed By Foreign Incorporated Banks 972 992
Interbank Call Loans — 100
Claims On Philippine Incorporated Private Enterprise 220 301
Claims Guaranteed By Foreign Incorporated Private Enterprise 211

T 75 0 B

Total Subject To 20% Risk Weight

50% Risk Weight
Loans To Individual For Housing Purposes 875 602
Foreign Currency Denominated Claims On Or Portions Of Claims 470 -

Guaranteed By Or Collateralized By Foreign Currency
Denominated Securities Issued By The Philippine National - 517
Government & the BSP

75% Risk Weight

Qualified MSME Loans 2,461 2,569

Total Subject To 75% Risk Weight 2,461 1,845 2,569 1,927

100% Risk Weight
NPL To Individuals For Housing Purposes 12 157
Other Assets 19,223 14,956

Total Subject To 100% Risk Weight 19,235 19,235 15113 15,113 ]

150% Risk Weight
All NPL Except NPL Individual For Housing Purposes 925 888
Real And Other Properties Acquired 168

1,093 1,640 _ 1,464

Total Subject To 150% Risk Weight

Risk-Weighted On Balance Sheet 23,671 19,384
Risk-Weighted Off Balance Sheet 13 10
Counterparty (Trading/Banking)

Total Credit Risk | 236w —m
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The commercial lending portfolio stood at PhP11.560 billion.
Majority of these loans are short-term working capital loans
granted on clean basis as the bank practices risk-based
lending which factors cash flow consideration in the credit
structure. Repayment capacity is established through cash
flow assessments with the acceptance of collateral being a
secondary consideration as a risk mitigation technique. The
fact that a substantial portion of the bank’s commercial loan
portfolio is unsecured is indicative of the implementation of
risk-based lending standards over collateral-based lending.

Commercial credit structures are matched with borrower’s
business financing requirements. Credit facilities come in
the form of loan lines for working capital requirements,
receivables financing and factoring, medium term loans for
capital expenditures, floor stock financing for automotive
dealers, and international and domestic trade financing with
credit terms matched with client's funding gap.

Commercial loans are subjected to the bank’s Internal

Credit Risk Rating System (ICRRS) wherein the bank uses a
10-scale rating system to profile commercial loans into High
Grade, Standard Grade and Impaired categories.

RISKRATING CLASSIFICATION CREDIT QUALITY

1 Excellent High Grade

2 Strong High Grade

3 Good High Grade

4 Satisfactory Standard Grade
5 Acceptable Standard Grade
6 Weak Standard Grade
7 Poor Impaired

8 Substandard Impaired

9 Doubtful Impaired

10 Loss Impaired

The rating system is divided into two parts: the borrower's
risk rating (BRR), and the facility risk rating (FRR). The BRR
uses a combination of financial indicators, management
assessments and industry features which combine both
quantitative and qualitative analyses as factors to measure
credit risk. On the other hand, FRR takes into account the
credit enhancements derived from the credit structure

as well as risk mitigation mechanisms. Credit ratings are
assigned during time of loan approval for large accounts,
and post approval for management-level approvals. Credit
ratings are being updated and re-evaluated annually or as
necessary given that material changes to the borrower’s
credit worthiness.

As the Philippine economy continues to grow, opportunities
abound for the consumer loans segment as consumer
confidence and disposable income continue to improve.
Consumer lending has seen double-digit growth in 2016.
With the operationalization of the Credit Information
Corporation (CIC), increased transparency in the system is
expected to strengthen and boost retail lending.

Consumer loans are underwritten based on the bank's credit
acceptance criteria built on a set of borrower attributes. In
2016, the bank rolled out new consumer credit scorecards
to improve the current underwriting process and customer
profiling mechanism. The bank takes a product-based and
customer-centric approach in its retail lending operations.
The consumer loans are divided between secured and
unsecured product lines. Secured retail products include
auto and real estate loans while personal, salary and
employee loans make up unsecured retail products. These
loans are designed to be used to finance the personal needs
of the bank’s customers as an alternative to credit card
obligation as well as to finance SMEs.

The bank manages concentration risk by spreading risk
across various industry sectors. However, lending units
have certain industries identified as their target market
and strategic focus aligned with the risk appetite set by
Sterling Bank of Asia’s Board of Directors. Consumer
lending is focused on the other community, social and
personal activities sectors, as well as the real estate
sector. Commercial lending, meanwhile, focuses on funding
SMEs, which are primarily operating in the wholesale

and retail trade sector. In 2016, the bank also introduced
improvements in its industry risk rating framework, which
takes into account cyclicality and structural dimensions in
the risk assessment.
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Transportation, storage and communication B sy

Other community, social and personal activities

Industry Sector Distribution of Loans and Receivables (%)

Electricity, gas and water supply | 828%
Hotels and restaurants | 882
Construction | %?319
Mines and quarrying ] 82;
2.09

Agricultural, hunting and forestry R

4.35

8.49

Manufacturing - | 7.59

9.37

Financial intermediaries I -

17.38
Real et | 1525

e e e | 155

0 5

Sterling Bank of Asia’s credit risk management
system provides for a mechanism to manage risk
both at the individual and portfolio levels. At the
individual level, borrowers undergo a comprehensive
assessment of creditworthiness as part of the
bank’s loan underwriting process. Cash flow is

the primary basis of repayment capacity in the
bank’s evaluation process. For business loans, it

is accompanied by a comprehensive evaluation

of business fundamentals that factor in socio-
economic, political, environmental, legal and
technological aspects in order to provide for a

more forward looking approach to ascertain cash
flow generation potential. Assessments provide

for safeguards against over indebtedness as part

of the bank’s commitment to uphold consumer
protection standards. At the portfolio level, the bank
has established a system of limit structures to avoid
excessive credit concentration. These include limits
for single and group of related borrowers, industry
sector exposures, and country and cross-border
risks, all of which are subject to annual reviews.

Sterling Bank of Asia

24.02

32.68

I 4:2.81

10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45

M 2016 2015

Portfolio Breakdown by Security (%)

Chattel Mortgage
Real Estate Mortgage
Deposits

Other security support

B Unsecured

PhP 7.150 B

48.91%

PhP 10.966 B

PhP 4.020 B

PhP0.236 B

PhP 0.048 B

In terms of the approval process, embedded controls
include the adherence to the "Four Eyes Principle”
following a system of delegated authorities as
approved by the board.

The Loan Committee (LoanCom) serves as the
governance body overseeing the bank’s credit risk
management system. It reviews and approves the
credit risk strategies employed by the business units
which define their respective target markets and
product offerings. Approval of credit policies which
provide parameters for lending and credit risk-taking
and the corresponding risk control framework is also
done at the LoanCom level.

At the management level, the Credit Committee
(CreCom) takes charge of overseeing the
implementation of the instituted credit risk
management systems. It ensures alignment of the
bank’s credit risk-taking activities with the board-
approved strategies and makes certain that credit
underwriting is within set limits and thresholds.

Credit risk exposures are monitored and reported
regularly to the Credit, Loan and Risk Management
Committees. The development of credit risk
management mechanism is the responsibility of
the Credit Risk and Control Department of the Risk
Management Group, which serves as the support
structure of the Risk Management Committee.
Formulation and implementation of credit risk
policy, risk measurements and monitoring
mechanisms are also functions of the Credit Risk
and Control Department.

As a testament to the bank's prudent credit risk
underwriting procedures, the bank’s overall credit
risk profile has significantly improved. The bank
has significantly closed the gap between the bank
and the industry's NPL ratio during the 1st half

of 2016, and has consistently outperformed the
industry during the 2nd half of the year. As of
December 2016, the bank’s NPL ratio is at 3.96%
which is significantly better than the industry
average of 4.71%.

Credit exposures also reside in the bank's treasury
trading and investment portfolios. Credit risk in
the Treasury Portfolio is managed by monitoring
the prices of securities which provide indications
of credit risk premium priced by the market. Credit
limit structures such as position limits, counterparty
limits and country limits are likewise in place to
ensure that investment activities are carried out
within board-set boundaries. Counterparty risk is
generally reduced by netting agreements which
provide for single net settlement for all exposures
covered by the agreement.

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%
Securities AFS
Indonesia 36
Philippines 1,313
Sri Lanka 25
us
Grand Total 1,374

AFS

HFT

HFT

457

44
501

*Fcy Denominated converted @ USD/PhP 49.72
*Amount in PhP millions

FCDU
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

RATINGS
AAA
BBB

B+
ccc
Total

AFS

108
25
36

169

AFS

HFT

HFT
44

44

*Fcy Denominated converted @ USD/PhP 49.72
*Amount in PhP millions

RBU
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%
RATINGS AFS
PRS AAA 416
BBB 672
Not Rated 117
Total 1,205

*Amount in PhP millions
* HFT exclusive of FX derivatives amounting to PhP0.05 million
*AFS - Available for Sale

*HFT - Held for Trading

Source: Outstanding Investment Report as of December 2016 from Treasury Operations

AFS

HFT

HFT

457

457

Indonesia
[l Philippines
Sri Lanka
us
TOTAL %
36 2%
1,771 95%
25 1%
L4 2%
1,875 100%
AAA
M BBB
B+
ccc
TOTAL %
[ 21%
108 51%
25 11%
36 17%
213 100%
PRS AAA
Il BBB
Not Rated
TOTAL %
416 25%
1,129 68%
117 7%
1,662 100%
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Market and Interest Rate Risk

Market risk arises from uncertainty in market prices and
changes in interest rates. Trading and non-trading portfolios
are exposed to market and interest rate risk.

In order to address liquidity and statutory reserve
requirements, RMC-approved limits are set, reviewed and
recalibrated annually in order to guide treasury investment
activities. Particular risk factors are captured in order to
provide parameters by which the bank conducts its asset
and liability management.

The Risk Management Committee serves as the overall
governing body for market and interest rate risks. It is
supported by the bank’s Asset and Liability Committee (ALCo)
comprised of the group heads of the bank’s key business
units tasked to evaluate, monitor and implement strategic
balance sheet allocations. It is the ALCo that likewise ensures
implementation of a risk-based interest rate policy.

Market Risk is managed via a combination of risk sensitivities,
Value-at-Risk (VaR) and earnings-at-risk (EaR) measures,
and stress testing. Sensitivity analysis is used to determine
impact on the portfolio and subsequently on the interest
margins of movements in the foreign exchange and interest
rates. Meanwhile, historical Value-at-Risk, which is calculated
on a daily basis, provides the estimates for potential losses
under normal market conditions. However, this does not
measure potential losses under extreme events. This is
addressed by stress testing activities with scenarios generally
derived from historically-observed severe shocks. Earnings-
at-Risk, meanwhile, captures impact on income of interest
rate movements on the non-trading portfolio. These risk
measurements, monitoring and analytics are performed

by the Market and Liquidity Risk Management Department
under the Risk Management Group.

Capital requirements for market risk exposures are
determined using the standardized approach. For 2016,
market risk weighted assets stood at PhP375.50 million,
representing 1.42% of total risk weighted assets.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the potential inability to meet
all of the bank’s financial liabilities at a reasonable cost.
Financial obligations include liabilities to depositors,
liabilities arising from financial contracts, settlement of
securities borrowing and repurchase transactions, and
lending and investment commitments.

The business of banking is anchored upon trust and
confidence. Hence, liquidity risk management is essential
to ensure that the bank is capable of funding both expected
and unexpected cash flows at reasonable costs.

From a governance standpoint, the Risk Management
Committee defines the bank's liquidity risk strategy as
recommended by the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCo)
and oversees the liquidity risk management system.

The ALCo, meanwhile, takes charge of the bank’s asset

and liability management at the operational level aimed
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Liquid Assets to Total Assets

28.00%
27.50%
27.00%
26.50%
26.00%
25.50%
25.00%
24.50%
24.00%
23.50%
23.00%

Liquid Assets*

Total Assets

27.56%
2016 2015
2016 2015
8,378,903,249 8,516,175,606

33,900,250,206 | 30,900,899,549

*Sum of Cash, COCl, DF BSP, DF Other Banks, Interbank Loans and
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Loans to Deposit Ratio

78.00%
76.00%
74.00%
72.00%
70.00%
68.00%
66.00%
64.00%

Loans and
Receivables (Net)

Total Deposits

69.30%

2016 2015

2016 2015
22,746,095,981 18,635,289,930

29,483,028,640 26,888,986,133

toward striking an optimal balance sheet structure that will
maximize profitability and address liquidity risk concerns.

The Risk Management Group supports the committees by
monitoring risk through regular analyses of usual funding
requirements and the diversification of existing funding
sources. Tactical liquidity management with the intraday level
forecasting of cash flows is practiced by the Treasury Group
which takes into account the bank’s access to secured and
unsecured funding sources and the actual fund deployment.

The bank has a diverse source of funds. Short-term
deposits generated through the bank’s network of domestic
branches are the main funding source of the bank. The
minimum level of core liquidity is preserved at all times
with sufficient cushion in the form of highly liquid assets
following the bank’s liquidity risk management framework.

Liquidity risk metrics such as the Maximum Cumulative
Outflow (MCO) and various liquidity ratios supplement the
Treasury Group's intraday cash flow forecasting and weekly
funding assessments in the ALCo. The bank'’s liquidity
position is subject to a quarterly stress testing exercise
that determines the impact of various stress scenarios as a
complement to the cash flow based reporting system.

Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes or from external events which
may be caused by internal and external fraud events,
business disruptions and systems failure, damage to physical
assets, execution, delivery and process management failures,
weaknesses in products and business practices, as well as
employment practices and workplace safety.

The four lines of defense principle guides the bank's risk
management framework. The business units serve as the first
line of defense as day-to-day management of operational

risk is actively managed by the risk controls embedded in their
processes. The back office units are the second line of defense
as additional controls and quality checks are integrated in the
transaction flow. Operational risk monitoring is exercised by
the Risk Management Group as the third line of defense in
order to guarantee the correct and consistent application of the
bank's operational risk management framework. Internal Audit
and Compliance functions which independently review the
effectiveness of risk management systems and controls serve
as the fourth line of defense.

The bank’s operational risk profile is evaluated through the

Risk and Control Self-Assessment (RCSA) and the Operational
Loss Database. The RCSA identifies risk concentrations and
operational concerns, and define risk treatment action plans

in line with bank's risk tolerance and threshold levels set

by the RMC. It also maps out embedded risks in business
process as well as evaluate the effectiveness of risk controls
through the use of Key Risk Indicators. The Operational Loss
Database captures information from the bank’s operational
loss experience, which can be leveraged through the analysis of
risk trends and operational risk exposure. A loss tracking is also
integrated in the system, which is regularly reported to the RMC.

32.00%
31.50%
31.00%
30.50%
30.00%

29.50%
29.00%

28.50%
28.00%
27.50%
27.00%
26.50%

Liquid Assets*
Total Deposits

Liquidity Ratio

31.67%

2016 2015
2016
8,378,903,249
29,483,028,640

2015

8,516,175,606

26,888,986,133

*Sum of Cash, COCl, DF BSP, DF Other Banks, Interbank Loans and
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Loans to Asset Ratio

68.00%
66.00%
64.00%
62.00%
60.00%
58.00%
56.00%

Loans and
Receivables (Net)

Total Assets

60.31%

2016 2015

2016

22,746,095,981

33,903,849,408

2015
18,635,289,930

30,900,899,549
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The bank’s Business Continuity Management Program
(BCMP) ensures that the bank is resilient in the face of
crises and business interruptions. Business Continuity
Plans (BCPs) and Disaster Recovery Plans (DRP) are put in
place to guarantee proactive responses and swift recovery
from significant business disruptions. BCPs and the entire
Business Continuity Management Program are subjected
to an iterative cycle of improvement as part of the bank’s
commitment to deliver superior banking services to its
clients. Mindful that the key to business resilience lies in
the deep understanding of business processes, impact

of disruption and customer expectations, the bank in
2016 enhanced its Business Impact Analysis framework
to strengthen prioritized assessment of critical banking
services and business processes.

Disaster preparedness is likewise part of the bank’s BCMP.
Regular fire and earthquake drills coordinated with local
government agencies are conducted as part of this initiative.

The bank makes use of the Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) in
determining the capital charge for operational risk. For 2016,
Operational Risk Weighted Assets (ORWA) stood at PhP2.09
billion, accounting for 8.79% of risk weighted assets.

Compliance Risk
Compliance risk is defined as the risk of loss due to non-
compliance to rules, regulations and laws.

With the banking sector operating in a highly complex
regulatory environment, compliance risk management is
considered as mission critical. Financial institutions for the
past couple of years have seen a more stringent regulatory
business environment with the frequent issuance of new
regulations both from local and global front aimed at
strengthening the financial system.

The bank’s Compliance Program is the backbone of the
compliance risk management system. It is composed of the
bank’s governance structure that ensures active board and
senior management oversight, policies and procedures that
ensure alignment with relevant laws and regulations and
factors in the level of complexity of the bank’s operations,
compliance risk self-assessments, compliance testing and
independent validation of controls.

The bank’s Compliance Office (CO) takes charge of the
compliance program, monitors regulatory changes, and assesses
its operational and balance sheet implications. The CO reports to
the Corporate Governance Committee, which provides the board
with information pertaining to the status of compliance risks and
controls. The CO also ensures that the relevant stakeholders are
continuously educated and trained on new regulations.

One of the key compliance programs is the Anti-Money
Laundering Program, which covers both personnel and
structural elements. Know Your Customer (KYC) and Know
Your Employees (KYE) processes provide for key supporting
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structures to the AML program. These cover onboarding as
well as constant monitoring throughout the customer and
employee engagement period. The CO has allocated dedicated
personnel to monitor AML compliance and conduct review of
internal controls, independent testing and AML training.

Meanwhile, Legal Risk is centrally managed by the

Legal Department. Proactive legal risk management is
implemented through control structures such as Legal
Office sign-off procedures, issuance of legal opinions and
continuous training and awareness campaigns.

Charges arising from compliance risk is incorporated in the
operational risk capital charge.

Strategic Risk

Potential losses arising from inappropriate business
decisions as well as inability to respond to a changing
business environment is considered as strategic risk.

The board of directors together with senior management
provide the general direction and the respective strategic
thrusts of the bank, which is where the business plans

of the respective business units are anchored upon. The
institutionalized strategic planning process, which charts
the bank’s growth targets, take into account assessments
of the risk and competitive landscape that integrate risk
management strategies and capital plans into the respective
business group’s strategic plans.

Strategic risk is managed by the bank at all relevant levels.
Periodic review of actual performance versus set objectives
is conducted by the Senior Management Committee with
the board of directors/ExCom.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the risk of loss due to negative public
perception of the bank. As banking is a business of trust,
any business practice and association which may negatively
affect the public’s perception, decrease the bank’s customer
base, affect operations, and result to legal suits and costly
remediation measures must be minimized and effectively
managed. Reputational risk management is a strategic
imperative that extends beyond the limits of the company
and incorporates potential risk issues across the value chain
with its strategic business partners.

As superior customer service is one of the bank’s core
competencies, reputational risk is strictly managed by a series
of quality assurance mechanisms that ensure customer service
standards are upheld or exceeded, and minimize operational
lapses and concerns that hamper the bank’s service delivery.
Results from the active solicitation of customer feedback are
incorporated in the evaluation of Service Level Agreements.

A customer management hotline is also made available to
address client concerns and customer complaints. For 2016,
the bank received a total of 1,444 client concerns via Customer
Service Department and branches. These concerns were
handled and resolved in accordance with the bank'’s policies.

Capital

Management

The bank remains in strong financial footing as its capital adequacy ratio
stood well at 12.37%, above the 10% regulatory threshold.

The strategic thrusts of the bank are supported by the bank’s capital management activities. Shareholder value
maximization through asset growth and expansion and capital sufficiency is ensured by determining the most efficient level
of capital given the bank's risk-taking activities.

Prudent capital management and allocation of sufficient buffers are practiced in order to ensure that capital ratios are
maintained above minimum regulatory requirement despite shocks during periods of stress. A balance between risk and
reward is maintained in order to ensure that shareholder wealth is maximized without taking in excessive risk to capital.

Tier 1 Capital
Required Deductions

Net Tier 1 Capital

Tier 2 Capital
Required Deductions
Net Tier 2 Capital

Total Qualifying
Capital

Credit Risk Weighted
Assets

Market Risk
Weighted Assets

Operational Risk
Weighted Assets

Total Risk Weighted
Assets

Tier 1 Capital Ratio
Total Capital Ratio

2016
2,259,580
29,236
2,230,344

1,005,247

1,005,247

3,235,591

23,686,572

375,501

2,091,337

26,153,410

8.53%
12.37%

2015
2,139,584
47,600
2,091,984

961,952

961,952

3,053,936

19,396,394

1,606,421

2,024,693

23,027,508

9.08%
13.26%

December 31 (in Millions)

Total Tier 1 Capital
Paid-Up Common Stock
Additional Paid-In Capital
Retained Earnings
Undivided Profits

Cumulative Foreign Currency
Translation

Sub-Total
Less Deductions:

Unsecured DOSRI Credit
Accommodations

Deferred Tax Assets
Unbooked Valuation
Total Deductions From Tier 1 Capital

Total Qualifying Tier 1 Capital

2016
2,070

120
75

(5)

2,260

29

29
2,230

December 31 (in Millions)

Total Tier 2 Capital

Preferred Stock

General Loan Loss Provision
Unsecured Subordinated Debt
Total Qualifying Tier 2 Capital

2016
300
208
498

1,005
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2015
2,070

59
21

(10)

2,140

48

48
2,092

2015
300
164
498
962



CREDIT RISK MARKET RISK OPERATIONAL RISK
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
(et Of Dedctions) ]| B
Off - Balance Sheet 13 10
Counterparty (Trading/Banking) 2
Interest Rate Exposure 305 1,516
Foreign Exchange 71 90
Operational Risk - Weighted Assets 2,091 2,025
Total 23,687 19,396 376 1,606 2,091 2,025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

The Stockholcders amd the Boand of Directors
Sterling Bank of Asia Inc. (A Savings Bank)
Sterling Bank Corporate Center

Gregenhills, San Juan

Metro Manila

Report on the Financial Statements

Cpiman

We have audied the accompanying financial statements of Sterling Bank of Asia Inc. (A Savings Bank)
(the Bank), which comprise the stafements of financial posifion a8 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and
the staterments of comprehensive incorme, slatement of changes in equity and staterments of cash Nows
for the years that ended, and notes to the finencial statements, Inclueding a summary of signifcant
accounting policies.

Im our opinion, the fingncial statements presant Tairky, inall matenal respects, the flinancial positan of the
Bark az at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reperting Standards (PFRS)

Basis for Opiion

We conducted our audils in accardance with Philipping Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our responsibiities
under those standards are furher described in the Auditor's Responsiblibes for the Audil of the Fmarncial
Statemants section of owr repart. We ane independent of Ihe Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethecs
for Professicnal Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are redevant to our audits of the financial staterments in the Pralippines, and we have fulfilled our ofher
ethical responsibiliies in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Elhics. We believe that the
audt evidence we have oblained s sufficient and appropnate 1o provide 8 Basis far our opirson

Dther informalion

Maragemeant is responsible far the other information, The ather infformation comphses the infarmation
included in the Anmual Report for the year ended December 31, 2018, bul does naot include the firancial
staternents and our auditor's report thereon The Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2016
are expected o be made available o us afler the dale of this avdilor's report

Dur apinion on the financial statements does not caver the other inforrmaton and we will not express any
form af assurance conclusion therean,

In cennection with our avdits of the firancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available ard, 1n doing so, consider whether the other information is
matenally inconsistent with the financial staterments or our kncwledge abtained in the audits or olhenwise
appears to be matenally misstated

| Sterling Bank of Asia

Raspansibiily of Managameardt and Thaose Charged wilth Govamance for the Fimancial Statemeants

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such inernal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial staterments that are free from material misstatements, whether due o fraud or
efror

In preparing the financial statements, managemert is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability o
continue 83 a8 going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concem and using the
going concem basis of accounting uniess management elther iIntends 1o liquidate the Bank of 1o cease
operalions, or has na realistic aternative bul to do so.

Those charges with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
Audditors Responsibilites for the Awdit of the Financial Statements

Cwr abjectives ere (o obtain reasoneble asswance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror, and 1o 1ssue an audtor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonabie assurance |5 a high level af assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit concucted in accordance with PSA will always detect 8 material misstaterment when it exists.
Misstatements can amse from frawd or emror and are considered material If, indvidually or in the
agoregate, these could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statemants.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of materal misstaternents of the financial staternents, whether due o
fraud or errors, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks, and obtan auct
evidence that is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material messtatemnerts resulting from fraud = higher than for one resuting Trom eror, as fraud may
imiolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentalions, or the averride of infernal contral

s Obtain an underslanding of internal contrad relevant to the audil in order 1o design audil procedures
that are appropnate in the creumrstances, Bt not for the purpose of exphessing an opnion on the
effectiveress of the Bank's mbternal contral,

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accourting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audt eviderce obtained whether a material uncentainty exists related to events ar
cenditions that may cast significant doutd on the Bark’s ability lo continue as a going concerm, If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention on our auditor's report to
the refated disclosures in the financial staterments or, il such disclosures are insdeguate, to modify our
opinicn. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our auditor's
repor. However, fulure events or condilions may cause the Bark to cease lo continue as a going
concem

« Evaluate the overall presentaton, siructure and cantent of the financial statements, including the
disclcaures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation
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Wi communicate with those charges with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned
scope and timming of the audits and significant audt findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal cantrod that we dentily durng aur 3ucis

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulation Nos. 18-2010 and

18-2011 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

COur avdits were conducted for the purpese of formeng an opinion on the basic Tinancal statements taken
8% 3 whals, Tha supplemontan inforration on 1axes and loenses and the schedule of taxable |Roome
and deductible expenses in Note 30 to financial staterments i presented for purposes of fikng with the
Bureau of Internal Revende amd i mot 8 nequired pan of the basic financial statements. Such infarmaton
is the responsiblity of the managemeant of Sterling Bank of Asa Inc. (A Savings Bank), The infarmation
has been subjected 1o the audibng procedures applied in our audits of the basic financial statements and
In oW openion, the infermation is fairty stated In all matenal respects i relabon 10 the BEsic firarcial

statements taken as a whols

REYES TACANDONG & CO.

o wmj *
HayYDEE M. REYES
Fartnar
CPA Cortificate Mo, 83522
Tax Mentfication Ko, 102-085-265-000

BOA Accrediabon Mo 4752 Valid untll December 31, 2018

SEC Ascreddaban Mo DEE3.AR-2 Sroup A
Walid untif Apeil 14, 2017

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-0051 44-6-201 7
Wabd until Januan 13, 2020

PTE Mo, SB08527
Issued January 3, 2017, Makat City

March 21, 2007
Malati Crty, Metro Manila

Sterling Bank of Asia

STERLING BANK OF ASIA INC. (A Savings Bank)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Decernbior 31
Mot 201G 2015

ASSETS
Cash and Other Cash ltems P625,137,055 BEEE 754,312
Due fram Bangko Sentral ng PRipinas 3,142,341,082 2,107 652,242
Due from Other Banks 1,753,369,339 1,441,016 616
Interhank Loans Receivable [ 2,356,564, 116 1,148.2149,571
Finamcial Assels al Fair Value through Prolit or Loss 7 501,491,653 2,130,532, 834
Auailable-for-5ale Financial Assets ] 1,373,554,.718 2,436,144 847
Held-to-Maturity Investments g 351,441,287 340,029,282
Loams and Receivabdes 10 22,796,005,981 18,635,235%,930
Praperty and Equipment 11 450,259,559 493,188,552
Ascets Held for Sale 12 210,179,714 117,201,260
Intangible Assets 13 285,209, 686 216,958,991
Deferred Tax Assets 24 17,054,774 44 207,585
Other Assets 14 80,750,435 91,703,086
TOTAL ASSETS F33,903, 849 408 B30,904 899,549
LIABILITIES AMND EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposit Liabdities 15 29,483,028 640 B26,888,986,133
Manager's Checks 230,306,123 136 967 800
Accrued Interest, Taxes and Gther Expenses i7 120,504,002 120,585 865
Unsecured Subordinated Debt 18 S0, D00, (0 S0 000, OO0
Incame Tax Payable 26,204,165 1,904,143
Retiremaent Liability 11 72,072,910 G2 594,571
Bills Payable 16 - 36,781,584
Other Liabiities 19 746,667 892 B43 143,527

Tolal Liabiities 31,178,783, 732 28,392 059,633
Equity
Cammon Slock 25 2,070, 000, Gda 2,070,000, G0
Perpetual Prefemmed Slock 25 300, 000, 000 300,000, Q00
Other Equity Resanses [69,156,363) (197.152,456)
Relained Earnings 424,222,039 335,992,372

Total Equity 2, 725,065,676 2,508,839,916
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY F33,903, 849 408 B30,904) 899,544

o A CoTmpO ey Mo fes o Fluanciol Sotements
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STERLING BANK OF ASIA INC. (A Savings Bank)

STERLING BANK OF ASIA INC. (A Savings Bank)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Hole 201G 2015
MET INCOME RB8,12159 667 R311,127 583
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [LOSS)
Hems to be reclassified to prafit or foss
Met unrealized galns (bosse<) on availlable-for-zale
financial assals B 122,844,008 {212.672,127]
Translation adjustmenl 5,266,173 132 010,846
Hem nol 1o be reclossified (o profit or loss
Remeasurement gains (losses) on retirement
lability, net ol delemed Lax 22 (114,088) 1,695,758
127,956,093 (197,965,523}
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [LOSS) F216G,225,760 (R1GGEIT.S40

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31
Mot 2016 2015
INTEREST INCOME ON:
Loans and receivables 10 1,594,667 .588 F1,3955910,412
Invesiment securnles ¥ 151,640,681 305,835,633
Due fram Bangko Sentral ng Plipinas

and ciher banks 17,571,509 44 186,356

Interbank loans receivable [ 14,316,872 5,420,113
1,778,196, 650 1,751,352,514
INTEREST EXFEMNSE OMN DEFOSIT LIABILITIES,

BILLS PAYABLE AND OTHERS 15 465,515,208 557,633,738

MET INTEREST INCOME 1,312,681.442 1,193 668,776
OTHER INCOME [CHARGES)
Service charges, fees and commissions 208,631,504 172,615,807
Het bosses Tram assets sold or acquired 12 (36,106, 553) (14,036 405)
Met foreign exchange gains 22,551 813 70,931,973
Met trading and securities lasses from

iNVestment securnitics 7 (20,107,502) (119,855,061}

Others - met 11,271,004 21,242,789
186,240, 266 130,899,902
OPERATING EXPENSES

Compensation and fringe benefils 493 665812 434 148 365
Taxes and licenses 178,080,231 183,421,750
Occupancy 104,148,174 103,399, 388
Depreciation and amartization 11 81,817,477 84,162,180
Representation and entertainment 66,414,347 61,759,296
Insurance 06,955,844 59,281,918
Securily, messengenal and [anitcrial 53,681,052 52,301,654
Others 23 227,875,187 179 440, 734
1,262,642,.224 1,162 914,685
PROVISION FOR CREDIT AMD IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 10 52,638,700 81,583,540
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 183,640,784 80,070,453

INCOME TAX EXPENSE [BENEFIT) 24
Current 110,925 498 76,397,957
Deferred [15,518,381) (77,455,127}
05,411,117 48942, 870
MET INCOME PE8, 229,657 F31,127,583

LSee accampanying Nates fo Finansial Statements

Sterling Bank of Asia

Lo accampanying Mates fo Flnancfal Stafements
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STERLING BANK OF ASIA INC. (A Savings Bank)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

STERLING BANK OF ASIA INC. (A Savings Bank)

Mote 2016 2015
COMMOMN STOCK 25
Balance at beginning of year B2, 070,000,000 R1, 895 000,000
lssuance af shares - 175,000,000
Balance at end of yvear 2,070,000, 000 2,070, 000,000
PERFPETUAL PREFERRED 5TOCK 25
Balance at heginning and end of year 300,000,000 200,000, 000
OTHER EQUNTY RESERVES
Cumulative Unrealized Losses on
Available-for-Sale Financial Azsets B
Balance at beginning of year [188,066,529) 24,605,598
Met unrealized gains {losses) 122 844,008 (212,672,127}
Balance at end of vear (65,222,521} (138,066,529)
Cumulative Translation Adjustment
Balance at beginning of year {10,282 533) (23,293 3749)
Translation adjustment 5,266,173 13,010,846
Balance at end of year (5,016,360} (10,282,533}
Cumulative Remeasurement Gains (Losses)
on Retirement Liability
Balance at beginning of vear 1,156,606 (495, 152)
Remwasurement gain (lass), net of deferred tax s {114,088) 1,649%, /58
Balance at end of vear 1,082,518 1,196,606
(69,156,363} (197,152 456}
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginming of vear 335,992,372 204, 564, 7Y
Met income 88,229,667 31,127,583
Balance at end of yvear 424,222,039 335,992,372
B2, 725,065,676 B2 508 8359916

e gooampanying Mates fe Foancial Sharementy.

Sterling Bank of Asia

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Mol 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income Lax F1E3,640,784 RA0,070.453
Adjustments for;
Cepreciation and amortization 11 1,817,277 834,162,180
Provision lor credit and impalrment losses on
loans and receivables 10 52,638 700 21,583 540
Unrealized trading losses on financial assets al
lair value through profil or loss T 48,437,292 180,862,254
Met bosses from assels sold or acquired 12 36,106,553 14,035,406
Retirement benelils i3 17,315,355 16,221,739
Net gain on sale of avallable-Tor-sake linarcial
assats ] [14.540,562) [18,435318)
Amortization of premium on held-te-maturity
invaslments 9 2,685,595 7.021.777
Prowvision for impairnsent losses on assels
heldd Far sale 12 1,916,024 -
Operating intome beflore working capital changes 409,617,618 445,523 031
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (inerease) in the amounts al;
Firarcial assels at fair value through
profit or loss 1,580,603, 289 1,858 367,223
Leans and receivables (4,368,661,590) {1.946,008,627)
Other assets 952,661 15,299, 080
Inerease (decrease) in the armaunts of:
Depotit liabidlities 2,584,042 507 (2,475 885,0413]
Manager's checks 93,338,313 (14,100, 588)
Acoraed interest, tawes and other expenses (81,863) (47,255,077
Other liabilities 82,373,415 [463,776,45%5)
Mel cash peneraled from (used lor) operalions 392,184,954 {2,627 B36,456)
Income Lax pald {34, 500, 988 ) (73,497 854)
Retirement contributions paid 22 [, e DO ) -
Retirement benelits paid 22 - (15,896,167
Met cash flows provided by (used in} operating
activities 338,279,900 (2,717, 230,487)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from salke of:
Avadable-lor-sale linancial assels 1,737.073,277 2.329,592.547
Aszels held for sale 73,542 098 78,975,074
Froperty and equipment 1,947,935 5 239971
Additions 1o
Available-for-sale finarcial assets 1537,098,578) {1.0040,330,954)
Compuler soflware 13 [38,802,338) 1474,052)
Fropery and equipment 11 (38,610,125 (549,230,552
Met cash flows provided by investing activities 1,198,102, 265 1354 373 024

{Faremard}p
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STERLING BANK OF ASIA INC. (A Savings Bank)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31
Mate 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of bills payable (#3656, 781, 584) (EB15, 670 0591)
Proceeds from:
Availment of bills payable - 164,777,400
Issuance of capital stock 25 - 175,000,000
Hel cash Mows used in linancing sclivities [36,781,584) (75,892,.691)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHAMGES ON CASH
AMND CASH EQUIVALENTS [B,B31,827) 13,010,846
MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 1,491,768,824 (1,425 739 308)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR
Cash and olher cash items B8, 754,312 903,508, 259
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Plipinas 3,107,652, 243 3 984 969,282
Due from other banks 1,441,016, 646 2,317 217,108
Interbank loans receivable [ 1,148 2149, 571 B25 686 821
6,385,642,772 7.811,382.080
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEMNTS AT END OF THE
YEAR
Cash and olher cash ilems 625,137,059 LHE, 754,312
Du from Bangko Sentral ng Plipinas 3,1421,341,082 3.107,652.243
Due from other banks 1,753,369,339 1,441 015,646
Intarbank koans receivable B 2,356.564,116 1,148 219571
PTETT. 411,556 B5 385,642,772
OPERATIMNG CASH FLOWS FROM INTEREST
Interest reoeived #1,792,107,044 B1,435555.243
Interest paid 479,121,511 569,918,094
MNONCASH INFORMATION
Reclassification of loans and receivables to assets
held far sale 12 F224.332 Bol EE31,719,0831

1. General Information

Sterling Bank of Asia Inc. [A Savings Bank] was incorporated in the Philippines and registered with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (5EC) and Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (B5P). The Bank is
primarily engaged in the general buziness of savings and mortgage banking. The Bank offers a wide
range of preducts and services such as deposit products, boans, treasury and trust functions. The
Bank was granted authonty to engage in trust operations in 2008 and to issue foreign letters of
credit in 2000,

As atl December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank operates a total of 42 branches,

The Bank was formerly known as Far East Savings Bank [FESBY and originally issued with Certificate
af Incorporation by the SEC on lanuary 20, 1998,

In 2006, ITEC Equities, Inc. [JEI], Surewell Equities, Inc. [3E1] and Star Equities, Inc, acquired all the
outstanding shares of stock of FESB from the Bank of the Philippine Islands. In 2007, the change in
corporate name of FESB to Sterling Bank of Asia Inc. (A Savings Bank) was approved by the BSP and
the SEC.

In 2009, the BSP approved the Bank's application to acquire 100% of the shares of steck of
Centennial Savings Bank [C5B). In 2010, 25 approved by the BSP and the SEC, the Bank, as the
surviving entity, merged with €58,

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the ultimate parent of the Bank is JEI, through a direct interest
af 4056 and indirect interest of 305, through 5tar Equities, Inc., & wholly owned subsidiary of JEI,

The registered office address of the Bank iz at Stering Bank Corporate Center, Greenhills, 5an Juan,
Metro Manila,

The financial statements of the Bank as at and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 21, 2017,

Lo accomponying Nates o Flnancial Statements.

Sterling Bank of Asia

Summary of Signficant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation and Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards [PERS) iszsuecd by the Fmancial Reparting Standards Council and adopted by the SEC
This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), Philippine
Interpretations from Intermational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), and the
SEC provisions.

Measurement Bases
The financial staterments have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for:

*  financizl assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYPL) and available-for-sale (AF5) financial
assets, which are carried at fair value,

= gziets held Far sale, which are measured at the lower of cost and fair value less cost-to-2all, and
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* retirement liability, which iz carried at the present value of defined benefit obligation less the
fair value of plan assets,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for an
asset, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ar paid to transfer a lahility in
an oarderly transaction between market participants at the transaction date.

The Bank uses market cbservable data as far as possible when measuring the fair value of an asset
ar a lability, Fair values are categorized into different levels in a falr value hierarchy based on inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

*  Level 1 - gquoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or lizbilities;

s Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measuramant is directly or indirectly observable;

= Lewel 3 - valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unohservable,

If the inputs used o measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might ke categorized in different
levels of thie fair value heerarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirely in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is sipnificant te the entire
FACISUREment.

The Bank recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
yiear during which the change has coourred.

Information about the assumptions made in measunng fair values is included in Nate 5, Fair Valuwe
Measurement.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements of the Bank include the accounts maintained in the Regular Banking Unit
[RBLY} and Foreign Currency Depasit Unit [FCDUY. The functional currency of the RBU and FCODL) is
the Philippine Peso and United States Dollar (USD), respectively. For financial reporting purpases,
the FCOU accounts and forsign currency-denominated accounts in the RBU are transiated into their
equivalent amounts im Philippine Peso, which is the functional and presentaticn currency of the
Bank. The financial statements of RBU and FCOU are combined after eliminating inter-unit
ACCOUNTE,

Adoption of Mew and Amended PFRS
The accounting pelicies adopted are consistent with those of the previcus financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS effective January 1, 2015,

*  Amendment to PERS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and DNscontinued Operations - Changes
in Methods of Disposal = The amendment adds specific guidance when an entity reclassifies an
asset {or a disposal group) frem held for zzle to held fer distnbution to owners, or vice versa,
and for cases where held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued.

*  Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Finoncial Stafements: Disclasure Initiofive - The
amendments clarify puidance on materiality and agaregation, the presentation of subtotals, the
structure of financial statements and the disclosure of accaunting palicies.

Sterling Bank of Asia

*  Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Fiant ond Eguipment - Clorificotion of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciotion, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clorification of Acceptoble Methods of
Amariizafion = The amendments add guidance and clarify that (i} the use of revenue-based
methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated
by an activity that incledes the use of an aszet generally reflects factars other than the
consumgption of the economic benefits embedied in the asset, and (i) revenue is genzrally
presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measunng the consumpticn of the sconcmic berefits
embodied in an intangible assel. However, these presumplions can be rebutted in certain
lirmited circumstances.

* Amendment te PAS 19, Employee Bepefits - [hecount Rote: Regional Market [ssue — The
amendment clarifies that in determining the discounl rate for post-employment benefil
abligations, it s the currency that the labilities are denaminated in that is important, and not
the country where the liabilities arise. Thus, the assessment of whether there is a deep market
in high quality corperate bonds = based on corporate bonds in that currency (not corperate
bonds in & particular country), and in the absence of a deep market in high quality corporate
bonds in that currency, government bond in the relevant currency should be used.

The adoption of the forogoing noew and amended PERS did not have any material efect on the
financial statements of the Bank. Additional disclosures have been included in the notas to financial
statements, as applicable.

Mew and Amended PFRS Mot Yet Adopted
Relevant new and amended PFRS, which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2016
and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements, are summarized balow.

Effective for annual pericds beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2017;

* Amendments to PAST, Stotement of Cosh Flows - Disclosure fnitiative — The amendments
require entities to provide information that enable the users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from their financing activities,

*  Amendments to PAS 12, Income Toxes - Recogmition of Deferred Tox Assels for Unrealized
Losses = The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets relatad to unrealized
losses on debi instruments measured at fair valee, Lo address diversity in practice.

Effective for annual pericds heginning on or after January 1, 2018 -

*  PFRS 9, Fingnorol instruments - This standard will replzce PAS 39 jand zll the previous versians of
PERS4QY, It provides requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial habilities, impairment, hedge accounting and derecognition,

PFR5 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amaortized cost or
fair value {through profit or less or through other comprehensive inceme), depending on their
classification by reference to the business model within which these are held and their
contractual cash flow characteristics.
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For financizl liakilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates te cases where the fair value
option is taken - the amount of change in fair valee of a financizl liability desipnated as at fair
value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that lizbility is
recognized in other comprebensive income (rather than in prefit or loss), unless this creates an
aocounting mismatch.

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 intreduces an “expected credit loss” medel based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at incepticn of a contract. It will no langer he
necessary to have an ohjective evidence of impairment before a credit loss is recognized.

For hedge accounting, PFRS @ intreduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements ta
better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-
financial risk exposuras,

The derecognition provisions are carried aver almost unchanged From PAS 39

Effective for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2019 -

*  PFRS 16, Leases = Significant change introduced by the new standard is that almaost all leases will
be brought onto lessees” statement of financial position under 2 single model [except leases of
less than 12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction between
cperating and finance leases, Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the
distinctien between aperating and finance lease 15 retained.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS 15 nat
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Bank, except for PFAS 9 and
PFRS 16, Additional disclosures will be incleded in the financial statements of the Bank, as
applicable.

The Bank anticipates that the application of PFRS 9 and PEES 16 might have a significant effect on
the amounts reported with respect to the Bank’s financial assets, liabilities and leases. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until 3 detailed review has been
tampleted.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Date of Recognition. The Bank recognizes a financial asset or liability in the statement of financial
positicn when the Bank Becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 0 the
case of regular way purchases or sales of financial assets, recognition and derecogmition, as
applicable is done wsing settlement date accounting.

fmtraf Recogmition. Francal instrumaents are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value
of the consideration given [in the case of an asset) or received {in the case of a2 liahility). The initial
measurameant of financial instruments, except for those desipnated at FVPL, includes transaction
caost.
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“Day 1 Difference, Where the transaction pnce In a non-active market 5 different from the fair
value from other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a
valuation technique whose variables incdude cnly data observable from the market, the Bank
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value [a "Day 17 difference) in
profit or boss unless it gqualifies for recagnition as some other type of asset. For each transaction, the
Bank determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 17 difference,

Classificotion. The Bank dassifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following
categories: {a] financial assets at FVPL, (b} held-tc-maturity [HTA) investments, (¢] loans and
receivables and {d) AFS financial assets. Financizl lizbilities, on the other hand, are classified as
either financial liahilities at FVPL or ather financial liabilities. The classification depends an the
purpose for which the financial mstruments are acquired or incurred and whether these are quoted
in an active market.

Fingacie! Assefs and Liokulifies af FYPL, BEmanceal assets and lakilities at BVPL include financial assets
and liabilities held for trading purpeses and financial assets and liabilities designated upan initial
recognition as at FVPL

Financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading il these are acquired for purposes of
selling and repurchasing in the near term. Derwvatives, including any separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as financial assets or financial lizbilities at FYPL, unless these are
designated az hedging instruments in an effective hedge.

Finanaal assets or habilities may be designated by the Bank upon initial recognition as at FYPL when
any of the following criteria are met;

* the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or habilities or recognizing related gains or losses on
a differant basis;

* the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, liabilities or both which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a falr value basis, in accerdance with a
documented ritk management or investment strategy; aor

* the financial instruments contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it s clear, with little or no analysis, that it would
nat be separately recorded.

Financial assets and liahilities at FUVPL are recarded in the statement of financial position at fair
value, Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized as “Met trading and securities gains (losses)
from investment securities” in profit or loss. Interest eamed or incurred is recognized as interest
income or expense, respectively, while dividend income is recognized as other income when the
right to receive payment has been estakblished.

Az at December 31, 2016 and 2015, investments in government securities and private bonds are
included in this category {see Note 7).

AFE Finonciol Assefs. AFS financial assets are nonderivative financial assets that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categornes. These are purchased and
held indefinitely, and may be zold in response to liguidity reqguirements or changes in market
canditions.
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After initial measurament, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value or at cost
less impairment in the case of unguoted securities. The effective yield compenent of AFS debt
securities, as well as the impact of restatement of any Foreign currency-denominated AFS debt
securities, s recopnized in profit or loss. The unrealized gains and losses arising frem the fain
valuation of AFS financial assets are reccgnized as “Net unrealized gains (losses) on AFS financial
assets” in other comprehensive incame.

When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is
recognized as "Met trading and securities gains {losses)™ in profit or less. Where the Bank holds
mare than one investment in the same security, these are deemed to be disposed of an a first-in,
first-out basis. Interest earned or paid on the investments are recognized as “Interest income” in
profit or loss wsing the effectve interest method. Dividends earned on investments are recognized
in profit or loss when the right of the payment has been established. These financial assets are
classified as noncurrent assets unless the intention is to dispose such assets within the 12 months
fram the end of reporting year.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, investments in government securities, private bonds and
unguoted equity security are included in this categary [see Note 8).

HIM Investments,  HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities for which the Bank has the positive intention and
ability to hold to matuwrity, After initial measurement, these investments are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment in value.
Amaortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The amaortization 5 recognized in
“Interest income” in profit or loss. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
HTM imvestments are derecognized or impaired, a5 well a5 through amortization process. The losses
arising from impairment of such investments are recognized as "Provision for credit and impairment
losses”™ in profit or less. The effect of the restatement of the foreign currency-denominated
HTM investments are recognized in profit or loss.

When the Bank sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire categary
would be tainted and redassified as AFS financial asset.  Subsequently, the Bank would be
prohibited bto classify any financial assets as HTM investments for the following two years.

The Bank cannot classify hinancial assets as HTM if the Bank, during the current Mlinancial year or
during the tweo preceding years, sold or reclassified meore than an insignificant amouwnt of
HTK investments before maturity fin relation to the total amount of HTM investments) other than
sales ar reclassifications that:

=  are 5o close to maturity or the financial asset's call date (for example, less than three manths
before maturity] that changes in the market rate of interest would ot have 2 sipnificant effect
on the financial asset’s fair value;

=  peeur after the Bank has collected substantially 2ll of the financial asset’s ariginal principal
through scheduled payments ar prepaymaents; or

= are attributable te an isclated ewvent that is beyond the Bank's contrel, is mon-recurring and
could not have been reasonably anticipated by the Bank.
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As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, investments in govermment debt securities are incduded in this
category [see Note 9).

loans aond Receivables, Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. These are net entered into with
the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as AFS financial assets ar
financial assals at FWPL,

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment in value, Any interest earned on loans and
receivables is recognized as part of “Interest income” recognized in profit ar loss on an accrual basis.
Amartized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
that are integral part of the effective interest rate. The periodic amortization is also included as part
of “Interest income” recognized in profit or loss. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss
when leans and receivables are derecogmized, as well as through the amortization process.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2015, cash and other cash items [COCH), due from BSP and other
banks, interbank loans receivable, loans and receivables, refundable deposits and returned chiecks
and other cash items [RCOCH) are included under this category (see Motes &, 10 and 14).

Far purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of COCI, due from
B5P and other banks, and interbank loans recevable, with original maturities of three months or less
from the date of acquisition and subject to insignificant risk in fluctuations in value,

Qther Finonciol Liokilities, Other fimancial labilities pertain to financial Habilities that are nat held
for trading and are not designated at FVWPL at the inception of the liakility.

Cther financial habilities are recognized initially at fair value less any direct transaction costs. After
initial recogniticn, other financial liakilities are subseguently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, Amartized cest 5 caleulated by taking into account any discount ar
premium. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized ar
through the amartization process.

As at Decemnber 31, 2016 and 2015, depcosit liabilities, manager's checks, bills payable, accrued
interest and other expenses, unsecured subordinated debt and ather liahilities (excluding statutary
ohligations and taxes payable] are included under this category {see Notes 15, 16, 17, 18 and 19).

Derecognition of Ainranciol Assets and Liokilities. & financial asset (ar, where applicable, a part of 2
fimancial asset ar part of 2 group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

= the Bank retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an cbligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; ar

* the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either {a) has
transfarred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nar
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, But has transferred control aof the
assel.
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When the Bank has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows frem an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee cver the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Bank could he required ko pay.

A financizl liability is derecognized when the obligation under the lizbility is discharged, cancelled
ar has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
differemt terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
ar madification 15 treated as a derecognition of the original hability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Fingnciol Guarantees, In the ordinary course of business, the Bank pravides financial guarantees.
Finandal guarantees are initially recognized in the statement of financial position 2t fzir valee.
Subsequently, the initial fair value is amortized over the term of the financial guarantee, The
guarantes liability is subsequently carried at the higher of the amortized amount and the present
value of any expected payment {when a payment under the guarantee has become probable),

Reclassification of Firanciol Assets. A financial asset is reclassified ouwt of the FYPL category when
the following conditions are met;

* the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;
and

&  there is a rare circumstance.

Any gain or koss alveady recegnized in prefit or loss is not reversed, The fair value of the financial
assel on the date of reclassification becomes the new amortized cost, as applicable.

A financial asset reclassified aut of the AFS financial assets catogary 15 at 1ts fair value on the date of
reclassification. Any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in ather comprehensive inceme
is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining term of the investment using the effective interest
method. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recognized in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss,

Redassification is at the election of management and is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
bazis. In 2008 the Bank reclazsified USD-denominated investment securities fram AFS financial
assets to HTM inwestments (see Mote B).

Impairment of Financio! Assets. The Bank assesses at the end of each reporting year whether there
i5 ohjective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired,
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A financial asset or a group of financial assets s deemed to be impaired if, and anly if, there is an
objective evidence of impairment 25 a result of one or more events that have cocurred after the
initial recognition of the asset {a "loss event™) and that loss event [or events) has an impact cn the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset ar the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Ewvidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of
borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency in interest ar
princpal payments, the probability that borrower or a2 group of borrowers will enter bankruptcoy or
ather financial reorganization and where observahle data indicate that there is measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash Nows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Bank first asseszes whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial azsets that are individuzlly significant, or collectively far
financial assets that are not individually significant.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the excess of financial as=et's carrying amount over its net realizable value, normally
hatad on the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the financial asset. The present
value of the estimated future cash fAows ks discounted at the financial azzet’s original effective
interest rate. Time value is generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not material,

If & financizl asset has 2 variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate, adjusted for the original credit risk premium. The calculation of
the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects the
cash flows that may result frem foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral,
whether or not foreclosure is probable. Any impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss,

The carrying ameount of an impaired financial asset is reduced to its net realizable value through the
use of an allowance account. For an impaired financial asset, interest income continues to be
recognized using the rate of interest wsed to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are prouped on the basis of
the industry of the borrower. Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis aof historical lass experience for tha assets with
credit risk charactenstics similar to these in the group. Historncal loss experience it adjusted on the
hasiz of current ohservable data to reflect the effects of current conditions on which the historical
loss experiente is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the histerical peried that do nat
exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionzlly consistent
with, changes in related observable data from year to year. The methedology and assumptions used
for estimating future cazh Aows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

Restructured Loans. Where passible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take
possession of collateral. This may invelve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement
of new lean conditions, Once the terms have been renegatiated, the loan is no longer considered as
past due. Manzgement continuously reviews restructured loans to ensure that 2ll criteria are met
and that future payments are likely to ocour. The restructured loan continues to be subject to an
indivedual [calculated using the boan’s original effective interest rate) or collective impairment. The
difference between the recorded value of the criginal loan and present valee of the restructured
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cash flows, discounted at the ariginal effective interest rate is recognized as "Provision far credit and
impairment losses™ in profit or loss,

AFE Finamcigl Assets. The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is chjective evidence
that an investment is im palred.

Im the case of AFS debt investments, the Bank assesses individually whether there is objectve
evidence of impairment based on the same criteriz as financizl assets carried at amertized cost.
Howewer, the amount recognized for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
hetween the amortized cost and the current fair value. Future interest inccme is based cn the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash
flows Ter the purpose of measuring impairment loss, Such accrual 15 recognized as part of “Interest
income™ i profit or less. f, in the subsequent year, the fair value of a debt investment Increases
and the increase can be objectively related to a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized in profit or koss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

In the case of AFS equity investments, evidence of impairment would include a significant or
profonged decline in fair value of investments below its cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss, which is measured as the difference between the acguisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized, is
removed from other comprehensive income and recegnized in profit or less. Impairment losses on
equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in fair value after impairment
are recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

Offsetting of Finoncial Instruments.  Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the et amount
reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enfarceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent an a future event and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the aszets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly in
all of the following circumstances:

* the normal course of business,
* the event of default, and
*  the event of insolvency or bankrupteoy of the Bank andfor its counterparties,

Finandal assets and lakilities with master netting agreements are anly presanted net when those
satizfy the eligibility of netting for all of the above criteria and not just in the event of default.

Property and Equipment

Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value. Depreczble property and equipment are skated
at cost bess acoumulated depreciation, amartization and any impairment in value,

The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties,
nonrefundable taxes and any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to its working condition
and location far its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been
put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to profit or loss in the year
when the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures
hawve resulted in an intrease in the future econamic benefits expected to be abtzined frem the use of
an ibem of property and equipment beyond its onginally assessed standard of performance, the
expenditures are capitalized as additicnal costs of property and equipment.
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Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line basis ower the estimated wseful lives
of the assets. The estimated uselul lives of the property and equipment are as follows:

Asset Category Number of Years
Building and condominium units 20
Furniture, fixtures and equipmeant Ita s
Leasahald rights and improvemeants 1D or the related lease term,

whichewver is shorter

The estimated uselul Ives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed penodically to
ensure that the years and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.

An iterm af property and equipmont it derecegneed upen dispesal or when no futufe economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
[calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carning amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

Fully depredated items are retained as preperty and equipment until these are no lenger being used
in the operations.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation,
amartization and any impairment loss are removed from the accounts, any resulting gain or loss is
recogmized in profit or kss

Assets Held for Sale

Foreclosed assets are presented as assets held for sale in the statement of financial position and
socounted for at the lower of cost and fair value less cost-to-sell. Foreclased assets are classified as
held for sale if the carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than continuing use. The cost of foreclesed assets includes the carrying amount of the related loan,
less allowance for impairment losses, at the time of foredosure. \mpairment loss i recopnized in
prefit or boss for any subsequent write-down of the asset te fair value less cost ta sell.

Intangible Assets

Bronch Licenses, Branch Licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and of
Bringing the asset to its use in the cperations. Branch licenses are not amortized and deemed 1o
have an indefinite useful lite as there is no forezeeable limit to the period over which thase are
expected to generate net cash inflows for the Bank.

Branch licenses are reviewed annually to determing whether events and circumstances continue 1o
support an indefinite useful life aszessment. The change in assessment from indefinite to finita life
will be accounted prospectively.

Computer Software. Computer software B measured on initial recognition at cost,  Subseguently,
computer software is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment losses.
Internally-generated computer software, excluding capitalized development costs, is not capitalized
and expenditures are recognized in prefit or loss in the year in which the related expenditures are
incurrad.
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Computer software i amortized using straight-line method aver the useful life of five years and
assessed for imparment whenever there is an indication that the computer software may be
impaired. The amortization period and method wsed for computer software are reviewed annually.
Changes in the expected uselul life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
henefits embodiad in the asset are accounted for by changing the amartization period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimate.  The amartization an computar
software is recognized in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Other Assets
Other assets include prepaid expenses, refundakle depesits, cther investments, documentary stamp
taxes, RCOC!, deferred lease and ather miscellaneous items.

Frepaid Expenses, Prepaid exponses ane not yet incurred but paid in advance. Propaid expenses are
apporficned cver the pericd coverad by the payment and charged to the approprizte account iIn
profit ar loss when incurred,

Impairment of Mon-financial Assets

Property and equipment and computer software are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in cirgumstances indicate that the carmying amount may not be recoverable. Branch licenses
are assessed for impairment annually either indiwvidually or at the cash penerating unit (CEUY lavel,
as appropriate, The Bank assesses at the end of the reporting year whether there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amwount. An assel’s
recovarable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use and = determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of aszsets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds s recoverable amount, the asset 15 considered impaired and &5
written down ta its recoverable amount. In assessing value inuse, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to ther present value usng a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are recognized in
profit or loss,

An assessment is made at each reporting date as o whether there s any indication that previcusly
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recowerable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment Joss is reversed only if
there has bean 2 change in the estimatas usad to determine the aszet's recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. i that is the case, the carrying amaunt of the asset B increazed
to its recoverable amount. That increased amouwnt cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation and ameortization, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss unless the assel is carried at
revalued amaunt, in which case the reversal is treated a5 a revaluation increase. After such reversal,
the depreciation and amaortization, are adjusted in future years to allocate the asset’s revised carrying
amount on a systematic basis over its remaining wsefu life,

Sterling Bank of Asia

13

Equity

Common Stock. Comman stock is classified as equity and is measured at par value per share issued.
imcremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are recognized as deduction
form equity, net of tax. Otherwize, there are recognized as expense in profit or loss,

Preferred Stock. Preferred stock is classified as equity if it is non-redeemakle, ar redeemable only at
the Bank's option, and any dividends therean are discretionary, Preferred stock is classified as a
liability if this is redeemable on a speciflic date or at the option af the stockholders, or il dividend
payments are not discretionary. Dividends thereon are recognized as interest expense in profit or
lass as accrued,

Retoined Eornings.  Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss,
effects of the changes in accounting pelicy and other capital adjustments.

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Cther comprehensive income [less) comprises items of income and expenses lincluding items
previously presented under equity) that are net recognized in profit or less for the year in
accordance with PFRS. Other comprehensive income (loss), which is presented as “Other equity
reserves,” pertains to cumulative unrealized gains {losses) on AFS financial assets, cumulative
translation adjustment and cumulative remeasurement gains (losses) on retirement hability.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue (s recognized to the extent that it is probable that the econamic benefits will flow to the
Bank and the revenue can be relizbly meazured. Revenue is measured 2t the fair value of the
cansideration received, excluding discounts and rebates. The following specific recognition criteria
must alsa be met before revenue is recognized:

interest Income, Interest incomae is recognized in prefit or loss as the Interest accrues, taking into
atcount the effective vield of the asset.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument but dees not consider future credit losses.  The
calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective rate, transaction casts and all ather premiums of discounts,

Cnce a financial asset or group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest incame continees bo be recognized using the original effective interest rate
applied to the new carnying ameunt.

Tradimy and Securities Gains {Losses). Trading and securities gains or losses represent results
arising from trading activities including gains and lozses from changes in fair value of financial assets
at FVPL, and disposals of financial assets at FWPL amd AFS financial assets and gains and losses from
derivatives transactions.

Service Charges ond Fenolties, Service charges and penalties, which are presented under “Service

charges, fees and commissions™ in profit or loss, are recognized upon collection or being acorued
when there is reasonable degree of certainty as to its collectability,
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Fees ond Commissions, Fees and commissions arising from providing transaction services are
recognized upon completion of the transaction. Fees or components of the fees that are linked to a
certain performance of a service or a condition are recognized after performing the service ar
fulfilling the condition.

Gains [Losses) from Assets Sold or Acquired.  Income or loss from sale of properties acquirad is
recognized upon completion of the earming process and the collectibility of the sales prce s
reasonably assured. Gain or loss on Foreclosure of properties is determined as the difference
between the fair value upon foreclesure and the carrying amount of the loan. Gain or loss on
foreclasure of properties is recognized when the nsks and rewards of the property have been
transferred to the Bank.

Costs and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or less when a decrease in future economic benefit
related to a decrease in an asset or an increase of a hability has arisen that can be measured relably.
Costs and expenses are recognized upon receipt of goods, utilization of services ar when the costs
and expenses are incurred.

Imterest Expense. Interest expense is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest rate of
the financial liabilities to which these relate,

Operating Expenses.  Dperating exponses constitute oosts which anse in the normal business
aperations and are recognized when incurred.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits.  Short-term employes Bencfits given by the Bank to its employeess include
salaries and wages, social security contnibutions, short-term compensated absences, bonuses and
non-monctary bonefits, The Bank recognizes @ liability, net of amounts already paid, and am
expense for services rendered by employees during the year.

Short-term employes benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided.

Retirerment Benefits.  Retirement benefit costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit
credit method, which reflects services rendered by employees to the date of valuation and
incorporates assumpbions concerming employees” projected salaries,

The Bank recognizes service costs, comprising of curreént service costs, past service costs, gains and
losses on curkailments and non-routine settlements, and net interest expense or income in profit or
loss. Met interest expense or income is calculated by applving the discount rate to the net
ratirermant lizbility ar asset.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment
or curtailment and the date that the Bank recognizes restructuring-related costs,

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return an plan assets and any change in the
effect of the assel ceiling [excluding net interest on defined benefit obligation) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive incamea in the year in which these anse. Remeasuremants are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years.
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The retirement liakility is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan 2ssets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. The present value
of the retirement liability is determined by discounting the estimated future cash cutflows using
interest rate on government bonds that have terms te maturity approximating the terms of the
related retirement liability.

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity so that the amounts recogrnized in the
fimancial statements do not differ materally from the amounts that would be determined at the
reporting date.

Leases

The datermmnation of whether an arrangement is, or cantaing 8 lease 8 based an the substance af the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arcangement is dependent
an the use of & specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a nght to use the asset. A
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following apples:
[a) there is 2 change in contractual terms, ather than a renewal or extension of the arrangement: (b)
renewal option it exercited or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or extension was
initially included in the lease term; () there is a change in the determination of whether the fulfillment
is dependent on a specified asset; or (d) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Whaere reassassment is made, lease accounting commences or ceases from the date when the change
in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (o) or (d) above, and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenano [b).

Leases where a significant portion of the nsks and benehits of ownership over the properties are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Income Taxes

Current Tax, Current tax assets and hakihites for the current and pricr years are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax autharities. The tax rate and the tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting year.

Deferred Tox, Deferred tax s provided on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting year
between the tax bases of assels and liakilities and their carrying amounts for flinandal repoarting
purposes.

Deferred tax lhabilities are recognmized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset
revaluations. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carrylforward benelits of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, Lo the extent that it 15 probable
that sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and carryforwand henefits of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
Deferred tax, however, 15 not recogmized when it anses from the initial recognition of an asset or
lizbility in a transaction that i not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit er loss nor taxable profit or loss.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and
reduced o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient feture taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be wtilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assels are re-assessed at the end of each reporting year and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recoversd.

Deferred tax assets and lizbilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate (and tax laws} that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reparting year.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off the deferred
tax assets against the deferred tax Habilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxakle entity
and the sama taxation authaority.

Deferred tax relating to items recagnized cutside profit ar lass is recognized cutside profit ar loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in relation te the underlying transaction either in other
camprehensive income aF directly in equity,

Fiduciary Activities

Assets and income arising from fiduciary activities together with related undertakings 1o return such
assels bo customer are excluded from the financial statements of the Bank when the Bank acts ina
fiduciary capacity such as a nominee, trustes or agent,

Foareign Currency Transactions

RBLU. Transactions in currencies other than Philippine Peso are recorded at the rate of exchange
provailing on the date of the transaction. At cach reporting date, manetary assets and liabilities
dencminated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the reporting date.
Foreign exchange gains or lasses are recognized in profit or less in the year in which these are
incurred.

Mon-monetary items that are meazured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange ratec as at the dates of the initial transactions. Mon-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined.

FCDUL. As at the reporting date, the assets and lishilities of the FCDU are translated into the Bank's
functional and presentation currency at Philippine Dealing System (PD5) closing rate, and its income
and expenses are translated at PDS weighted average rate for the year. Exchange differences ansing
from translation to foreign currency are reccgnized as other comprehensive income under
“Cumulative translation adjustment.” Upon disposal of the FCOU or actual remittance of FCOU
profits to RBU, the deferred cumulative amount recognized as “Comulative translation adjustment”
in other comprehensive income 15 recognized in profit or loss.

lated Party Relationship and Transactions
Related party transactions consist of transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Bank
and its related parties.
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Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to contral the other party or exerciss
significant influence over the ather party in making flinancial and operating decisicns. This includes:
[a} individuals whao, by owning directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, contral ar
are controlled by, or under comman contrel with the Bank; (k) associates; and, (¢) individuals
owning, directly ar indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Bank that gives them significant
influence aver the Bank and clase members of the family of such individual,

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely the legal farm.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as a result
of a past avent, it is probable that an outflow of rescurces embedying economic bensfits will be
required to settle the obligation, and & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
sbligation.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
hatad an the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting year, including the risks
and uncertainties associated with the present ohlipation. Where there are a number of similar
chligations, the likelihcod that an ouwtflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of cbligations as a whole, When time value of money is material, long-term
prewvisions are discounted to their present values using 2 preta rate that reflects market assessment
and the risks specific to the chligation, Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting year
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate,

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes

to fimancial statements unless the possibility of an cutflow of resources embodying econamic
benefits is remote. Contingent assefs are not recognized in the financial statements but are
disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

E erthe B

Subsequent events that provide additional information about the Bank's financial position at the
reporting year are reflected in the financial statements when material, Subsequent events that are
non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material,

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management 1o exercise judgment, make
estimates, and use assurmptions that affect amounts of assets, liakilities, income and expenses
reported in the financial statements and related disclosures. The jedgments, estimates and
assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon managemeant’s evaluation of relevant
facts and circumstances as at the date of the financizl statements. While management believes that
the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual experience or
significant changes in the assumpticns may materially affect the estimated amounts. Actual results
could differ from such estimates.
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ludgmients
In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which hawve the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Determiming the Functional Currency, The Bank uses its judgment to determine the functional
currency such that it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions,
events and conditions that are relevant to the entity, In making this judgment, the Bank considers
the fallowing:

* the currency that mainly influences sales price for financial instruments and services or the
currency in which sales prices for its financial instruments and services are denominated and
settled,

*  the currency in which funds from financing activities are generated; and

*  the currency in which receipts from cperating activities are usually retained,

Based on the foregoing and the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the
Bank, the functional currency of the Bank has been determined to be the Philippine Peso, which is
the curre ney of the primary economic environment in which the Bank operates.

Determining the Foir Yolues of Finoncial Instroments. The Bank carries certain financial assets and
lizhilities at fair value. When the fair values of financial assets and liabilities recopnized or disclozed
in the financial statements cannot be derived fram the active market, the fair values are determined
usimg internal valuation technigues that include the use of mathematical maodels, The inputs o
these models are taken from observable market where possible, but where this I3 not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

The fair values of the Bank's financial instruments are disclased in Mote 5, Fair Value Measurement.

Determining the Classification of Finoncial Instruments.  The Bank exercises judgments in
classifying a fimancial instrument wpon initial recognition either as a financial asset, a fimancial
liakility er an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement
and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liakility or an equity instrument. The substance
of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs the classification in the statement of
financial positicn.

The Bank, in classifying financial assets, evaluates, whether the asset iz guoted or not in an active
market. Included in the evaluation an whether a financial asset is quoted in an active market is
the determination on whether the guoted prices are readily and regularly availakle, and whether
those prices represent actual and regularly eccurming market transactions on an arm's-length
basis, among athers.

In addition, in classifyving financial assets as HTMW investments, the Bank evaluates its intention and
ability to hold such investments wntil maturity.  Ability to hold the debt securities to maturity is
demonstrated by the availahility of financial resources to continue bo finance the investment wntil
maturity. If the Bank fails to keep these investments until maturity other than in specific
circumstances, 1t will be reguired to reclaszify the entire portfolin a3 AF% fimancial assets.
Thee investments would, therefore, then be measured at fair value and not at amortized cost,
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The “tainting” rule requires the reclassification of the entire HTM partfalio to the AFS financial
assels category and prohibits the Bank from using the HTM investments category during the
reporting year and for the succeeding two full financizl years, whenever it sells ar reclassifies more
than an insignificant amount of HTW investments before maturity, other than for permissible
reasons.

Determining the Classification of Lease Agreements. The Bank, as a lessee, has various exsting lease
agreements. The Bank has determined that the lessor retains zll significant risks and benefits of
ownership over the leased properties. Accordingly, these leases are accounted for as operating
leases.

Rent expense amounted to PEI1 million and PE49 million in 2016 and 201%, respectively
[see Note 21},

Evalwating Contingencies. The Bank is currently invalved in various legal proceedings pertaining to
collectibility of its loans and receivables, The astimate of the probable costs for the resolution of
these claims has been developed in consultation with cutside counsels handling the Bank's delense
in these matters and is based on an analysis of potential results. Based on the opinion of its legal
counsels, the Bank is in a good position to secure a favorable judgment in most of these cases.
Management therefore believes that the ultimate cutcome of these proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on the Bank’s financial position and performance [see Mote 28]

Assessing the Bonk's Ability to Continue a3 a Going Concern, The Bank's management has made an
assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and s satisfied that the Bank has the
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not
aware of any maternial uncertainties that may cast significant doubl wpon the Bank's ability 1o
continue as @ going concern.  Therefore, the financial statements continue to ke prepared on the
going concern basis.

Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the fuiure and ather key sources of estimaticn uncertainty at the

financial reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liakilities within the next financial year are discuszed below.

Estimatirng Impairment Losses on logns and Receivables.  The Bank reviews the individually
significant loans and receivables at each reporting date to assess whether an impairment loss should
be recognized. o particular, judgment by management 5 required in estimating the amount and
timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. In estimating these cash flows,
the Bank makes judgment about the borrower's financial sitwation and the net realizable value of
the collateral covering the loans and receivables. These estimates are based on a number of factors
and assumptions which may differ in the future and may result to changes to the reguired allowance
for impairment losses,

Loans and receivables that have been assessed individually and found not ta ke impaired and all
individually insignificant loans and receivables are then assessed collectively, in groups of asses
with similar characteristics, to determine whether provisions should be made due to incurred boss
events for which there s ohjective evidence but whaose effects are not yet evident. The callective
assessment takes inbo account the data from the loan portfolio, historical defawlt and
concentrations of risk and economie,
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Provision far credit and impairment losses an loans and receivables amaunted to B52.6 million and
FELG million in 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 10). The allowance for credit and impairment
losses on loans and recevables amounted to B489.0 million and B447 .8 million as at Decembear 31,
20156 and 2015, respectively (see Note 10).

The carrying amount of loans and receivables amounted to B22,745.1 million and #18,635.3 million
as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively [see Nole 10].

Assessing impairment Losses on AFS Financiol Assefs. The Bank determines that AFS financial assets
are impaired when there has been a significant or prelonged decline in the fair value below its cost.
The determination of what is significant ar prolonged decline requires judgment. In making this
judpment, the Bank evaluates, among other factors, the future cash fAlows and the discount factor.
In addition, impairment may be approprste when there s ewidence of deteroration in the financial
health of the investee, dismal industry and sector performance, adverse changes in technology, and
negative operabiena| and finoncing cash flows,

Mo impairment losses on AFS financial assets were recognized in 2018 and 2015,

The carrying amvount of AFS financial assets amounted to BL3IT4.0 million and #2 4361 million as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note ).

Assessing impoirment Losses on HTAM Investments. The Bank determines that HTM investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. The
determination of what is significant or prolonged decline requires judgment. In making this
judgment, the Bank evaluates, among other factors, the future cash Mows and the discount factar.
In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial
health of the investee, dismal industry and sector performance, adverse changes in technalogy, and
negative operational and financing cash flows,

Mo impairment losses on HTM investments were recognized in 2016 and 2015,

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the carrying amount of HTM investments is P351.4 million and
R34A0.0 million, respectively [see Mobe 9),

Assesting impairment on Bropch License. Branch license is determined to be an intangible asset
with an indefinite useful life because there is no foresesable limit to the period on which the branch
license is expected 1o generate net cash inflows for the Bank. The branch license is required to be
assessed for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that it may be impaired.

The branches have bBeen identified as the CGU for purposes of impairment assessment of branch
licenczes,

When the branch license's fair value less cost of dispoesal is lower than ils carrving amount, the
recoverable amount is based on value in use calculations that use a discounted cash flow model. The
cash flows are derived from the projection for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Bank is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance
the asset base of the branch being tested, The recoverable amount is most sensitive ta the discount
rate as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate wsed for extrapolation
PUrposEs,
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Mo Impaiment losses were recognized in 2016 and 2015, As at December 31, 2016 and 2015%, tha
carrying amount of the branch licenses amounted to F225.4 millicn (see Note 13).

Assessing Impairment on Property ond Eguipment ond Computer Software, The Bank assesses
impairment on property and equipment and computer seftware whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amiounts of these assets may not be recoverakle.

The relevant factors that the Bank whether to perform an asset impairment review include, ameng
athers, the following:

= cignificant underperformance relative To expected historical or projected fulure operating
results;

* significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets er the strategy for overall
businass; and

*  significant negative industry er economic trends,

Thare i no andication that preperty and eqguipment and computer software are impaired.
Accordingly, no impairment losses wera recognired in 2016 and 2015,

The carrying amaounts of property and equipment and computer saftware are a5 follows:

Mote 2016 015
Property and equipment 11 R450,259,826  #493,138 5572
Computer saftware 13 59,819,419 1,568,724

B510,079,245  ®494.757,276

Estirnating Useful Lives of Property and Eguwipment and Compuler Softwere. The Bank estimates the
useful lives of property and equipment and computer software and for purposes of computing
depreciation and amortization based on the year over which the assets are expected to be available
for use. The estimated useful lives of are reviewed annually and changed, if expectations differ from
previous estimates due to physical wear and Lear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal ar
other limits on the wse of property and equipment. Howewer, it is possible that future results of
aperations could be materially affected by changes in factors mentioned in the foregoing, The
amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any vear would be affected by changes in these
factors and circumstances, A reduction in the estimated wseful lives of the property and equipment
and computer software would increase the recorded expenses and decrease assals,

There was no change in the estimated wseful lives of the property and eguipment and computer
software in 2006 and 2015, except for leasehold improvements. The estimated wseful life of
leasehold improvements was changed from five to 10 years or lease term, whichever is shorter in
2016, The effect of the chanpe resulted to additional depreciation ameunting to #2.1 million in
2015,
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The carrying amounts of property and equipment and computer saftware are as follows:

Mote 2016 2015

Property and equipment 11 R450,259,826 #4593 138,552
Computer software 13 59,819,419 1,558,724
B510,079,245 2499 757 276

Determening the Voluohion and Classification of Foreciosed Assets, The Bank classifies foreclosed
assels, which will be recovered principally through sale, as assebs held for sale. The Bank is
cammitted to sell and actively market the foreclosed assets at o price that is reasonable in relation
ta their current fair value. In determining the Fair value of assets held for sale, sales price are
analyzed by applying appropriate units of comparison, adjusted by differences Between the subject
property and related market data. Any subsegquent wite-down of the asset to fair value less cost ta
sell is recognized as impairment loss in profit or loss.

Provizian for impairment loss on assets held for sale amounted to BLS millien and nil in 2016 and
2015, respectively [see Mote 12). Loss on foreclosure of assets held for sale amcunted to
F18.4 million and FE.3 million in 2006 and 2015, respectively (see Mote 12}, Assets held for sale
amounted to #2102 million and R117.2 million as at December 31, 2005 and 2015, respactively
[see Note 12},

Determining the Retirement Liokiity. The determination of the obligation and cost of retirement
benefits is dependent on selection of certain assumptions determined by management and used by
the actuary in calculating such amounts. These assumpticons inclede, among others, discount rate
and salary increase rate. Actual results that differ from the assumptions are sccumulated and
amortized over future pericds and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded
obligations in such future years.

In determining the approprigte discount rate, management considers the interest rate of
government bonds that are denaminated in the currency in which the benefits will he paid, with
extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit ebligation.
Further details about the azsumptions used are pravided in Mate 22 ta financial statements,

Retirement hiability amounted to #72.1 millicn and #62.6 million a5 at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 22},

Assessing Realizabiity of Deferred Tax Assefs. The Bank reviews the carmyng amaount of deferred tax
assets at each reporting date and reduced to the axtent that it is no longer probakle that sufficient
taxable praofits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred taw assets to be wtilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovened.

The estimates of future taxable income indicate that deferred tax assets on certain temporary
differences may be utilized in the future,

An at December 31, 2016 and 2015, net deferred tax assets amounted 1o R17.1 million and
Pa4_2 million, respectively [see Note 24).
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As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank did not recognize deferred tax assets on temparary
differences totaling P413.6 million and #3749 million, respectively (see Note 24). Management
assessed that it is not probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow zll ar
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Financial Risk Management Dbjectives and Policies
The Bank has exposure to the following major risks from its use of financial instruments:

+  Credit risk
= Liguidity risk
*  parket and interest rate nisk

Risk Governance

The Bank’s BCD has overall responsibility for the cversight of the Bank’s risk management praocess.
The established risk povernance framework together with the supporting structure provides for the
mechanism to ensure oversight and accountability for risk at various levels in the arganization.
Various board and management committess, which are responsible for developing, managing and
manitoring specific risks that the Bank iz exposed to, include the following:

Risk Management Committes |RMC]
Audit Commitbee (AC)

Loan Committee [LOANCORM)
Assel-Liability Committes [ALCO)
Credit Committee [CRECOM)

R

RML 15 responsible for developing the Bank's risk stratogy and the supporting mck managemant
palicies, ensuring the scundness of risk management practices in relation to the risks faced by the
Bank.

RML it supported by the Risk Management Group [RMG) in the exercise of its risk aversight
functions. RMG, which is independent of the business units and is directly reporting to the RMC,
performs daily market sk analyses to measure market risk exposeres and ensure compliance with
the Bank's policies, pracedures and limit sbructures, and makes recommendations kased on such
analyses. RMG, likewise, monitors eredit risk exposures and portfalia movements, They also take

the lead in the develepmaent of the Bank's credit acceptance pelicies, risk classification and profiling
through the administration of the internal credit rating system and the determination of appropriate
levels of allowances for credit loszes.

AL is responsible for monitoring the Bank™s compliance with the risk management policies and
procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of risk management framework in relation to the risks
heing faced by the Bank. AC is aisisted in these functions by the Internal dudit (14) Departrnent.
14 undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the AC,
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LOANCOM is a Board Committes that acts as the highest appraving bedy for loan and other credit
related matters, except for directors, officers, stockholders and related interest [DOSRI) loans.
It ensures that the credit approval or endorsement of credit facilities is bazed on a diligent, sound
and prudent evaluation of the risks involved and 15 alipned with the Bank’s strategic abjectives in
terms of asset quality,

ALCC is responsible for ensuring that the Bank maintains adequate liguidity, sufficient capital and
the appropriate funding to meet business requirements and comply with regulatory requisibes. [t is
also responsible for building a stable funding structure by managing the Bank’s asset and liability
profile. Maoreowver, it manages the Bank's financial pozition and ensures that the Bank's liquidity,
capital and funding structure support the business strategies. It likewise establishes the Bank's
asset-hability pricaing policies.

CRECOM is the management level committee that evaluates and screens all credit proposals that
requires the approwval of the President, LOANCOM or BOD, and likewise monmtors credit
underwriting activities performed at management level. It ensures that credit risk is within the 20D
established risk tolerance levels and that proposals comply with the credit underwriting standards
as established in the Bank’s policies and procedures.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or counterparty fails to meet its
contractual obligations, The Bank's credit risk exposure arises largely from the lending, trade
finance and investrmaent activities. The Bank manages credit nsk threugh an established risk cantral
framewark that provides for policies and guidelines to the business units together with & system of
irmits reflectve of the Bank's nisk tolerance and capacity, A monitoring mechanism s alse in place
to ensure that exposures to individual counterparties, related acoounts, countries, and industries
are within BOD established and approved limits and that any credit concentration s within
atceptable lavals.

While the Credit Risk Coantrol Department of RMG (CRC-BMG) provides for an independent risk
manitoring and contrel of credit exposures, each business wnit 15 respensible for the quality and
performance af its credit portfelio. As the first line of defense, business wnits are respensible for
maonitoring and controlling the credit risks in its partfolio. The CRC-RMG meanwhile, provides an
independent evaluation of the Bank’s credit msk exposure through review of loan proposals and
credit processes, bommower risk assessments, and credit administration. This is compleme nted by
regular audits of business units and credit processes undertaken by 1A that provide for assurance
and feedback mechanisms to determine sufficiency and effectiveness af established nisk cantrals,
The Bank extends various types of loans, several on cleanfunsecured basis, and others against hard
collaterals and other form of securities.  Personal and salary loans are generally granted on a
cleanfunsecured bazis. Other consumer lending products are largely a2sset-backed financing with
auto loans secured by chattel mortgage on the vehicles and real estate loans secured by first real
estate maortgage on residential or commercial properties, The Bank’s commercial/small-medium
enterprise loans cover a mix of clean/unsecured [which includes those under personal guarantees)
as well as secured credit facilities (ie., thase supported by real estate and chattel mortgages,
guarantees and other registered secunties). Esbimates of fair value 2re based on the value of the
collateral assessed at the time of the barrowing.
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All lsan applications, covering the differenmt types of leans, undergo strict credit evaluation in
atcordance with established risk acceptance crteria. The essential elements that the Bank
considers for all its credit dealings and account relationships are: favorable cradit checking; gocd
credit standing and track recard with other counterparties, banks and trade partners alike; financial
strength and cash generating capabilities (fund sourcing), which franslate into determination of
paying capacity that establishes repayment expectations; and acceptable collateral fsecurity, i
applicable. Furthermiore, credit underwriting is performed within 2 framework of delegated oredit
authorities that take inbo account facility risks and magnitudes of potential exposures.

Management of Credit Risk
The BOD, throwgh RMC, is assisted in the monitoring and management of credit risk by the CRE-
RiviG, which continuously implements s risk control programs, in line with 115 oversight function

over the Bank's lending activities.

CRC-RMG is principally tasked with identifying, monitoring,

reporting and contralling the Bank's credit risk. The speafic functions of CRC-RMG are as follows:

*  Takes charge of administering the Bank™s lending policies, ensuring compliance by those
concernied with continuous 1ssuance of updates on policies and process gusdelines for bank-wide
implernentation and compliance.

*  Lpearheads the activities af the CRECOM, whose main objective is to evaluate and sereen lean
proposals requiring approvals beyond ling managameant levals.

*  [lassifies borrowing accounts according to several levels of risk, based on the internal credit risk
rating system and loan portfalie assessments, to regularly determing loan impairments for the

purpose of determining the appropriate loan loss reserves,

*  Conducts credit stress testing and regularly evaluates and menitors the guality of the Bank's
loan portfolic via the Portfolio Profile Report, as part of the scheme of cantralling large
concentration and group exposures,

Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk after Collateral Held or Other Credit Enhancements
The Bank's maximum expoture to the crodit nsk s equal to the carrying amount of the financial
assets, except for the following loans and receivables:

FLL
Falr Value of Financial Btfocts
Collaterals oF Credit Mok E o s all Codlatorals or
Carrying Ansount Erhancemeonts fo Credin sk Credit Enhancements
L s and necednabies

Receivables from customers
Corparate loars 11,370 528 68T P2 404,184 634 D 0, 017,905 Pl 443 510,782
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Concentration af Credit Risk Exposure of Financlal Assets
Thie Bank manitars concentration of credit risk by industry. The distribution of the Bank’s financial
assets and off-balance sheet items by industry sector, before taking into account collaterals held ar

26

other credit enhancements imaximum exposure) are as follows:
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The Bank regularly assesses whether there is cbjective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. Indication or evidence of impairment may include, among others,
indications that a borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in principal andfor interest payments, probability that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization/restructuring, and other observable data
indicating measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in business ar
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

The Bank addresses impairment assessment in bwo areas: individual or speafic assessment and
collective assessment.

Individua! or Specific Assessment, The Bank determines the impairment loss appropriate for each
individually significant loan or receivable on an individual account basis. Factors considered in
determining the appropriate amounts of impairment less inclede an account's age, payment and
collection history, short and medium-term prospects in the industry, timing of expected cash flows
and realizable value of collateral.

The Bank establishes critena for specilic lean impairment testing and wses the discounted cash fllow
technigue method to compute for impairment loss. Accounts subjected to specfic assessment and
are found to be impaired are excluded from the callective impairment assessment.

Callective Assessment,  Collective assessment for loan impalrment losses are perfermed on
commercial loans and receivables that are not individually significant and those sigmificant loans and
receivables, which were individually assessed for impairment but were found not to be impaired.
Generally, the Bank apphes the probability of loss method in determining the collective impairment
loss, where such probability i derived from the product of default rate and loss rate. For personal
and salary loans, the added dimension of net flow rate methed is considered.  This methed utilizes
the histerncal data on movements of arrearages (Now-over and low-back] acress the different
delinquency age buckets, as a means of determining default and loss rate,

Credit Quality per Class of Financial Assots

In compliance with BSP Circular Ho. 439, which governs banks’ developrment and implementation of
internal credit risk rating systems, the Bank has developed and continually reviews and calibrates its
internal risk rating system for large exposures aimed at uniformly assessing its credit partfolic in
terms of risk profile.

The following takles show the credit quality of financial assets by class, gross of allowance famounts
in thousands):

ZILE
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29
2015
Less than 31to 51 to a1 to Over
30 Days 60 Days 90 Days 180 Days 120 Daye Total
Loarms and disoosunt -
Corsurmer lending F3,479 PE,137 p57.342 PE7 639 R424,137 P55E, 784

A, Moody's Rating

The credit quality of trading and investment securities is generally manitored through the external
ratings of eligible external credit rating institutions.

Presented below is the mapping of the credit risk rating from external rating agencies of the Bank's
internal risk rating for investment securities:
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The table below shows the aging analysis of past due but not individually impaired loans and

receivables by class (amaounts in thousands).
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For debt securities not rated by any rating agency, the Bank performs the credit rating review far
the issuers of the debl securities based on guantitative and gqualitative analyses, the data of which
are provided by the Treasury/Trust Group.

Below is the guidance in evaluation if the investment is impaired or not.

Credit Quality Rating Assessment
High Grade 1and 2 Mot Impaired
Standard Grade 3 Mot Impaired
Substandard Grade 4 Impaired
Impaired % Impaired

For loans, the credit quality is generally menitored using the Bank’s internal ratings system. ILis the
Bank's policy to maintain accurate and consistent sk rabings acrass the credit portfolio.  This
facilitates mamagement to focus on major potential risk and the comparison of credit exposures
acrass all lines of business, demographics and products, The rating system has two parts, namely,
the barrower's risk rating and the facility risk rating. B is supported by a variety of financial
analytics, combined with an assessment of management and market infermation to provide the
main inputs for the measurement af credit risk.

The Bank wses Internal Credit Risk Batings to classify the credit quality of its recevables portfalia,
This is being upgraded, as needed, to enhance credit evaluation parameters across different market
segrnents and achieve a more sound and robust credit risk assessment,

Descriptions of the loan grades used by the Bank for receivables from customers are as follows:

Risk Rating Classification Credit Quality

1 Excellent High Grade

2 Strong High Grade

3 Good High Grade

4 SatisTactony Standard Grade
5 Acceptable Standard Grade
G Weak Standard Grade
[} Poar Impaired

8 substandard Impaired

| Doubtful Impaired

10 Loss Impaired

Risk Roting 1 — Exceflent. The berrower's ability to meet its financial commitments 1= extramely
strong and there is 2 very low probability that i will default on payments due in the coming year.
Thi barrower bas a high degree of stability, substance and diversity,

A borrower in this category has access 1o substantial amounts of funds through the public capital
market at any time. [t has a strong debt service capacity and has consérvative balance sheal
leverage [wis-a-vis the industry in which the borrower operates), The track recerd in profit terms is
very good. The borrower is of the highest quality, cperating reliably under wirtually any and all
econamic conditions.
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Risk Roting 2 — Strong. The borrower’s ability to meet its financial commitments is very strong and
there is a low probability that it will default on payments due in the coming year. The borrower
normally has a comfortable degree of stability, substance and diversity. Under normal market
conditions, borrowers in this category have good access to public capital market to raise funds.

Borrower has & strong market and financial position with a history of successful performance. The
overzll debt service capacity as measured by cash flow to totzl debt service is very strong: the
critical balance sheet ratios {vis-a-vis applicable industry) are conservative.

These bormmowers herein categorized are described as quality corporations or enterprises, which are
adequately capitalized and operating prafitably.

Risk Roting 3 — Good, The borrower's ability to meet its financial commitments |5 strong. 1t may be
described as a big or small corporation whose access to public capital market ar to alternative
financial market is @asy, may be limited ta periods of favorable economic andfor market conditicns,

A borrower in this category usually exhibits characteristics of some degree of stability and substance
and the probability of default is still guile low. However, it may still be susceptible to the negative
effects of cydlical business changes.

Typical traits indlude a combination of comfortable asset protection and an acceptable bzlance
sheet structure (wis-d-vis that industey]. The debt service capacity 85 meaeasured by cash flow analysis
is strong.

Risk Rating 4 - Sotisfoctory. The borrower has adequate capacity to meet its financial
cammitments. Borrower operates in an enavironment where clear risk elements exist and the
probability of default is somewhat greater. This probability is reflected in volatility ef earnings and
overzall performance. A borrower in this category normally has limited zccess te public financial
market. [t should be able to withstand normal business cycles, but any prolonged unfavorable
economic climate may create gradual deterioration inits financial health.

Typical for this kind of borrower iz the combination of reasonably sound asset and cash flow
protection. The debt service capacity 25 measured by cash flow is deemed adequate. The borrowear
has reported profit for the past fiscal year and is expected to report a profit in the current year,

Risk Roting 5 — Acceptoble, The borrower i5 less vulnerable but faces major angaing uncertainties
and exposure to adverse business, financial, or economic conditions that could lead to its
inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitments,

This category represents borrowers who may still be able to withstand normal business cycles.
However, any prolonged unfavorable economic and/or market condition would create an
immediate detericration beyond acceptable level,

This category will apply where the risk is still acceptable for the following reasons:

= There is sufficient cash flow either historically or expected for the future, in spite of an ecanomic
downturn combined with asset protection; or

= Thare is 3 mew business or project finance transaction,
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Risk Raofing & — Weak The borrower is more vulnerable but currently has the capacity to meet its
financial commitments. Adverse business, financial, or economic conditions will likely impair the
borrower's capacity or willingness to meet its financial requirements.

This category represents the type of berrower for which unfaverable industry ar cempany-specific
risk factors represent a concern. Operating performance and financial strength may be marginal
and it is uncertain whether the Borrower can attract alternative sources of financing. Typically, the
barrower will find it very hard to cope with any significant econemic downturn and a default in such
a case is more than a possibility,

Generally, a borrower in this category incurs net losses for ane or more years. Marmally, there is an
expectation that conditions will improve and the rating may be upgraded. Any deterioration,
haweover, will almest certainly result in an automatic downgradie,

In summary, this category includes those barrowers where the credit exposure is not 2t risk of loss
at the moment, but wherein performance has weakened, and unlezs present trends are reversed,
could lead to losses,

Risk Roting 7 = Poor. The borrower is currently vulnerable and is dependent on favorabile business,
financial and economic conditions to meet its financial obligations.

A borrower in this category is characterized by some probability of default, manifested by some or
all of the following:

*  Eyidence of weakness in the borrawer’s financial condition ar creditwarthiness.

*  LUnacceptable risk generated by potential or emerging weaknesses as far as asset protection
andfor cash flow is concerned. Concerns center on the potential for a continuation of
unfavorable economic, market, or borrower specific conditions or trends, which may affect
future debt service capacty.

*  Indications that the borrower’s ability or willingness to sarvice debt are in doubt.
*  Mecessily or strong hikelihood for rescheduling of the loan.
*  Decline in values of, or adverse developments on, collaterals securing the loan.

Risk Roting 8 = Substondord, The barrower is currently highly vulnerable and is in a state of default.
Substandard loans are loans or portions thereof which appear to involve a substantial and
unreasenable degree of risk to the Bank because of unfavorable or unsatisfactory characteristics.
These well-defined adverse elements axist in such loans where there is a possibility of future loss tao
the institution unlass given closer supervision. Such may include adverse trends or development of
a financial, managerial, economic or pelitical nature or significant weakness in collateral.  Basic
characterishics are:

*  Past due there is an mminent possibility of forechosure or acquisition of the collateral because
of failure of all collection efforts;

*  Past due loans to borrowers whose properties securing the loan have declined in value
materially or hawve been found with defects as to ownership or other adverse information;
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*  [urrent loans to borrowers whose financial statements audited by the SEC-accredited external
auditors show impaired/negative net worth, except for startup firms which should be avaluated
on a case-to-case basis;

* Remewed loans of borrowers with declining trepd in operations, illiguidity, or increasing
leverage trend in the borrower's financial statements without at least 2000% repayment af the
principal before renewal or extensicn;

*  Current loans of Borrowers with unfaverable results of operations for two consecutneg years ar
with impaired/negative net worth, except for startup firms which should be evaluated on a case-
bo-case basis;

= Loans under litigation; and
*  Past due loans for more than 90 days,

Risk Roting 9 — Doubiful, Berrower is in a state of default, where any of the fellowing factors are
prese nt:

= Account is already in “non-performing loan™ {NPL) status;
= Any portion of any principal and o interest repayment i3 o arrears for mare than 90 days;

=  The barrower is unable ar unwilling to service debt over an extended period of time and near
future prospects of orderly debt service 1s doubtful; and

* (Cwerdue loans wherein the prospects of fully apglying the collaterals is impaired due ta material
declines in market value, or subject of adverse claim,

The extent of probability of loss cannot be exactly quantified at this time. Although the passibility of
lzss is significant, there may be certain important and reasonably specific pending factors that can
wark to the advantage of the Bank and result in a strengthening of assets of the borrower. Pending
factors include merger, acquisition, capital injection and additional cover,

Risk Roting 10 — Loss, Borrower 15 in a state of default and the praspect for re-establishment of
creditworthiness and debt service is remate,

This category also applies where the Bank will take or has taken title to the assets of the horrower
and 15 preparing a forechosure and/or bguidation of the company.

These are loans, or porkions thereof, which are considered uncollectible or waorthless and of such
little value that their continuance 25 bankable assets s not warranted althowgh the loans may have
same recovery or salvage value. The amaunt of loss is difficult te measure and it is neither practical
nor desirable to defer writing off these basically werthbess assets even though partial recovery may

he oktained in the future. Basic characteristics are:

*  Past due clean loans, the interest of which has remained unpaid for a pericd of ix months:

* |oans payable in installments where amortization applicable to interest is past due for a pericd
of six manths, unless the loan 15 fully secured;
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*  When the bomrower’s whereabouts are unknown, or he is insclvent, or his earning power is
permanently impaired and his co-makers or guarantors ara insclvent or that their guarantes is

not financially supported;

*  Where the collaterals securing the loans are considered worthless and the borrower andfor bis
co-makers are insolvent: and

*  Loan considered as absalutely uncallectible.

Collateral and Other Credit Risk Mitigation

The amount and type of collateral, required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the
abligor, The Bank implements certain requirements regarding the acceptabihity of types of collateral
and valuation.

Collateral comes in the form of financial or non-financial assets. The main types of collateral
ohtained include cash or securities, charges over real estate or chattel properties, inventory and
trade receivables and mortgages aver residential properties. The Bank also abtains guarantess from
parent companies fer loans of borrowing entities belonging to a group of companies,

The Bank monitors the market value of collaterzl, and request for additional collateral in accordance
with the underlying agreement.

The following table shows the fair value of collaterals held agzinst the loans and receivables that are
neithér past dua nor impaired:

2016 2015
Properties #12,513,199 985 B3 106353,559
Deposits 269,752,733 306 843 879

p12,782,952,718 PR 417,207 438

It is the Banks palicy to sell foreclased assets throwgh public bidding (only after the assets are
appraized anew bo determine current market value, and duly bidded based on the approved
misrimurm bid price).

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is generally defined 25 the current and prospective rick to eamings ar capital ansing
from the Bank's inability to meet its oblipations when these become due, without incurring
unacceptable bosses or costs, Specfically, this pertains to events that may necessitate the Bank to
enter into transactions that would realize significant losses or costs in order to meet its chligations
when these fall duee.

ALCO is responsible for formulating the Bank's liquidity risk management polices, whereas the
RMG is responsible for monitoring such risks, Liquidity management is amang the most important
activities conducted within the Bank. The Bank manages its liguidity risk through znalyzing net
funding requirements under altermative scenarios, diversification of funding socurces and
contingency planning. The Bank utilizes a diverse ranpe of sources of funds, although short-term
deposits made with the Bank's netweork of domestic branches compnse the majority of such
funding.
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The Bank's liquidity risk is managed by holding sufficient liquid assets of appropriate quality to
ensure short-term funding requirements are met with minimum sacrifice to market price and by
maintaining a balanced loan portfolio, which is re-priced on a regular basis. Deposits with banks are
made on a short-term basis with almest all Being available on demand within three months.

The Bank's Treasury Department uses liquidity faorecast models that estimate the Bank’s cash flow
reguirements based on the Bank’s actual contractual obligations under normal circumstances and
extraordinary circumstances. RMG prepares a monthly maximuom cumulative outflow repaort, which
is an analysis of maturity gaps of the Bank's assets and liabilities.

Aging of Financial Assets and Liabilitles by Remalning Contractual Maturltles

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Bank's financial assets and lizbilities used for
liquidity  management based on contractual wndiscounted payments and receipts as  at
December 31, 2016 and 2015:
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss to future camings, fair values or future cash flows as a result of
changes in interest rate, foreign exchange rate, commaodity prices, equity prices and ather markat
chanpes, The Bank's market risk originates from its holdings of debt securities.

ALCO, chaired by the Head of Treasury, is the senior review and decision-making body for the
management of all related market risk. In managing market rick, the Bank uses a framework of
policies and procedures, measurement tools, controls and limits, The Treasury Group manages
assetfliakility risks arising from both normal banking cperations and from trading operations in
financial market. Daily menitering of comphance with the policies, procedures and himits s
performed by the Market Risk Department under RMG. The limits are annually reviewed by the
ALCO and RMG and approved by BMO RMG performs regular reperting to ALCO and ta the BMC,
which is a sub-committee af the BOD.

Interest Rate Risk
The Bank follows a2 prudent policy on managing its assets and liakilities so as to ensura that exposure
to fluctuations ininterest rate are kept within acceplable limits,

The Bank measures the sensitivity of its assets and liabilities to inberest rate fluctuations by way of
Earnings-at-Risk [EaR). EaR is a measure of hikely earnings volatility for accrual portfolios. It is
calculated as the change in income over the next 12 manths, given current exposures that will result
from one-year standard deviation change in interest rate, updated monthly. EaR is calculated based
an 99,.00% confidence level, It is accomplished monthly, with quarterly stress test.

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to 2 reasonable possible change in interest rate of
the Bank's mel intérest income and equily with all other variables held constant [amounts in
millions):

2016
Increade | Deoreade) in Dagis Palnty
50 100 [ {00y

Changes in net interest incorme:

Loans amgd recenvables F5a7 RI0.74 [F5.3T) {R1D.74)

Deposa Habilithes {12.44) {24.88) 121.44 I4.88
B a parcantage of the nat interast

income for the year {1%) {1%) 1% 1%
Chanpes in equity ® -

AFS financial assets {42.92) (&7.20) 4769 9847

T st o e Bawt ' gLty alfeedy parleded e bnpast of Iron unsmeet gffecting the anahit ar fadi
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ar
2015
Incrgase [Decrisse) in Bisk Points
50 100 (=X (10

Changes in net interest inoxme:

Loans and recelvables (= I AR [Ba. Ty (LRI

Deposs Babilities 11414 {22820 1141 2182
A5 a peroentage of the net interast

mcome for the year [1%p (1% 1% 1%
Changes in eguity * -

AFS fanancal asssts [10H.0E) [T 11663 24X KA

* e imgoct ov he Borsk s couity olreody mrludes the impact of ronsoctioes gffecting Ehe prafil o foss.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of an investment’s value erosion due to an adverse movement in
foreign exchange rate. It arisez due to a mismatch in the Bank's foreign currency-denominated
assets and lakilities.

Foreign currency-denominated deposits are generally used to fund the Bank's foreign
currency-denominated loan and investment portfolio in the FCOL. Banks are required by B5PF to
match the foreign currency-denominated liakilities with the foreign currency-denominated assets
held under the FCOU books, In addition, B5P requires 100% asset cover for its FCOU liabilities,
30% of which should ke in the form of liquid assets. As at December 31, 2015 and 2015, the Bank is
in compliance with the said regulation.

The Bank's policy is to maintain foreign currency exposure within acceptable limits and within
existing regulatory puidelines.

The following table summarizes the Bank's foreign currency-dencminated financial assets and
liahilities a5 at December 31, 2006 and 2015, Included in the table are assets and lakilities at
carrying amounts in Philippine Peso equivalent, categonzed by currency.

2018 2015

{10} Othars" Totall sn O G " Tita!
Finamcial Axyets
Cansh i £855 Bkt RAAOGL T4 BTl FGEDET AR PAXGIS 20 = CLERA R
Drne Froom pehes hanss 2ETR AR ARR ER2IY0.65% P AIEBES 1M 2 2ITEID M 141 DER 191 1 368 190 205
lertank kbans 178,967 5998 LERELNTED 232 803 531 = o] -
Loans and recetyvankes 418,095,505 - 418055, 505 S 47G4TE - AT 4TH

B PR IS5 T 107065007 AMEIFLENE  2A29204 40 141 DER DL 2. 470 JE) 403

Hnamcial Liabiltios

Depadt Cah Roes B A ADE I ITAGE 94 D PYRA00.IER 06 1AS.149 H0042031 4014137181
Nt Expamire B518,175,655  (PE9SET 03} PARELGOE SAF R1,734570847 FE1,136,15% RIE43 544 50K

Foueund of fora, Ualted Bingdhap fpucy, Cenpdion DoFor, Amdpipr folar, Monp Foog Bolipr, New Begfed Do, Singupoey Aofior, koo Fea,
Lol Frons orod O Yamia

The following takle sets forth the impact of reasonably possible changes in the USD exchange rate
on the Bank's net mcome [amounts in mallions):

2016
Increase (Decrease] in Currency
5.0% 10.0% (5.0%)  (10.0%)
USD P0.34 RO.68 (#0.34) [#0.63)
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s
2015
Increase (Decrease) in Curremcy
5_0% 10.0% 1 5.0 {10.0%)
ush FO.23 RLAT (#0.23) Ty

The increase in USD exchange rate represents depreciation of Philippine Pesa while the decrease in
UsSD exchange rate represents appreciation of Philippine Peso.  The increase or decrease in
exchange rate of other currencies is not significant.

Thare is no other impact in the Bank’s equity other than these already affecting the net incoma,

Market Risk in the Trading Book

The Bank is exposed to the potential loss in its trading portfolio because the value of its trading
positions is sensitive to changes in market prices and rate. The trading activities of the Bank include
investments on fixed income securities and foareign exchange trading, which exposes the Bank 1o
interest rate and fareign exchange risks. In the trading book, market risk is controlled by a daily
analysis of the Value-at-Risk (WVaR) of linancial instrument s under normal market conditions.

Objectives and Limitations of the VaR Methodology

The Bank uses the VaR approach in assessing the possible changes in the market value of the trading
portfolio based on historical data for a rolling one year period. The Bank employs the use of
historical methodology in calculating the VaR, This model assumes that the exact distribution of
past returns does not apply during sudden changes in market condition. The use of historical vaR
model has imitations, which requires @ significant amount of risk Taclor history, It does not caplure
probabilities that have not yet occurred while it captures irregularities present in the historical
database.

The VaR ligures are backtested to validate the robustness of the VaR model. The Bank performs the
hypothetical and actual backtesting procedures both for RBU and FCDU securities.  Likewisa, to
complement YaRl measure, thie Bank performs stress tests wherein the trading portfolios are valued
under extreme market sCEnanos.

VaR Assumptions/Parameters

The VaR that the Bank measures is an estimate, wsing actual histarical rates and revalues positions
for each change in the market. I is apprapriabte for all types of instruments, linear and non-linear,
with stable risk factors for which thaere is a rich histoncal database. Since VaR is an integral part of
the Bank's market risk management, VaR limits have been estaklished annually for all financial
trading activities and exposures against the VaR imits are monitored on a daily basis. Limits are
kased on the tolerable risk appetite of the Bank,

The Market Risk Officer of the Bank prepares a daily VaR report containing details on the VaR
amount, VaR limit utilization, and VaR limit breaches, if any. This report is submitted to the traders
concerned, Treasury Head, Chief Risk Officer, Treasury Operations Head, and the President.
Moreover, the VaR results are discussed and reparted in the manthly Risk Management Commitiee
meetings.

Sterling Bank of Asia
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The following table provides the VaR summary of the Bank for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015 [amounts in thousands):

2016 215
Foreign Exchange Fixed Income Foreign Exchange Fixed Incame
December 29 r19 20,385 Rz 34212
Avarage Daily 87 24,642 oy 61,4590
Highest 9430 45,301 1,987 111,759
Lowest 2.83 4,403 011 33,305

Fized income VaR includes value-at-risk for investment securities denominated in currencies other
than Philippine Pese. VaR being a measure of risk in the trading ook only includes held for trading
portfolio,

Tha Bank's trading in fived incoma sacurities it exposed to movemeants in interast rate. The high and
low of the total portfolic may not equel to the sum of the individual components as the high and
low of the individual portfoles may have occurred on different trading days. The VaR ar forcign
exchange is the foreipn exchange risk throughout the Bank. The Bank when agaregating the foreipn
exchange VaR and interest VaR does nat consider the correlation effects between the two risks,

Capital Manragement
The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management are to ensure that it complies with

externally-imposed capital requirements and mantaing strong credit ratings and healthy capital
ratios in ardar ta support its businegss and o masimize shareholdars” value,

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital, or issue capital secunties. No changes were made in the ohjectives, policies and processes
fram the previous year,

lato ifying Capi
Under the existing B5P repulations, the determination of the compliance with regulatory
requirernents and raties is based on the amaunt of the “qualifying capital” {regulatory net weorth} as
reported to B5P, which is determined on the basis of regulatory accounting policies that differ fram
PFRS im some respects.

The risk-based copital ratie of a bank, expressed as a percentage of qualifying capital 1o
risk-weighted assets, should not ke less than 10.00%. Qualifying capital and risk-weighted assets
[RWA) are computed based on BSP regulations. RWA consist of total assets less cash on hand, due
fram BSP, loans covered by haold-out on or assignment of depasits, loans or acceptances under latter
of credit to the extent covered by margin deposits and cther non-risk iterms determined by the
Monetary Board {MB) of the BSP,
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The details of CAR as reported to the B5P based on B5PF Circular 688, Rewvized Risk-Bosed Copital
Adeguaocy Fromewerk for Stondolone Thrift Bonks, Rural Bonks ond Cooperolive Bonks, are as

follows [amounts in thousands):

4l

2016 201%

Tier 1 capital B2259.580 F2.135 584

Required deductions 29236 A7 &0

2,230,344 2091984

Excess from Tier 2 deducted from Tier 1 Capital® - -

Met Tier 1 Capital 2,230,344 2,091,934

Tier 2 capital 1,005,247 961,952
Required deductions

1,005,247 061,953

Extess of Tier 2 deducted from Tier 1 Capital® - -

Met Tier 2 Capital 1,005,247 961,952

Total D_ualif'g'inE Capital B3 235591 F3,053,936

*Opohuctacms do Tier 2 Copdlol ore caoped af (Es fedod pross mmcent ovd oy excess shol be dedex ted froem Tey 1 Copifal

20146 2015
Credit RWa #23.686.572 B19 396,394
Market RWA 375,501 1606421
Cperational RWa 2,091,337 2,024,693
Total RAWA B26,153,410 P23 027 508
Tier 1 capital ratio 8.53% Q.0E%
Tetal capital ratia 12.37% 13.26%

The regulatory qualifying capital of the Bank conmsists of Tier 1 {core] capital, which comprises
paid-up common stock, surplus including current year profit, and cumulative foreign currency
tramslation less required deductions such as unsecured credit accommodations to DOSRI and
deferred income tax, Certain adjustments are made to results and reserves based on PFRS,
as prescribed by the BSP., The other component of regulatory capital s Tier 2 (supplementary)
capital, which includes paid-up preferred stock, unsecured subordinated debt and general loan
lass provision.

Standardized credit risk weights were used in the credit assessment of asset exposures, Third party
credit assessments were based on the ratings by Standard & Poor's, Moody's, Fitch and PhilRatings
an exposures to Soversigns, MDBs, Banks, LGUs, Government Corporations and Corporates,

The Bank has complied with all externally imposed capital requirements in 2016 and 2015,
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E.

Fair Value Measurement

The following table presents the carnying amounts and fair values of the Company's assets

measured at fair value and for which fair values are disclosed, and the corresponding hierarchy:

6
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Thare ware no transfers between levels/hierarchy of fair value measurements in 2016 and 2015,

The table below presents the financial assets and liabilities of the Bank, whose carrying amounts
approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of the transactions:

TOLE L
Carrying Amount Falr Value  Larrpng Ampount Fair Value
Financial Assets
Cash and other cash Hems EE25,137.059 #5215, 137,059 PEE, 754,312 FGEE, 731,312
D Fram BSP 3,142,341, 082 3142, 341 082 3,107.552,243 107652243
Due fram other banks 1.753.3659,335 1,753, 369.339 14410166495 1445 006 B4E
Interbank loans recerable 2.356.564, 116 356, 564,116 1.148,218,571 1.148.219.571

43
Aszets Held for Sale. Fair value is based on valuation using market data approach, as determined by
independent and/for in-houwse appraiser.

Refundable Deposits.  Fair value s based on discounted cash flows using the prevailing credit-
adjusted interest rata.

Other Financiol Liobilities. For finandal liabilities other than time depeosits and bills payable,
the carrying amounts approximate fair values considering that these are due and demandable,

Loams and receivables:
Recenvables from antomens:

Corparate laans 11,373 563,639 11,373,563 619 10604, B2 2,029 10 604 £33 020
Consumar Bandg ERO, 75D, 56T GR0, 759 56T 719,551 B51 T10. 561 251
Bills purchased 6,724,959 6, 714959 4,77LTIT 4L TIT
Lingusted debt Sepunmses 25,671,873 5,671,873 8,527,061 B.S2T 061
Accrued intErest intomes 1485 864,214 145 B64 214 150, 774,608 150,774 808
Ageniants Fesepvable 49,465,659 49, 466 559 A4,110,060 44,150 06D
RCOC! G937, 64K 937 48 145 K23 145823
B20,160,400,155 F20,160,800,155 RP17.927,156,931 B1T7 927,156,931

Flmanclal LiabStles
Deposit liabilities B3, 724,303,502 9, T3, D0E S0 FE521 583 198 PE 51581 148
Sills payable - = 36,781,584 367815841
Beorued interest 37,116,568 37116568 S0,722.871 50,722 871
Other Nabllmies® TOR, 210 408 T2, 210 408 E1& 208 585 £18. 208 508

F10.4565,630.478 F10,4659,630474 #49,227,293,198 P9, 27,291,138

"Ll o oy gaeelile. dier do PGEC, v nr orgiery, il paarchpess’ oo g swarpunl g posis

The methods and assumptions used by the Bank in estimating the fairr value of the assets and
liahilities of the Bank that are carried at fair value and those whose fair values are disclosed are as
Feslbews:

Debr Securities, Fair values are generally based upon quoted market prices, if available. 1f the
market prices are not readily available, fair values are estimated using either values ohiained from
adjusted guoted market prices of comparable investments or uwsing the discounted cash flow
methadaolagy.

Loans and Recoivables,  Fair values are estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology,
using the Bank's current incremental lending rate for similar types of loans,

Significant Unohsarvable Inputs Range (weighted average)
Transfer pool rate 3.52%. - 7.29%
Credit spread 0, 505% - 2.50%

Certain loans are subject to quarterly repricing, Hence, the carying amounts of these loans
approsimalte fair values,

Tirne Deposits ond Unguoled Debt Obligotions, Fair values of these instruments are estimated using
the discounted cash flow methodology using the Bank’s current incremental borrowing rates for
similar borrowings with matunties consistent with the remaining habilities Being valwed.
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6. Interbank Loans Receivable
This account perfains to shorl-term loans to lecal and Toreipn Banks maturing up to three months.
Interbank loans receivable amounted to B2,356.5 million and #1,148.2 million as at Decamber 31,
2015 and 2015, respectively. Interest income on interbank loans receivable amounted to
R4 3 million and PS4 million in 2015 and 2015, respectivaly.
Below are the ranges of interest rates applicable to the interbank loans receivable:
201i 2015
Local banks 2.5% to 2.56% 2.50%
Foreign banks 0.05% to 0.25% 0050 10 0. 25k
7. Finmancial Assets at FVPL

This account consists of government securtias amounting to BS01.5 millicn and B2, 1205 millicn as
at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Financial assets at EVEL bear effective interest rates as follows:

2016 2015
2.21% to 5.50% 120 to6.00%
1.65% to 27.84% 0000 to 3766

Philippine Peso-denominated
Fareign currency-denominated

Interast income from investment securities are as follows:

MNeate 2016 J1%
AFS fimancial assets ] F37,691,345 R142 839,079
Fimancial assets at FVPL 36,165,513 145529 361
HTM investrants 9 17,783,823 17.457.193

R151,640,681 R305,835,633

Met trading and securities gains {losses) from investment securities are as follows:

Nete 2016 2015

Financial assets at FYPL
Unrealized Lrading gains {losses) (F48,437,292)  (F130,3062,254)
Realized gains 13,389,218 41,571,875
AFS limanclal assels a 14,440,562 18,435,318
(P20,107,502) {P11%,855.061)
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Unrealized trading gains {losses) on financial assets at FVPL included wvnder “Net trading and
securities gains” in the statements of income amounted to P42.4 millicn and P1BC.9 million in 2016
and 2015, respectively.

AFS Financlal Asscks

This account consists of:

2016 2015
Governmenl sacurilias F7FES, 508 836 Pl 648306773
Private bonds 572,372,419 771,764,611
Lnguoled egquily securily 16,073,463 16,073,463

F1,373,254,718  B2436, 144,847

The unquoted equity securily pertains to investment in shares of stock of Bancnet, Inc. acguired on
Mowember 11, 2011, which the Bank intends to hiold for long-term.

AFS financial assats bear effective interest rates as Tollows;

2016 205
1.33% to 7.20%  LE3% to 7.18%
1.53% te 4.62% 1.27% Lo 3297

Philippine Peso-denaominated
Foreign currency-denominated

Met gain on sale of AFS financial assets amounted to 214.9 million and #12.4 million in 2016 and
2015, respectively (see Note 7).

Interest income amounted te PS7.7 million and P142.8 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively
[s2e Mote 7).

Tha movernents in cumulative unrealized gains (losses) an AFS financial assets are as fallaws:

Note 2016 2015

Balance at beginning of vear [P188,066,529) B24.605,598

Changes In Tair value 137,180,665 (194,708.627)
Gain on sale of AFS financial asset taken

b profit ar kss 7 [14,540,562) (18,435,318

Armartization of unrealized losses on

rec kastified AFS flinancial azsets 603,905 471,518

122 844, 008 [212,672,127)

Balance at end of year (F65,222,521) (F138,066,529)

Cumulative unrealized pgains (lozses) on AFS investments include unrealized losses on reclassified
AFE linancial assets amounting to #6.7 million and 6.3 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

Reclassification of AFS Financial Assets

The Bank identified certain eligible AFS financial assets for which it had a clear change of intent to
hald these financial assets until maturity in order to adequately manage it net INTerast &arning
streams by matching these securities against its core funding, 25 defined under its existing risk
management measuremeants and parameters.

Sterling Bank of Asia
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On duly 1, 2008, the Bank reclassified USD-denominated mvestment securities with face amount of
£2.3 million and effective interest of B.80% from AFS financial assets to HTM investments.
The reclassification is compliant with the criteria and rules set forth in BSP Circular Nos. 625 and
628, Guidelines on the Reclossification of Finoncial Assels, as well as these provided in the
SEC Memaorandum Circular Na. 10, Series of 2008, on Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7.

The carrang amouwnt and Fair value of financial assets reclassified out of AFS financial assets to HTM
investments amountad ta B133.6 million and FL79.% million, respectively, as at December 31, 2015,
and BL127.3 millicn and B17 1.0 million, respectively, as at Decermber 31, 2015,

Prior to reclassification, the fair value loss on the reclassified AFS financial assets recepnized in
“Met unreclized gains (losses) on AFS financial assets”™ reported wnder the equity section of the
statements of financial pesition amounted to B9, millien. Had the reclassification not been made,
the Fair value loss recognized in “Met unrealized gains (losses) on AFS financial astets™ would have
decreased by £46.3 million and B43.7 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively, As at December 31,
2015 and 2015, the Bank expects to recover the entire cash flows of these reclassified financial
assels,

4, HTH Investments
This account consists of;
2016 2015
Government debl securities:
Faoe value BX63 516, 000 B249 418 000
Linamartized premium 87,925 287 an 611,787
F351,441,287 F340,025 282
HTR investrients amounting to R208.2 milllion will mature on March 16, 2025 and Besar interast
of 3.99%. The cther HTM investments pertain to Republic of the Philippines bonds that will mature
on February 2, 2030 and bear effective interest of 7.47%,
Interest income an HTM investments amounted to #8178 million and B17.5 millon in 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 7). Amortization of premiom amounted to B2.7 million and B7.0 million in
20156 and 2015, respectively.
10, Leans and Becehvablos

This account consists of:

2016 M15
Receivables from customers R22.413.466.318 R1E201,735 200
Unguoted debt securities 602,008,930 649 948 166
Accrued interest income 145,864,214 159,774 608
Accounts recehsahble 49,466,659 44,110,080
Sales contracts receivable 24,304 872 27 585 7T
23,235,110,953 15,083,134 ,511
Allowance for credit and impairment losses (458%,015,002) FAET. 844 581)

R22,736,095,981 K18 5635289 930
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Recevables from customers consist of:

Note 2016 2015

Leans and discouwnis:
Corporate kending R11,560,694,641 R10,513,897,763
Consumer lending 10,853,116 ,4%7 7,388 357 405
Bills purchased 19 6,734,950 4770027
22.420,536.057 18,207.036,895

Unearned discounts and capitalized
interest (7,069,779) (5, 300,095)
BXZ413,966,318  R1E.201.735800

The follewing table shows information relating to receivables from customers by collateral
[at gross amounts):

2016 2015

Amount . Amount o

Secured by
Chattel mor gage F7,150,040,270 31.89 B2 995 583 998 21.95
Real estate mortgage 4,020.414.743 17.83 3 679 7136 055 20.21
Daposits 235,682 453 1.05 234,102,350 1.29
{ithers 48,552,971 Q.22 50,007,681 0.27
11,454,730,436 51.09 7959 430 0 43.72
LUnsecured 10,965,805, 661 48.91 10,247 606,801 55,28
B22,420,536,097 100,00 RLE ZD7 035395 100,00

As al Decemnber 31, 2016 and 2015, infoermation on the concentration of credit [at gross amounts) as
to industry follows:

a7

Majority ef the Bank's loan exposure arises from corporate and consumer loans extended to othear
community, social and personal activities. The lean preduct dees not cover 2 specilfic industry.
Hence, the Bank does not have concentration of credit risk to particuler industries as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015,

Thrift banks are not covered by the loan concentration limit of 30,008 prescribed by the BSE,

Non-performing loans {MPL), a5 a general rule, refer to loan accounts whose principal and/for
interest is unpaid for 30 days or more after due date or alter these become past due in accardance
with existing rules and regulztions of BSP. This applies to lcans payable in lump sum and loans
pavable in quarterly, semi-annual or annwal installments, in which case, the total outstanding
balance, thereof, is considered nonperforming.

In the case of receivables that are payable in monthly instaliments, the total cutstanding balance is
considered nonperforming when three or more installments are in arrears.  In the case of
receivables that are payable in daily, weekly, or semi-monthly installments, the total outstanding
balamce is conzidered nonperforming at the same time that these bacome past due in accordance
wilh existing B5P regulations (i.e., the entire cutstanding balance of the receivable is considered as
past due when the total amount of arrearages reaches 10.00% of the total receivable balance).

Based on the revised definition of NPL under B5P Circular Mo, 772, Amendments o Regulotions on
Non-Performing Loons, the gross and net MPL of the Bank as reported to the B5P amounted to
F935.7 million and BSO7.6 million as at December 31, 2016, respectively, and BLO045.5 millicn and
PE39.0 million as at December 31, 2015, respectively. The gross and net NPL ratios of the Bank are
3.90% and 2,14% as at Decembear 31, 2006, respectively, and 5.69% and 3.48% as at December 31,
2015, respectively.

Az at December 31, 2016 and 2015, breakdown of the secured and unsecured MPL Follows:

2016 2015
Secured R2B8,086,802  B403,970,798
Unsecured 648,613,229 541,513,687

FO36,700,031  B1,045 454,485

Restructured loans, which do not meet the reguirements to be treated as performing receivables,
are also considered as NPL, Restructured loans amounted to B10L6 million and #14.5 million a5 at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Interest income on restrectured receivables amounted
bo B9.6 millicn and BE.0 millkon in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Unquoted debt secunties consist of;

2016 2015

Amount % Amount ki

Criber cormmunily, social and
personal activiles B9, 597,263,048 42,81 RB5,950,504, 776 32 68
Wholesale and retall Lrade 4, 380,871,771 19.54 4 373, 672572 24.02
Real e<tate 31,421, 718,662 15.26 3.163.B40.356 17.38
Financial intermediaries 2,160,986,415 9.64 1,706,162.421 9.37
Manufacturing 1,701,046,832 7.59 1,545,759,825 2.49

Transportation, storage and

communication 419,461,458 1.87 791,102,021 4,35
Agricultural, hunting and forestry 371,514,617 1.64 379,686,122 2.08
Construction 199,774,219 0.89 111,053,664 .51
Miring and guarrying 153,000, kD0 0.68 171,000, D00 .54
Hotel and restaurants 11,995,247 0.05 11,155,812 .06
Eleciricity, gas and water supply 2,503,828 0.01 3,095,325 0.02
Rr22,420,536,097 10000 R13 207 036 855 100,00

Sterling Bank of Asia

2016 2015

Private bonds:
Face value PE01,8X7 876 F549 0935 831
Upamortized discount 1B1,054 §37 565)
REO2,008 930 PG540 948 266

Unquoted debt securities bear effective interest rates ranging from 3.14% to 6.75% in 2016 and

2015,
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Accounts receivable include receivables fram afficers relating te the car lease amounting 1o
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F28.5 million and P26.2 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively [see Nole 28},

Rales contracts receivable pertain to receivables from buyers of real properties classified az assets

held for sale, bearing nominal inberest of 10%, with terms of 10 ar 15 yvears.

The details of interest income on loans and receivables are as follows:

2016 2015

Conporate loans P&77,926,513 PE77.577.029
Consamer loans B30,579,843 633,502,508
Unguoted debl securities 38,053,940 41,969,073
Rills discounbed 45,323,253 4, 664, 765
Sales contracts recevahle 2,384,039 2,197,447
F1,594,667 588 B1 3095910412

Of the total loans amd receivables as at December 31, 2016 and 201% 61.48% and 55.93%
respectively, are subject to periodic interest repricing. The remaining pesc-denominated loans have

annual fixed interest ranging frarm 3,00% to 18,906 in 2016 and 3.54% to 24,00% in 2015,

The mavermnments in the allowance for credit and impairment losses on loans and receivables follow:
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11. Property and Equipment

The details and movemants in this account are as follows:

Fiti
Building and Furns#ure, Leasehald
Candaminium Finturnes and Rights and
Land Unlts qu.l'IFrn;-rl: Im_prau-rlunu Total
Cast
Balance sl beginimng of year F164, 344 500  P240.213655 2 FIXIATI SO0 0 RIEN BEI S0 R1OLOEL4 TS
Additkang - B5, 000 38,295 655 309,376 38,620,031
Dis posals - (123,456 (8,067, 775) (A0, 944 [B,552,175)
Reclassilcaton - TI9517 = [779,517] =
galance ot end of year 164, 344,500 42954, 716 363,601,350 162852055 1040751651
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amartlzathon
Balarce at beginining of year - BOE4E FEI 253 371 456 120,739, 818 Cid 750 026
[epreciation and amortization - 12 463,347 9 ATEOZR I7.953.41% 0,354 Tad
Dispasals {34,092 {6, 3045,024) [254,825] [7,227.345]
Redazsfication - 227,182 - [227,183) -
Balarce at end of year - 493 302 189 276,342 455 218,181,230 L37 825 875
Acowmlated Impalrment
Balarce ot bapinnanp and amnd
of year - 2667, 217 - - 2667 217
Carrying Amaunt F1E4, 344 500 ®153.985.310 BET. 258,924 B 6TOAIS  R450,259.55%
1015
Buildirg and Furmiture, Leasebold
Condamirium Fheturas and Rights and
Land Linits Equipment  Imgrovéments Tatal
Cost
Balance at bapinning of year FLEA 340,500 FIA7, 3899440  P30S,773.045% R2AS570DA00  FI71 ABT 2B
Additeans - 3,992 163 A0 B00, 224 14, 438 168 59,230,552
Dispsazale = (91,271} (19,790,769 [221,003] |23,103,043]
feclassiications (2,086,677 1,591,003 (504,326)
Balarce at snd of year 'I.E-I'I,ﬂﬂ-l'llﬁm A, 213,655 433 333,500 .'.'ﬁ.‘a,F.ﬂ.‘l._,'l-"l-l’fl LIFICkRIA, rag
Acowmulated Depreclatbon
and Amortization
Balance at beginndng of year - 8,830,940 Fi% 333 345 158 730,179 442 943 463
[eprecaton and amaortization - 11, 7R0,040 A8,576,639 22502, T LER L L
Dizpasals - - | 11,955 124} [72,194] 112,0:43,323)
Feclavadfications - 44,772 350, 597 [#1d,364] -
Banlarce al emnd al year - B0 515, 752 253,373,456 180,739 818 514,759,036
Aceumistated |mpalnment
Falarce at D'Eﬁll'll'l-iﬂﬂ and end
of yaar - 2,557 217 - - 2667217
Carrylng Amount RIGA_ 344 500  BI165, 900,584 RO, D4 FRX 541322 PAG3 18R GRD

2016
Corporate Consumer

Lending Lending Total

Balance at beginning of year F168,558,568 FZ78,956,013 Ra4T7 844 581
Prowision 25,675,876 26,952,824 52,638,700
Write-off [11,468,2659) - [11468,.263)
Balance ot end of year F183,096.175 #305918 237 F4ED 015012
Specific impakrmmcnt F163,188,152 PE5.399, 189 FI248.587 341
Collective impalement 19,908,023 210,519,648 240427671
F183,096,175 P305.918.837 FAE9.015.012

Gross ameunt ot loans individwally
determined to b impained FI15, 842,821 F330,027 618 FE4AS AT0,439
2015
Corpofate Consumer

Lending Lending Total

Balance at Beginning of year R234,714,216 P285,021 668 B520,735 BE4
Write-off {4E, 764,800 (105, 710,043) (154,474, B43)
Provision {roversal) {17,000, 848) 98 644 388 31,583,540
Balance at end of year F168, 958 568 TR 956,013 Pa47 B4 SR
Specific impairment #154 537,409 B359,472 015 B194,009 4E4
Collective impairment 14,351,099 439,483,598 153,835057
K168 538,568 RITE 956,013 R447 B44 GE]

Gross amoeunt of loans individ eally

detormined 1o Be impained PG, 765,054 B107,575 TR L0, 341 132

| Sterling Bank of Asia

Gain (loss) from sale of property and equipment included under “Net gain {loss) from assets sold ar
acquired” in the statements of inceme ameounted to BREF3, 705 and (B2 millien) in 2016 and 2015,
respectively [see Mote 12].

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the cost of fully-depreciated assets which are still used in

gperations amounted to P2E%.0 million and P235.9 millicn, respectively,
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Details of depreciation and amortization are as follows:

Natle 2016 2015

PFroperty and eguipment FBO, 254,794 B33,858.886
Computer software 13 1,522,683 303,294
F81,817.477 #34,162,180

12. Assets Held for Sale

This account consists of properties acgquired/foreclosed in settlement of loans and receivables
aggregating to RZ10.2 million and BLL7.2 million a5 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectvely,

Loans and receivables amounting to P224.3 million and #2317 million were reclassified to assets held

for sale in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

“Mat lnsnes from assets sold ar acquired” in the statements of income canzist of the fallowing:

MNale 2016 2015
Assets held for sale:
Liss an [oredlesure (R18,442,256) [FE,320,148)
Lovss an sale [18,338,002) 13.496,509)
Gain (loss) on <ale of property and
oauipment 11 673,705 §2,219,749)
(E36,106,553) {R14,036,406)

As at December 31, 2016 and 201% unrealized loss on foreclosure amounted to B2 million and
PE.6 million, respectively. Provision for impairment loss on assets held for sale amounted io

RL9millan i 2016 {see Nate 23],

13, Intangible Assets

This account consists of;

51

The impairment test on branch hoenses, where fair value less cost-ta-sell is lower than the carrying
amount, is based on value-in-use calculations determined using a discounted cash flow model. The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based an cash flow projections from financial
budpets approved by senior management covering a five-year period. The discount rate applied to
cash flow projecticns is 5.38% in 2016 and 2015, and cash flows beyond the five year-penod are
extrapalated using a steady growth rate af 20% in 2016 and 2015, which doas nat exceed the long-

term awverage growth rate for the industry.

The calculation of the value-in-use of the CGL is most sensitive ta the fellowing assumpticns:

= [iscount rate

»  Steady growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows bevond the projection period

+ Lacal inflation rate

With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of the CGLU, management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the foregoing key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the

branch licenses to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

Movemeants of computer saftware are as follows:

2016 2015

Branch licenses #225,390,000 #2125, 350,000
Computer software 58,819 6856 1,568,991
R285,209 686 #225,95%E8 991

Branch licenses are recagnized through business combination, including the branch licenses of C58,

amounting to PL2E.0 millicn, and licensing fees incurred in opening additicnal branches,

Az at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank has a total of 42 branches, Of the 42 branches, 18 are

in restricted areas

Sterling Bank of Asia

2016 2015
Cost
Balance at beginning of year B203,751,561 #2031, 277,499
Additions 59,773,378 474,062
Balance at end of yvear 263,524,939 203,751,551
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of yvear 202,182 570 201,879,276
Amortization 1,522,683 303,294
Balance at end of vear 203,705,253 202,182,570
Carrying Amount RB59,819,686 P1,568.991
14, Other Assets
This account consists of;
Mok 2016 2015
Prepaid expensas B49.053,686 A7 E21,142
Refundable depasits 21 23,283,099 23,002,514
Cther investments 4,663,333 4,663,333
Documentary stamp taxes 2,276,393 233,249
RCOCI 937,648 145,823
Deferred lease 752,112 1,181,740
Cthers 8,784,164 9,654,995
R90,750,435 B51,703,096

Prepaid expenses include prepaid rentals, group life insurance, and em ployee be nefits related to the

car plan for the officers of the Bank.
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Refundakle deposits include neninterest-bearing rental deposits.  Unamortized discount on
refundable deposits amounted to #752.112 and #1.2 million 25 at Decernber 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Accretion recognized under "Interest income on due from BSP and other banks”

amounted to B345, 705 and #8875 627 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Cther investments represent membership fees in Bancnet and Cradit Management Association of
the Philippines.

Deferred lease partains to the diference between the nominal value of the refundable deposit and
its fair value at inception of the lease, which is amortized a5 copense on a straght-line basis over the
lease term {see Note 21).

Others consist mainly of the deposit with a health care agency for the establishment of the Bank's
employes haalth plan,
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Intarest expense charged to the statements of income s as fallows:

Mote 2016 2015

Deposit labilities:
Time F408,205,981 RA97 444,055
Demand 15,082,237 13,384,390
Sawings 11,361,030 10,499 4315
434,699,248 521,327 880
Unsecured subordinated debt 18 30,708,904 30,625,000
Bills payakle 16 157,056 5,730,858
F465,515.208 BE57.6B3,718

15.

Deposit Liabilities

This account 15 consists of:

2016 2015
Time R19,758,725,138 P18,367 402 985
Demand 6,794,595,797 b,DO7 S04, 383
Cavings 2,929,707,705 2,514,078 765

R29,483,028,640 P26,883985, 133

B%P Circular B32, Increase in Resense Requirements, promulgated the L00% increate from 700 1o
B.00% in the reserve reguirements on peso deposit liabilities and deposit substitutes.

As mandated by BSP Circular 753, Unification of the Stotutony/legal ond Liguidity Reserve
Regquirement, Won-Remuneration of the Unified Reserve Requirement, Exclusion of Voult Cash ond
Demand Deposits o Eligible Farms of Aeserve Requirement Comelignee, and Reduction in the Unified
Reserve Reguirement Rotios, only demand deposit accounts maintained by banks with the B3P are
eligible for compliance with reserve requirements, thereby excluding government securities and
cash in vault as eligible reserves. Further, deposits maintained with the B5SP in compliance with the
reserve requirements should earn interest,

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank is in compliance with the foregoing B5P regulations.
The available reserves as at December 31, X016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 J01%
F2,142,340,882 #1957 652,243

Due from BSP - demand deposit account

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, 59.84% and 61.70% of the total deposit liabilities, respectively,
are subject to periodic interest repricing. The remaining deposit liabilities bear annual fixed interest
rate as follows:

L2016 2015
0.25% to 2.00%  0.50% to 2.50%
0.25% to 1.73%  1.00% to 2.25%

Pese-donominated
Dallar-denominated

Sterling Bank of Asia

16. Bills Payable

This account, which pertains to the BSP rediscounted loans with interest of 4.00%, amounted to

368 million a5 at December 21, 2015, The bills payvable matuned in 2016,

Interest expense on hills payable amounted to ®157.056 and RS.7T million in 2016 and 2015,

respectively [see Mote 15).

17, Accrued Interest, Taxes and Other Expenses

This account consists ol

2016 2015

Accrued expenses:
InTergst B37,116,568 ELD F22EF]
Compensation and other benefits 31,130,579 25,285 416
Rent 16,238,428 23,251 812
Security, massengenal and janitenal FA60,190 6,784,097
Litilities and leased line 4,888,241 1607 891
ATM-related expenses 1,518,719 2,464,916
Cthers 14,537,512 4,638,228
113,290,237 115,755,231
Accrued gross receipts bax 7,213,765 4,830,634
R120,504,002 ®120,585 865

Accrual for other expenses pertains to expenses for insurance, publications, repairs and

malntenancs.
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14,

Unsecured Subordinated Debt

On January 5, 2012, the Monetary Board of the BSP, in its Resclution Ma. 30, approved the
Bank's issuance of Unsecured Subordinated Debt with aggregate principal amount of RS00,0 million.
The Unsecured Subordinated Debt, which was issued cn May 30, 2012, bears interest of 5.125% par
annum, payable quartery,

The Unsecured Subordinated Debt will mature after 10 years from issuvance date but may be called
by the Bank on any interest payment date after the Sth year of issuance at principal amount plus
accrued interest.

Interest expense on Unsecured Subardinated Debt amounted te RI0.7T million and B30.6 millien in
2015 and 2015, respectively (see Note 15).

15.

Other Liabilities

This account consists of;

MNote 2016 2015

Accounts payable ®G69, 857,155 RS 400 294
Due to PDIC 27,322,517 27102 067
Withholding taxes 17,622,150 14,158 496
Bills purchased - contra 10 6,724,959 4717127
Marginal deposits 3,778,605 2097812
Statutory obligations 2,428,117 2,155,761
Payment arders 527,172 B2 805
Cthers 18,407,217 8,713,675
k746,667,892 Ped31 243 527

Accounts payable pertain to noninterest-baaring payables normally settled within ane year.

Due ta POIC pertains to the Bank's insurance premiurn on deposit liabilitses, which was subsequently
paid 3 month after the reporting date.

Cthers include staled checks and incoming dollar remittances to the Bank for payment 1o variouws
payees as part of its intermediary services.
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Maturity Profile of Assets and Liabilities

The following tables present the assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2016 and 201% analyzed
according to whether these are expected to be recovered or settled within 12 months or over
12 months from the reporting date:
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Operating Leases

The Bank leases the premises being occupied by certain branches for periods ranging from live to
1t ywears, renewable under certain terms and conditions.  The rent expense included under
“Occupancy” in the statements of income amounted to #33.1 million and #E4.9 millicn in 2016 and
2015, respectively,

At the inception of the lease, the Bank pays the lessors security depasits, which are noninterest-
bearing and are refundable upon termination of the lease agreements. Refundable depasits related
to lease of properties amounted to 2233 million and B23.0 million in 2016 and 201%, respectively
[see Note 14).

The following table presents the future minimum lease payments of the Bank for non-cancellable
leases:

2016 J01%

Within one year B16,710,B53 R21,293. 128
hMore than one year but not more than five years 14,178,194 30,889,046
B30,889,047 B2 182,174
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22, Retirement Benefits

The Bank has & funded, noncantributory defined benefit retirement plan covering all of its officers
and regular employees. Under the retirement plan, all covered officers and emplaoyees are entitled

ta cash benefits after satisfying certain age and service requiremants,

Thie retirement fund of the Bank 15 placed under the managemaent of the Bank’s Trust Group starting
in 2013 with oversight fram the Bank's Retirement Fund Committes, which is appointed by the BOD.
The Retirement Plan Trustee, as appointed by the Bank, in the Trust Agreement, is responsible for
the general administration of the Retirement Plan and the management of the Retirement Fund.

The retirement benefits recognized in the statements of incame follow:

2016 2015
Current service oosi R14,160 589 B13,088 485
Met interest cost 3,154,766 3,133,254
F17,315,355 F16,221.739
Decails of cumulative remaasuramant lass fallawe:
2016
Curmulative
Remeasurement Deferred Tax
Gain | Loss) [see Note Z24) Net
Balance at beginning of vear 1,709,437 F512,831 Fl,156,606
Remeasurement loss [162,583) {48,855) [114,0E88)
Balance al end of year 1,546,454 Fa63,936 #1,082,518
2015
Cumulative
Benseasurement Dielerredd Tax
Gain [Loss] [5ee Mole 24] Mt
Balance at beginning of year (BF13 0F4) [B213,922] (R299.152)
Remeasurement gain 2422511 726,753 1,695 758
Balanee at end of year B1,70M,437 F512.831 #1,196, 606
Retirement lizkility is as follows:
2016 S
Present value of retirement oblipation F85,211,757 BE7E42.011
Fair value of plan assets (13,138.847) (5,047 430)
R72,072,910 P&2 594,572
Movements in the present value of retirement hability follow:
2016 2015
Balance al beginning of year FE7,642,011 BG2,713,130
Current service cost 14,160,589 13,088,485
Interest cost 3,309,157 3,368,776
Remeasurement gain - (2,632.213)
Berelits paid = [15,896,167)
Balance at end of year F85,211,757 RE7 542,011
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Mowvements in the fair value of the plan assets fallow:

2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year 05,047,439 P5,021.619
Contributions paid 8, D00, (k0 =
Interest ineome 254,391 235523
Remeasurement loss (excluding amount included in
net interest) |162,983) (209,702}
Balance at end of year k13,138,847 Fo, 047, 4359

The plan aszets are carried at fair value, All equity, debt instruments and investments of the pooled
funds held have quoted prices in 2ctive markel. The fair value of other assets and liabilities, which
inClude deposits in banks, B5P's spedal deposit account, accrwed interest and other receivables and
trust fee payvables, approximate carrying amount due to the short-term nature of these accounts,

The plan assets are diversified investments. Those in short-term placements will be further invested
depending on the market direckion.

The fair value of plan assets by class follow:

2016 2015
Debt instroments:
Government securities 15% 67%
Private bonds TH 17%
22% g%
Imwvestrments in Unit Investrment Trust Funds Ta% 10%
Equity insbrumengs
Fimancial intermeadiaries 2% B
Fair value of plan assets 100 100%

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the retirement liability as at December 31,
2015 and 2015 are shown below:

Mscount rate 5.04%
Salary increase 3.00%
Average expected future years of service 14,00

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of aach
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as at December 31, 20156, assuming all
other assumptiens were held constant:

Effect omn
Basiz Points  Retirement Lizbility

Miscount rate +100 bps (BB, 463,173)
=100 bps 10,727,511
Salary increase rate +100 bps {9,615,820)
=100 bps 0,340,857
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The average duration of the defined benefit cbligation at the end of the reparting year is
20164 years.

Ehown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as at December 31,

2016:
20107 1o 2021 R30,171.201
2022 10 2026 33 204 908
2027 o 2031 859,529,165
2032 1o 2036 126,765,539
2037 and bavond 338 349 718
FE18,621.531
3. Other Operating Expenses
Cther expenses consist of:
Natle 2016 2015
Fees and comm issions RE1,951 602 B49,055,622
Postage 40,200,552 32,327,614
Repairs and mainlenance 38,064,992 37,118,708
Appraisal fees 17,465,485 11,466,458
Litigation cost 11,296,908 2948 026
Management and other professional fees 10,806,262 2,607 080
lansportation and travel 10,576,095 10,354 948
Supervision lees 10,450,638 9,419,382
Slationery and supplies used 10,285,740 &,5495, 780
Promalicons and adverlising 3,010,073 3,472 842
Proviston [or smpairment losses of assels
held Tor sale 12 1,916,024 -
Others 11,211,316 7.973,776
B227 875,187 B179,440,234
24, Income and Other Taxes
Current intome tax expense consists af:
2016 2015
Regular corporate incomie tax (RCIT) PB5,498.546 k-
Final tax 25,430,952 58,940,427
Minimum cerporate neome tax [MIIT) = 17,457,570
P110,5925,458 PF75,3597,997

Under Philippine tax laws, the Bank iz subject to percentage and cther taxes, presented as
“Taxes and licenszes™ in the statements of income, a5 well 25 income taxes. Percentage and othar

taxes paid consist prindpally of gross receipts tax (GRT) and documentary stamp tax,
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Republic Act [RA) Mo, 9337, An Act Amending Naotional internal Revenue Code, provides that the
repular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate is 30% and interest expense allowed as deductible expense
is reduced by 33% of interest income subjected to final tax

RA Mo, 9294, An Act Restoring the Tex Exemption of Qffshore Benking Units (OBUs) end Foreign
Currency Deposit Uinits, which Became effective in May 2004, provides that the income derived by
the FCOU from Toreign currency bransactions with mon-residents, off-shore banking units (OBUs),
and local commercial banks, including branches of foreign banks, is tax-exempt while interast
incame on fereign currency-denominated loans from residents other than OBUs or other depository
banks under the expandead system is subject to 0% cnshore intome tax.

The reconciliation between the statutory income tax and effective income tax follows:

2016 2015
Statutory income tax B55,092, 235 R14021,136
Tax eflects of;
Nondeduclible expenses 124,466, 763 134 487 503
Interesl income subject o final Lax {54,170, 501) (83 262 484)
Non-tazable income (45,172,00%) 152 479,767
Changes In unrecognized deferred tax assels 11,595,425 (12,036,233}
Expired KOLCO = 26,E81,183
Expired MCIT - 11,331,532
FG1,E11,917 FAE Q47 870
Deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of:
2016 2015
Deferred Lax assels on:
Allowance for credit and Impalrment losses R45,053,998 41,454, 046
Accrued rent 4,871,528 6975514
Allcrsrance for impairment losses on assets held far
sale 4,023,436 3 448,629
Lnrealized loss an lorechosu e of acguired assels 1,184,220 2,594,301
Carry lorward benelil of BMCIT - B ER2 118
56,132,632 £3,.234.7318
Deferred Lax liabilities on:
Fair value adjustment on branch Bcenses acquired in
business combination (38,400,000) (38,400,000}
Remeasurement gain on relirement liability (677, B58) (726,753}
Wit defenned L agsets F17,054,774 Fa4,207.985

Ag at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Bank has not recognized deferred tax assets relating to the
following deductible temperary differences, NOLCO and carry-forward benefit of MCIT ever RCIT,

2016 2015

Allowance for credit and impairment losses B335 836, 854 BR300, 663,761
Retirement liability 73,072,910 52,594,572
Accumulated impairment of property and eguipment 2,667,217 2,667,217
P413,576,981 R374 925550
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Management assessed that it is not probable that sufficient future taxable proft will be available 1o
allow all or part of the unrecopnized deferred tax assels to be utilized.

Details of the MCIT Tollow:

Year Incurred Amount Applied Balance Expiry Year
2013 F13,375.608 F13,3275 604 B 016
2004 15,486,510 15,486,510 - M7
2015 13,858,359 13,858,369 = 208
B2, 720487 B2 720487 =
25. Capital Stock
This account consists af;
Mumber of Shares Ameunt
2016 2015 2046 L0135

Autharized - B10 par valse

Camman stoi 300, D00, DD 00000000 FA.000,0000000  R3,000 000,000
F‘erpetualnr-arerrgd shiock 100, D0, e IEIII:.IJI.'.III.EH:IJ 1., DO 0, e, LD 1 OOk KK, DO
ssped ard cutstarding:
Carman stock
Balance at beginning of year 20T D00, DO 189,500,000  FZO70.000,000  RLE9S5 000,000
|ssuanoe = 17,500,000 = 175,000,000
Balance at end of year 207,000,000 207 000,000 B2,070,000,000  R2,070.000,000
Perpetual preferred stock
Balarce at Mﬁlnmnr. and end of year 30, D00, DD 0, 000, D 300, 000, DO B R0, CHO, 0

In 201%, 17.5 millien common shares were ssued to the stockhaolders for a tetal amount of
RL75.0 million. The msuance of commaon shares was approved by the 80D an Octobar 20, 2005,

The perpetual preferred stodk, which has an annual dividend rate of 4.275%, = cumulative and has
no voting rights. &s at December 21, 2016 and 2015, cumulative preference dividends amounted to
F33.7 million and P20.5 million, respectivaly,

26, Related Party Transactions and Balances

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank can enter into loan and other transactions with its
related parties and with cortain directors, officers, stockholders, and related interests [DOSRI).
Under the Bank's policy, these loans and other transactions are made substantizlly on the same
terms as with other individuals and businesses of comparable ricks. The amount of individual loans
to DOSRI, of which 70.00% must be secured, should not exceed the amcunt of their respective
depasits and book value of their respective investments in the Bank, These limits do not apply to
lzans secured by assets considered as non-risk as defined in the regulaticns,
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BSP Circular Mo, 580, Ceilings on foons, ather credit accommodations ond guarartess granted fo
subsidiories ond offiiotes, provides the rules and repulations that govern loans, other credit
atcommaodations and guarantees granted to subsidiaries and affiliates of banks and quasi-banks.
Under the said circular, the total outstanding loans, credit accommedations and guarantees te each
of the bank's subsidiaries and affiliates should not exceed 10.00% of 2 bank's net worth, the
unsecured portion should not exceed 5.00% of such net worth, Further, the total outstanding
exposures should not excesd 20.00% of the net worth of the lending bank.

BLP Circular No. 423, Amendments to Sections X326 to X338 of the Maonuol of Regulotions of Bonks,
provides for the amended definition of DOSRI accounts. The following table shaws information
relating 1o DOSR| accounts of the Bank:

2016 2015

Total cutstanding DOSRAI loans F150,055,134 F265,086,783
Percent of CO5RI accounts granted under BSP

Circular Mo, 423 0.63% 1.46%
Percent of DOSAI accounts 1o tetal loans 0.63% 1.46%
Percent of past due DOSR] accounts to total HOSRI loans - 0.47%
Fercent of nenperferming DO5RI1 accounts to total

581 boans - 0.47%

Any viglation of the provisions under BSP Circular Mo, 423 is subject to regulatory sanctions.
However, loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees, a5 well as availments of previously
approved loans and committed credit lines that are nat considerad DOSR1 (rRon-DOSRG accounts
prior to the issuance of B3P Circular Mo. 423 are not covered by such sanctions for a transition
period of two years from the effectivity of the Circular or until said loan, other credit
accommodations and guarantees become past due, or are extended, renewed or restructured,
whichever comes later.

Total interest income on OSR]I accounts amounted to PL0.8 million and F2.5 million in 2015 and
2015, respectively,

Tha effects of the farepoing tramsactions are shewn uader the approgriate accaunts in the financial
statements.

The significant transactions and account balances with respect to related parties that are included in
the financial statements follow:

2016 2015

Tranzhctiane utstanding TrarSaeteang Cuseanding

Mature of Transactions durlr‘ thi= Year Esances during thi Year Balamces
Key Management Perconne|

Lans and recefvables F338,000 F3,340,014 B, 242 000 G B85,088

Inlerest mosme 313,803 - 386,074 -

Dapasit liabilkias 266,793,062 3E,294,. 267 152,169 879 35,735,211

INTarest Expaite B10,957 - 995,363 =

Becounts receivables 11,589, 152 18 514 509 14,694,753 26 217,159

{Farward)
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27, Trust Operations

2016 2015
Transactons Dutstanding Transactions Cuistanding
Mature of Transacthons during the Year Balances durmﬂ_ thie Yaar Balances
Subsidiaries of the Parent Company
loans and receivables F452 A8S5 000 PL45,033,591 16,028,057 F264 ARG 4%
Acervued bnterest Incorme 11051 574 - 3 B3I 3R -
Do posit liabilities 183 415,469 332 B34 318,543 165,256 94,085 AR5 958 353
Acoued mterest expense 1,536,323 21158 4,136,395 94,158
Trust fea 527, 200 - a7 Fo3 -
Rent expense B.A6E 674 - 6,108,506 -
Farent Company
Depasit labilities 741,347,103 56,541,393 421,399,173 6,671,915
Interest expens 44, 519 - 18 ELY -
Stockholders
Loans and récelvables 2 0400, 000 1,021,304 2 000,000 2,100,234
Acerued interest income #2636 - B BHE -
Deposit liabilities 2377 A05 033 162 547 504 1,581 063,456 100,621,238
Beoorued pnberesl Expenie T, EED E5.029 2. 238,061 121,529

Terms and Conditions

Loans and receivables are secured by chattel mortgages, deposits and real estate properties, having
terms ranging from one to 18 years, and bear interest ranging from 3.00% to 12.00% in 2016 and
2015, A5 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, no provision for credit and impairment bosses was
recognized relating to recevables from related parties.

Depasits have Interest ranging from 0,.25% to 2,00% far bath 2016 and 2015,

Trust fees pertain to fees charged for trust operations. These are included under “Other expenses”
in the statements of income.

Rent expense pertains to leases of ATW and branch premises.

Compensation of key management personnel included under “Compensation and fringe benefits™ in
the statements of income follows:

2016 2015

Short-term employes benelits P125,100,401 P113,101.81%
Post-employment retirement benelits 8,757,028 917,127
F133,857.429 B121,018.5946

Transactions with Retirement Plan

The retirement plan of the Bank is considered as a related party. The retirement plan is in the form
of a trust administered by the Trust Group under the supervision of the Retirement Fund
{ommitiee, The values of the assets of the fund are as follows (see Mote 22):

2016 2015

Imvestments in UITFE 9,940,772 RABA 855
Debi Instrunients 2,871,075 4,244 784
Equity imstruments 327,000 313,800
F13,13E,847 B5,047,439

Sterling Bank of Asia

Cn May 21, 2008, the Bank was granted a license by the BSP to conduct its trust operations, The
Bank started its trust operations on June 2, 2008.

Securities and ather resources held by the Bank in fiduciary or agency capacity for its customers are
not included in the accompanying statements of flinancial poesition since these are not assets of the
Bank. Total assets held by the Bank's Trust Group amaunted to BE1 Billion and P47 billion as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

In compliance with current banking repulations relative to the Bank's trust operations, government
securities included under AFS financial assets with a total face value of RG2.0 millien and
B46.0 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are deposited with the B5P.
In addition, 10% of the Bank's net income realized Fram 115 trust aperations 15 appropnated to
surplus reserve until such reserve for trust cperations amounts to 20% of the Bank’s regulatary
capital.

, Cammitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of the Bank’s operations, there are variows outstanding commitments and
contingencies such as guarantees and commitments to extend credit, which are nat reflected in the
financial statements. The Bank does not anticipate significant losses as a result of these
tramsactions.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2015, the Bank 15 involved in vanous legal proceedings pertaining to
collectibility of its loans and receivables. The estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of
these claims has been developed in consultation with outside counsels handling the Bank's defense
in these matters and is based on an analysis of potential results. Based on the opinion of its legal
counsels, the Bank is in 2 pood position to secure a favorable judgment in most of these cases,
Management therefore believes that the ultimate cutcome of these proceedings will nat have a
material adverse effect on the financial position and performance

The following is a summary of the commitments and contingencies at their equivalent contractual
aMounis:

_ 2016 2015
Investment management account FS,'EED,BII,IH.‘“ M.ﬁﬂl,lﬁﬁ,ﬁ&l
Spot exchange 402,840,539 B0, 020,000
Trust growp stcaunts 174,591,908 245,872 480
Sighifusance loreign LC 45,437,018 35,463, 094
Dameslic kellers of credil (LC) 16,774,800 22,500 000
Sight/usance domestic LC 14,117, 8%4 16,286,920
Imward bills lor collectkon 6,567,159 8,905,499
Tuitstanding guarantees issued - others 8,566,848 5. 750,265
lterms held for safekeeping 122,110 158,128
Late payment deposit/payment received 545,570 53,300
lerms held as ccllateral 6,819 2,345
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2%, Financial Performance 30, Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue [BIR)

The following basic ratics measure the financial perfarmance of the Bank: Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010
3016 1015 Gross Receipt Tax (GRT)
Return on average equity 3.27% 1.24% The Bank i= subject to GRT onits gross imcome from Philippine sources, GRT is imposed on interast,
Return on average assets 0,274, 0. 10% fees and commissions from lending activities at 5.00% or 1.00%, depending on the loan term, and at
Net interest margin on average eaming assets 4.27% 1.88% 7.00% on non-lending fees and commissions, trading and foreign exchange gains and other items
CONSHITULIAE BROsSs IRCOme:,

Tha details of the GRT expense and corresponding GRT tax baze in 2016 are as follows:

GHT Tax Base GHI
Imterest income R1,548 948,587 RBEL, 730,042
Othars 05, 426,603 16,747, 78T

P1,954 375,190 FOR S4R,B29

Taxes and Licentios

This includes all other tawes, local and national, incurred in 2016 and lodged under the "Taxes and
licenzes” account in the statements of comprehensive income, as follows:

Amount
GRT PO93 545829
Documentary stamp takes 59 190 918
Real estate, municipal and other taxes 7049 280
Fringe benefit taxes 3,139,514
Lar registration 153 390
B R178,080,231
Withhelding Taxes
Details af total ramittances in 2016 and balances in 2016 fallaw:
Paid Accrued
Final withholding taxes #65,094,332 #5404 329
Compensation taxes T3, 722,217 9 795, 149
Expanded withholding taxes 15,280,288 1422 672

R155,096,837 B17622,150

Tax Assessments and Casas

As at December 31, 2016, the Bank has no tax assessments and noe cutstanding tax cases, litigation
andfor prosecution in couwrts or bodies outside the BIR.

Revenue Repulations No. 19-2011

Taxable Imcome
Taxable interest income of RBU amounted to 81 477,962 900,
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6B

The difference bebtween taxahle interast income and the interest income presentad in the statemeant

af incame is as follows:

67

The difference between the dedoectible cost of services and itemized deductions shown ahove and
the interest expense on deposit lisbilities, bills payable and others, operating expenses and
provision for credit and impairment losses presented in the statement of income includes loss on
foreclosure amounting to F19,.808,857 and boss on sale of acquired assels amounting lo #18,338,002,
which are previously presented under other income ard charges, as well as the following:

Mondeductible inlerest expense B120,231 667
Cperating expenses allocated to exempt and transactions already
subjected to final fax 116,781,516
Wondeductible expenses 77,498,004
Provision for credil and imparment losses 52,638,700
Retirement benefits 16,515,355
Acerued rent {6, 270,274)
Provision [or mpairment of asseis held lor sale 1,916 024
R370,311,062
Cther Taxable Income

KEL FCOU Total

Service charges, Tees and commissions #1183, 498 306 B25,133.198 RIS, 631 504

Foreign exchange pains 16,284 427 = 16,284 427

Trading and securities gains 527,431 650,408 1,177,835

Others 8,158,610 99 8,158,709

R0 468,774 B25, 783,705 B34 151,475

The difference between other income and charges presented in statement of income and octher
taxable income is as follows:

Unrealized trading losses (P48 437,292
et wadhag:-in*;m enemipl ransaclion: 27,151,951
Lnrealized loreign exchange gains 6,267 386
Dividend intome 3,786,000
Lass an foreclosure 1,366,601

(P9, 265,354)

inleresl income already subjected 1o linal Lax 164 507 718
Exemplinteresl incame 135,656,032
F300,203,750
Deductible Cost of Services and |temized Deductions
Deductible cost of services of the Bank are as follows:
HEL FCDL Total
Intarast expense E345, 283541 E- Ri45 JE3 541
Compensation and fringe benefits 282,714,857 4,112,161 1B6,847,018
AN TR 41,867,294 2,371,454 44,338 748
Supervision 9,066,920 205,220 9,272,140
F573042 512 PG, 698 EA5 PFEE5, 641 447
Itemized deductions of the Bank are as follows:
REL FCDL Tatal
Taxes and licenses R155,625, 023 Bl 7406028 FLGL 305,617
Compensation and fringe benefits 138,388, 9E5 1,966,697 140,355, 683
decupancy 98,144, 430 1,332,779 94 477,200
Deprecialion and amortization 12,503,195 1,054 540 73,557,736
Serurily, messengerial and janitorial 47,569 881 651,891 48,261,772
Fees and commissions 33,512,749 2,282 335 35,705 0dd
Repairs and mainlenance 334831317 45T DS 313,970,323
Loss on foreclosure 19,308 857 - 19,808,357
Loss on sale of acguired assels 18,338,002 - 18,338 003
Appraisal leet 15 477,175 225,111 15,702,286
Litigation 11,296,508 . 11,295,908
Management and professional fees 9576054 139,280 2,715,334
Slationery and supplies used 9,114,789 132572 0,247 351
Tramsportation and (ravel 4,169,479 55,990 4,235 4549
Fuel and oil 3,520,953 £l 165 3572124
Inturance 3,040, 8955 44 957 3135913
Promation and advertising 2,667 400 38 M7 2,005,197
Fines and penalties 1,255,432 1,259,432
Kembership fees and dues 1,132,763 16475 1,149,239
Others 50,582,080 1,457 845 61,049,926
742,272,435 F11,718047  F753,590.482
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STERLING BANK OF ASIA INC. (A Savings Bank)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMEBER 31, 2016

PFRS

Title

Mot
Adopted

Mot
Applicable

PFRS &

Mon-current Assaets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Qperations

Amendrment bo PFRS 5: Changes in Methods ol Digpasal

PFR5 &

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Fimancial Instruments: Disclocures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassilication of Financial
Assels

Amendrments to PFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial
Assels - Effective Date and Transition

Amendrments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Fimancial Instruments

amendments to PFRS 7: Disclotures - Translers af
Ewvandial Assety

Amendments Lo PFRS 7: Disclosures = Offselling
Fimancial Assels and Financial Lizbilities

Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts

amendment to PFRS 7: Applcability of the
Amendments o PFRS 7 1o Condensed Interim Financial
Slatemenis

PFRS 8

Qperating Segments

Amendments Lo PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
sSegments

amendmenis 1o PFRS &: Reconciliation af the Total of
the Repartable Segments” Assels bo the Entity's Assels

PFR% 10

Concolidated Financial Slatemenis

Amendments to PFRS 10 Transition Guidance

amendments o PERS 10: Investmen] Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying
the Consalidation Exception

PFR3 11

Jant Arrangements

amendmenis o PFRS 11: Tramsition Guidance

: Mok Mok
L Adopted | 1 pted | Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
¥
Conceplual Framework Phage A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics
PERSs Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Philippine Financial Reperting Standards |PFRSs)
Mot feot
F
oo L Adopted | dopted | Applicable

PERS 1 [Revised) First-time Adaption af Philippine Financial Reparting »
Stamdards
Amendments Lo PFRS 1: Additional Exemplions for o
Firsl-lime Adoplers
Amendment to PFRS 1: Uimited Exemption (rom
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time L
Adopters
amendments to PERS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and o
Remowval of Fised Date for First-time Adopters
amendmenis o PFRS 1: Governmenl Loans +

FFRS 2 Share-based Payment v

Amendments to PERS 2: Vesting Conditions and &
Cancellalions
amendments Lo PFRS 2: Group Cash-setiled Share- <
based Payment Transactions

FFRS 3 [Revised] | Business Combinations ¥
amendment Lo PFRS 3: Accounting for Canlingent v
Consideration in a Business Combination
amendment Lo PFRS 1: Scope Exceptions Tor lobnt f,

Venlures

Amendments o PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions
ol Interests i Joint Operations

PFR3 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

PFHS 4

Insurance Confracts

Amendments o PFRS 12 Tramsition Guidance

amendments Lo PFRS 4: Financial Guarantes Contracis

Amendments Lo PFRS 12 nvestment Entities
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MNot Mot
PERS Titl Adopted
" Adopted | Applicable
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities: Applying v
the Consolidation Exception
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement v
Amendment Lo PFRS 13: Short-lerm receivables and o
Payables
Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception v
PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts o
Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs)
Not Mot
FAS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
PAS 1 {Revised] | Presentation of Financial Statements v
Amendments to PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments ey
and Crhligations Ariting on Ligukdation
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of ems of Other ¥
Comprehensive Income
Amendment bo PAS 1: Clanfication of the v
Requirements lor Comparalive Presentation
Amendments to PAS 1: Dischosure Initiative v
PAS 2 Inventories ¥
PAS 7 Statemsent of Cash Flows ¥
PAS § Accounting Podicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates -
and Errces
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period ¥
PAs 11 Construction Contracts "
PAS 12 Imcame Taxes o
amendments o PAS 12 - Delerred Tax: RBecovery of v
Underlying Assels
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Eguipment .
Aamendment to FAS 16: Classification of Servicing v
Equipment
Amendment Lo PAS 16: Revaluation Betheod -
Proportionate Réstaternent of Accumulated ¥
Depreciation
Amendment to PAS 15: Property, Plant and Equipment
= Clarification of Acceplablke Melhods of Depraciation v

ant Amorlization

£ heia g A:l::tted Aini:;hIE
Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants .
PAS 17 Leases
PAS 18 Fevenus
{;ﬂ;z' Employee Benefits v
Amendment to PAS 19: Delined Benefit Plans: o~
Employee Cantributions
Aamendrment to FAS 19: Discount Rate: Regional Market i,
fsue
PAS 20 gi;ii:mi[u;;:u;:;::mt Grants and Disclosure of g
PAS 21 The Effects of Changss in Foreign Exchange Rates
Aamendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Cperation
PAS 23 (Revised) | Borrowing Costs v
PAS 24 (Revised) | Related Party Disclosures
Aamendment (o PAS 24: Eey Management Personnel
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benelit Plans ¥
{ﬂ::ii:d] Separate Finarcial Slatements v
Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities .
aAmendmenis (o PAS 17: Equily Method in Separate <
Financial Statements
‘ml:fiiij] Investments in Associates and Joinl Venlures v
Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying o
Lthe Consalidalion Excaplion
PAS 29 Fimancial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Ecomomies ¥
PaS 32 Fimancial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
Fimancial Instruments: Presentation ¥
Amendments bo PAS 32: Puttable Financial Instruments o
and Ohligations Ariging on Liguidation
Aamendment to PAS 32: Cassilication of Rights |ssues ¥
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and "
Fimancial Liabilities
Amendments Lo PAS 32: Tax Elfect of Distribution 10 ”

Haobders of Equity Instrumeants
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PAS

Title

Mot
Adopted

Mot
Applicable

Phillpplne Interpretations

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

'

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Amendment Lo PAS 34; Interim Financial Reporting and
Segment Information for Tolal Assets and Liabilities

W

amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of Information
‘Elsewhers in the Interim Financial Report”

PAS 36

Imipairment of Asssts

amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures lor Won-Finamncial Assels

PAS 37

Prowvisions, Contingent Liabilties and Contingent Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Aszets

Amendment Lo PAS 38; Revaluation Methed -
Froportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization

Amendment to FAS 38: Oarification of Acceptabla
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 38

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendmenits Lo PAS 39: Transilion ard Inilial
Recognition of Financial Assels and Financial Liabilities

Amendments bo PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
ol Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendmenis Lo PAS 39: Financial Guaranlee Contlracls

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PAS 3% Reclassilication of Financial
fssels - Elfeclive Date and Transilion

Amendmenis PAS 19; Embedded Dermalives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Hems

Amendments o PAS 30 Novatson of Dervatives and
Conlinealion of Hedge Accounting

PAS ab

Invesiment Properiy

- Mot Mot
Interpretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and

IFRIC1 i i v
Similar Liabilities

ERIC 3 Members” Share in Co-aperative Entitbes and Sirnilar o
instruments

IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Conlains a v
Lease

IERICS Righls Lo Interests arising from Decommissioning, o
Restoration and Envircnmental Rehabilitation Funds
Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specitic Market

IFRIC & ; y : v
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipmant

ERIET Apphlying the Restalement Approach under PAS 29 <

T Fimancial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC S Heassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
amendments Lo Philippine Interpee lation IFRIC-9: ”
Embadded Derivatives

[FRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Afrangements .

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes ¥

IFRIC 14 FaS 19 - The Limit on a Delined Benefit Asset, 7
Pknimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, %
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Nel Investmen| ina Foreaggn Operation

[FRIC 17 Distributions of Mon-cash Assels Lo Dwiners

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers ¥

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equitly w
Instruments

[FRIC 20 Slflppdng Costs i the Production Phase of a Surface v
Miine

IFRIC 21 Levies el

Amendment to PAS 40 Clarifying the Interrelationship
between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifying Property
a5 Investment Property or Gwner-oocupied Property

PAS 41

Agricullure

Amendment to PAS 41; Agriculture; Bearer Plants

Sterling Bank of Asia
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PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - SIC

£ Mot Mot
Inter pretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable

SIC-7 Introduction of the Eurs v

SIC-10 Gmemlmenl. F_l.s_si_ﬂance - Mo Specific Relation to o
Ciperating Aclivilies

SiC-15 Cperating Leases - Incentives ¥

§C.25 rnc:nme Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity S
of its Shareholders

SIC-27 Evabuating the Substance of Tramsactions Involving Lhe <

) Legal Form of a Lease
SIC-2% Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosuras, v
£ T i it

Gc.31 FtEl.rE_lFlue Barter Transactians Involving Advertising >
Services

BIC-32 intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v

Sterling Bank of Asia




Sterling Bank of Asia is prepared to respond to the opportunities for the year
ahead, while also rising to the challenges that the external environment
may bring. Whether in times of stability or volatility, we, at Sterling
Bank of Asia, remain steadfast and firmly committed to delivering the
best banking experience to our customers, stakeholders and employees.

L3 ol RN




Board of
Directors

R W

Ruben C. Tiu Bansan C. Choa William L. Chua

Chairman of the Board Member Member (Independent Director)

Gregorio T. Yu Cecilio D. San Pedro Juliet C. Go Harris Edsel D. Jacildo  Nilo L. Pacheco, Jr.

Vice Chairman of the Board Director, President and CEO Member (Independent Director) Member Member (Independent Director)
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President
and EVPs

Atty. A. Bayani K. Tan Bernadette Cindy C. Tiu

Member and Corporate Secretary Member President and CEO

JohnY. Tiu, Jr. Atty. Lamberto R. lgnatius F. Yenko
Member Vil |e na Member Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President,
Member Retail Banking Group (RBG) Head Commercial Lending Group Head Treasury Group Head and Treasurer
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Senior
Officers

Senior Vice President, First Vice President, First Vice President, First Vice President,
Operations Group Head RBG Area 1 Head Human Resources Group Head Business Support Services Head

(T

Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President, First Vice President, First Vice President,
Controllership Group Head Consumer Lending Group Head Chief Risk Officer/ Commercial Lending 1 Head

First Vice President, .
Risk Management Head

Compliance Officer
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Vice President,

Vice President, Vice President, Vice President,
VISMIN Consumer Lending Head

Vice President RBG Area 2 Head Caloocan Branch Head Application Systems Head
Domestic Markets Head

Vice President,
Commercial Lending 3 Head

T ™

Vice President, Vice President, Vice President, Vice President, Vice President,
Management Information System Technology Operations Head Center for Learning Head Financial Market Sales Head Vice President Trust Officer
and Budget Head '

Personal and Salary Loans Head
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Senior Officers

Vice President, Vice President, V/ice President, Vice President, Vice President,

Management Support Services Head Real Estate Loans Head Auto Loans Head Compensation and Benefits Head Vice President Retail Banking Support Head

Legal Services Head

Vice President, Vice President, Vice President, Vice President, Vice President,
Vice President Application Testing and Treasury Marketing Head Commercial Lending 2 Head RBG Quality Assurance Foreign Exchange Head
p User Support Head and Branch Operations Head

Chief Security Officer

| Sterling Bank of Asia 2016 Annual Report |



Products
and Services

Personal Banking

Solo Savings Series

Solo Savings Account

Our Peso Savings Account. Easy
to access, even easier to maintain.
Uncomplicated banking at its best.

w Solo Dollar Savings Account

% 4 Justlike our Peso Savings Account, you can
: open a dollar savings account with much

e 4 0356 and at the comfort of your own time.

Solo Yuan Savings Account

With an opening balance requirement of CNY 2,500.00 and
a minimum ADB requirement of CNY 2,500.00, you can
already get a competitive interest rate of 0.15% per annum
credited monthly to your account.

Neo Savings Account
Neo is a special savings deposit
account for kids ages 19 and below.
- _ ,wsa Through Neo, your kids can already
save and earn at the same time at an
early age and grow their money for their own future.

PHaf 5Tl

Bayani OFW Savings Account
- ==
ﬁ"ﬁ This account aims to help develop the

habit of saving and improve financial
. wzal  Management skills of OFWs and their
- families.

|| F e R

Duo Checking Account

Experience the ease and earning
potentials of a savings account, with
an added convenience of issuing
checks, along with a Visa Debit Card.
Encash your checks at any Sterling Bank of Asia branch
near you without any charges - a total hassle-free service
right for you!

Electronic Banking
¢ Internet Banking
e ATM

Sterling Bank of Asia

Time Deposit Series

Prima Time Deposit

Short-term deposits should not equate to short-sighted
investments. With Prima Time Deposit, substantial gains
at variable terms await the prudent investor.

Prima Dollar Time Deposit
Time is on your side...and with your dollars earning prima
interest, it will definitely grow in time.

Maxima 3
Time deposit that gives you great ways to maximize your
investment fixed for 3 years.

Maxima 5

Get rewarded with tax-free earnings on a five-year
investment of as low as PhP25,000. Maxima 5 gives you
competitive market rates fixed for 5 years.

Consumer Loans

Ultima Auto Loan

Driving home your own car should always be a rewarding
experience. Start with low attractive rates, long repayment
term, and convenient loan processing.

Persona Personal Loan

Because you'll never know when you'll need a little
extra - for tuition fees of your children, for your dream
vacation, for home improvements, to jump-start your
own business venture, or simply to help you outin a
financial emergency. Let Persona address your personal
financial needs.

Discovery Home Loan
The key to having your own dream home is to call us! It's
that easy. Make your choice and let us handle the rest.

Avance Salary Loan
Probably the best perk for work... unsecured loans made
available to qualified employees of accredited companies.

Layag Seafarer’s Loan

We know the risks you take in providing for your family.
With Layag Seafarer’s Loan, you can be sure that your
family's financial need is already taken care of.

Commercial Banking

Business Loans

As your dedicated business partner,
we offer a wide range of Business
Loan products to answer the
demands and requirements of your
business for growth or expansion.
These various loan products will give
you the additional working capital
requirements of your business:

* Trade Check Discounting

¢ Import / Domestic Letter of
Credit (LC)

e Trust Receipt (TR)

e Standby Letter of Credit or Bank
Guarantee

e Term Loan

¢ Developmental Loan

* Domestic Bills Purchase

Optima Business Banking Solutions
Optima Business Banking Solutions
is a unique business account that
comes with cash management
facilities to help minimize overhead
expenses, streamline operations,
and most importantly, improve the
bottom line.

With Optima, you get to optimize the
management of cash and liquid
funds. One single account can now
take care of the disbursements,
collections, and investments of your
company’s financial resources. Its key
facilities are as follows:

¢ Payroll System

* Payroll Crediting System
¢ Financial System

® Check Writer System

* PDC Check Warehousing
¢ Optima Online

Wealth Management

Treasury Services

We offer a range of treasury products
and services from sale of fixed
income securities (government
securities and corporate bonds) to
the more sophisticated products

to meet your dynamic investment
requirements. Managed by a team
of dedicated officers, you can be
assured that your investment will be
handled in a prudent manner.

* Government Securities
- Treasury Bills
- Treasury Bonds
- Retail Treasury Bonds (RTB)
- Fixed Rate Treasury Notes
(FXTNSs)
* Peso Corporate Bonds
* USD Sovereign Bonds
* USD Corporate Bonds
* Foreign Exchange

Trust Services

Get customized wealth management
services to address different
investment needs.

Unit Investment Trust Funds (UITFs)
* Sterling Money Market Fund
(Peso)
* Sterling Balanced Fund (Peso)

Personal Wealth Management
¢ Investment Management
Accounts (IMA)
* Personal Management Trust

Corporate Trust
¢ Employee Benefit Plan
¢ Investment Management
Accounts (IMA)

Auxiliary Trust
* Escrow
* Safekeeping

Sterling Bank Visa Cards

Enjoy the convenience and privileges

of shopping and dining without having
to worry about your monthly bills. Both
powered by Visa and BancNet, our debit
and prepaid cards provide an alternative
payment method to consumers
worldwide. It is the ultimate medium
for cashless convenience allowing you
to access your funds in several easy
and practical methods (online, POS

and ATM). Plus, our debit and prepaid
cards are the country's first \isa cards
to have an embedded EMV chip so you
can be sure of more secure transactions
whenever, wherever.

ShopNPay ShopNPay Visa

Visa Debit Card Prepaid Regular
Card

o

i

iRemit-ShopNPay  ShopNPay US Dollar
Visa Debit Card

Visa Prepaid Card

- ‘ ..r m

st g :

= Tamh il s |
ShopNPay Visa ShopNPay Visa

Prepaid Loan Card  Prepaid Gift Card

Bt =

e w0
2

T T

— vita, WIEA

Neo Savings Bayani OFW Savings
Visa Debit Card Visa Debit Card

ShopNPay US Dollar
Vlisa Prepaid Card
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Branch Network and Business Offices

Caloocan - Rizal Avenue

Rizal Ave. Extension,

Between 7" and 8™ Ave.,

Grace Park, 1403 Caloocan City

T: (+632) 330-7398;
330-7399

F: (+632) 330-7397

Caloocan — MacArthur
Highway*

624 MacArthur Highway,
Calaanan, 1403 Caloocan City

Las Pifias

Alabang-Zapote Road,

Pamplona ll, 1740 Las Pinas City

T: (+632) 846-4473;
84L6-LLTL

F: (+632) 846-4317

Makati — Amorsolo

G/F Amorsolo Mansion,

Amorsolo cor. Herrera Sts.,

Legaspi Village,

1229 Makati City

T:(+632) 553-0033 to 34;
519-5764; 519-5772;
519-8158

F: (+632) 553-0034

Makati — Ayala Ave.

G/F SSS-Makati Bldg.,

Ayala Ave. cor. V.A. Rufino St.,
1250 Makati City

T: (+632) 892-1263;
864-0428; 864-0429

F: (+632) 864-0427

Makati - Gil Puyat

G/F Morning Star Bldg.,

Sen. Gil Puyat Ave.,

1220 Makati City

T: (+632) 895-5573;
899-2838

F:(+632) 897-4382

Makati - Leviste

G/F Liroville Condominium,

Leviste cor. Sedeno Sts.,

Salcedo Village,

1227 Makati City

T:(+632) 846-4168;
555-0942

F: (+632) 555-0944

| Sterling Bank of Asia

Malabon

Francis Market,

Gov. Pascual Ave.

cor. M.H. del Pilar St.,

Tinajeros, 1470 Malabon City

T:(+632) 351-1007;
351-1006

F: (+632) 351-1002

Mandaluyong - Shaw Blvd.

G/F Shaw Residenza,

429 Shaw Boulevard,

1550 Mandaluyong City

T: (+632) 470-9367;
470-9405

F: (+632) 470-9420

Manila - Divisoria

630 New Divisoria Center

Condominium,

Sta. Elena St., San Nicolas,

Divisoria, 1006 Manila

T: (+632) 241-0179;
241-0180

F: (+632) 241-0181

Manila - Masangkay

Unit 963-965,

G/F Masagana Bldg.,

G. Masangkay St.,

Binondo, 1006 Manila

T: (+632) 243-1342;
243-1832

F: (+632) 243-1446

Manila - Ongpin

Unit-C, G/F 888 Neo Plaza,

Sabino Padilla cor.

Ongpin Sts.,

Binondo, 1006 Manila

T: (+632) 736-3113;
736-3208

F: (+632) 735-8321

Manila — Quintin Paredes

550 Quintin Paredes St.,

Binondo, 1006 Manila

T:(+632) 247-3841;
247-3992

F: (+632) 247-3954

Manila - San Fernando

(Binondo)

Unit 493-495, G/F VISCO Bldg.,

San Fernando St.,

Binondo, 1006 Manila

T: (+632) 242-7849;
242-8697

F: (+632) 243-4144

Manila - U.N. Ave.

G/F Royal Bay Terrace

Condominium,

465 U.N. Ave. cor. Cortado St.,,

Ermita, 1000 Manila

T:(+632) 523-6881;
523-8572

F: (+632) 523-7656

Marikina

G/F WRC Bldg.,

47 Gil Fernando Ave.,

Midtown Subd. Il, San Roque,

1801 Marikina City

T: (+632) 681-2628;
681-2908

F: (+632) 681-4327

Muntinlupa - Alabang

G/F Autocentrum BMW Center,

Commerce Ave.

Madrigal Business Park,

Alabang, 1780 Muntinlupa City

T: (+632) 556-3180;
556-3493

F: (+632) 556-3492

Paraifiaque - BF Homes

President's Ave.

cor. Monserrat St.,

BF Homes Subd.,

1700 Paranaque City

T: (+632) 850-9184;
850-3468

F: (+632) 850-8959

Paraiaque —

Ninoy Aquino Ave. (NAIA)

Unit 707-4, G/F Columbia

Complex,

P 2B Ninoy Aquino Ave.,,

Sto. Nino, 1704 Paranaque City

T: (+632) 852-0168;
853-9485

F: (+632) 853-9484

Pasig — Ortigas

G/F Prestige Tower,

F. Ortigas Jr. Road, Ortigas

Center, 1605 Pasig City

T: (+632) 706-3072;
706-3254

F: (+632) 706-3074

Quezon City — Banawe

705 Banawe St.,,

1114 Quezon City

T:(+632) 781-7625;
781-7650

F: (+632) 740-8174

Quezon City — Congressional

Unit 31, G/F Barrington Place Bldg.,
Congressional Ave.,,

1106 Quezon City

T: (+632) 928-5168; 929-8748

F: (+632) 929-9506

Quezon City — Quezon Ave.

G/F Ave Maria Bldg.,

1517 Quezon Ave.

(near cor. Examiner St.),

West Triangle, 1104 Quezon City
T: (+632) 376-6792; 376-6793
F: (+632) 376-6794

Quezon City - Timog

G/F SCT Bldg., 25 Timog Ave.,
1103 Quezon City

T: (+632) 374-0168; 441-8155
F: (+632) 441-8156

San Juan - Greenhills

G/F Sterling Bank Corporate Center,
Ortigas Ave., Greenhills,

1500 San Juan City

T: (+632) 727-8752; 726-6418

F: (+632) 727-8752

Taguig -

The Fort BGC, 1 Ave.

Unit-J, G/F Kensington Plaza,
1t Ave. cor. 29" St.,

Crescent Parkwest,

Bonifacio Global City,

1634 Taguig City

T: (+632) 586-5042; 856-5072
F: (+632) 856-5036

Taguig -

The Fort BGC, 31° St.

McKinley Park Residences,

315t St. cor. 3" Ave.,,

Bonifacio Global City,

1634 Taguig City

T:(+632) 801-6168, 6172, 6170

Valenzuela

JLB Enterprises Inc. Bldg,

54 Km.12, MacArthur Highway,
Marulas, 1440 Valenzuela City
T: (+632) 294-8301; 294-8379
F: (+632) 294-8466

Bacolod

31 Lacson St.,,

6100 Bacolod City
T:(+6334) 432-1381, 1490
F: (+6334) 432-1641

Baguio

1 Leonard Wood Road,
2600 Baguio City

T: (+6374) L45-2786

F: (+6374) 445-2788 to 89

Bicol — Legazpi*

First CQ Building,

B. Imperial St.,

4500 Legazpi City

T: (+6352) 284-3906;
284-3910; 284-3904

Bicol - Naga*

Centro Square,

#70 Penafrancia Ave.

cor. Colgante Bridge,

San Francisco, 4400 Naga City

T: (+6354) 871-6168;
871-3770; 880-0545

Boracay*

Boracay Tropics,

Balabag,Boracay Island,

Malay, 5608 Aklan

T: (+6336) 390-2577;
390-2583

F: (+6336) 390-2028

*to be opened in 2017

Cagayan de Oro (CDO)
G/F The VIP Hotel,

A. Velez cor. JR Borja Sts,,
9000 Cagayan de Oro City
T: (+6388) 852-8168

F: (+6388) 852-8172

Cavite — Imus

A&M Ramos Bldg.,
Aguinaldo Highway,
Bayan Luma IV,

Imus, 4103 Cavite

T: (+6346) 472-3168;
471-0644 to 45

F: (+6346) 474-0081

Cebu - Fuente Osmena

Gen. Maxilom Ave. cor. F.

Ramos St., 6000 Cebu City

T:(+6332) 255-3198;
255-6157

F: (+6332) 254-0087

Cebu - Magallanes

Magallanes cor. Manalili Sts.,

6000 Cebu City

T: (+6332) 255-1203;
255-7935

F: (+6332) 256-2659

Dagupan

G/F Lenox Hotel,

Rizal St., Dagupan City,

2400 Pangasinan

T: (+6375) 523-1168;
522-0491; 522-3168

Davao - J.P. Laurel

J. P. Laurel Ave.,

Bajada, 8000 Davao City

T:(+6382) 221-7168;
222-0357, 58, 09

F: (+6382) 222-0196

Davao - Monteverde

Unit 72-74, G/F Sequoia Inn

Bldg., Monteverde St.,

8000 Davao City

T: (+6382) 222-4140;
224-0542

F: (+6382) 224-1924

General Santos

J. Catolico Sr. Ave,,

9500 General Santos City
T: (+6383) 553-5168

lloilo

G/F GST lloilo,

Corporate Center Quezon St.,

5000 lloilo City

T: (+6333) 338-3795;
338-3797

F: (+6333) 338-3796

Laguna - Bifan

National Highway,

Brgy. Canlalay,

City of Bifian, 4024 Laguna
T: (+6349) 307-7595 to 97
F: (+6349) 307-7594

Laguna - Calamba

National Highway,

Brgy. Uno, Crossing,

Calamba, 4027 Laguna

T: (+6349) 547-7164,
7166, 7168

La Union

Quezon Ave,,

San Fernando City,
2500 La Union
T:(+6372) 888-0168

Palawan - Puerto Princesa*

National Highway,

Brgy. San Pedro,

5300 Puerto Princesa City

T: (+6348) 244-1476;
244-1497; 244-0660

Pampanga - San Fernando

G/F Queensland Commercial

Plaza,, Mc Arthur Highway,

Dolores, City of San Fernando,

2000 Pampanga

T: (+6345) 966-9168;
435-4463; 435-4462
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Business Development Unit
G/F Sterling Bank Corporate
Center, Ortigas Ave., Greenhills,
1500 San Juan City

T:(+632) 535-6168

Consumer Loans

Greenhills Head Office
Sterling Bank Corporate
Center, Ortigas Ave., Greenhills
1500 San Juan City

Auto Loans

T: (+632) 535-6168 locs
2605, 2671, 2674,
2675, 2678, 4022

F: (+632) 982-9399

Ortigas Lending Center

2/F Prestige Tower,

F. Ortigas Jr. Road, Ortigas
Center, 1605 Pasig City
F:(632) 914-7038; 470-9130

Personal Loan

T: (+632) 470-8168 locals
2509, 2510, 2511, 2522,
2523, 2591, 4002

Salary Loan

T: (+632) 470-8168 locals
2506, 2551, 2553, 2554,
2556, 4003

Real Estate Loan

T: (+632) 470-8168 locals
2498, 2501, 2507, 2512,
2517, 2533, 2593, 4004

Commercial Lending 1 & 3
1/F Sterling Bank Corporate
Center, Ortigas Ave., Greenhills,
1500 San Juan City

T: (+632) 535-6168

Commercial Lending 2
550 Quintin Paredes St.,
Binondo, 1006 Manila
T: (+632) 247-0293;
243-0803 to 04

Calamba Lending Desk

National Highway

Brgy. Uno, Crossing

4027 Calamba, Laguna

T: (+6349) 547-7164;
(+632) 535-6168 local
4546

Pampanga Lending Center

2/F Queensland Commercial

Plaza, MacArthur Highway,

Dolores, San Fernando City,

2000 Pampanga

T: (+6345) 280-1561;
280-1554; 280-1564;
280-1560; 280-1571

La Union Lending Desk

Quezon Ave,,

San Fernando City

2500 La Union

T: (+6372) 888-0168;
(+632) 535-6168 local
4548

Dagupan Lending Desk

G/F Lenox Hotel

Rizal St., Dagupan City

2400 Pangasinan

T: (+6375) 523-1168;
(+632) 535-6168 local
4545

Treasury

3/F Sterling Bank Corporate
Center, Ortigas Ave., Greenhills,
1500 San Juan City

T: (+632) 535-6168

Naga Lending Desk

Centro Square, #70

Penafrancia Ave.

cor. Colgante Bridge,

San Francisco

4400 Naga City

T: (+6354) 871-6168;
(+632) 535-6168 local
4549

Cebu Lending Center

2/F Coast Pacific Bldg.

Gen. Maxilom Ave. cor.

F. Ramos St., 6000 Cebu City

T: (+6332) 239-0025 to 28,
239-0039

F: (+6332) 254-8291

Bacolod Lending Desk

31 Lacson St.

6100 Bacolod City

T: (+6334) 432-1641;
(+632) 535-6168 local
4561

lloilo Lending Desk

G/F GST lloilo

Corporate Center Quezon St.

5000 lloilo City

T:(+6333) 338-3796;
(+632) 535-6168 local
4560

Trust

3/F Sterling Bank Corporate
Center, Ortigas Ave., Greenhills,
1500 San Juan City

T: (+632) 535-6168

Cagayan De Oro Lending Desk
G/F The VIP Hotel
A.Velez cor. JR Borja Sts.
9000 Cagayan de Oro City
T: (+6388) 852-8171;
(+632) 535-6168 local
4581

General Santos Lending Desk
J. Catolico Sr. Ave.
9500 General Santos City
T: (+6383) 553-5172;
(+632) 535-6168 local
4583

Davao Lending Center

J.P. Laurel Ave., Bajada

8000 Davao City

T: (+6382) 222-0357;
(+632) 535-6168 local
4582
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